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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Benlong
Mr. CHAN Wai Kin

Non-executive Directors

M. OU Guogiang
Mr. OU Guowei
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Mzr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
Mr. SHEN Guoquan
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) (Chairman)
Mzr. OU Guowei
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Chuanxu
Mr. SHEN Guoquan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Chuanxu (Chairman)
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi
Mr. SHEN Guoquan

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. CHEN Jian
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne (ECIS, FCS)
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi
Mr. WANG Benlong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China
Shanghai Branch

Bank of China

Fujian Province Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shanghai Branch

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE
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AND TRANSFER AGENT
Walkers Corporate Limited
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

ik Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
HAF Hopewell Centre

B KER 18358 183 Queen’s Road East
AL Wanchai

17817121716 59l Hong Kong
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Grand Cayman

KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (#{lI4), aged 50, was appointed as the executive
Director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (1F4%H0 2 4 B4 R /A7)
(“Company”, “Our Company”, “we” or “us”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) and the chairman of our Board on September 20, 2017. Mr. Huang
is primarily responsible for the overall management of the investment strategies
and business development of our Group. He has over 20 years of experience
in the PRC real estate industry. Mr. Huang graduated from Jimei Advanced
Specialized Institute of Finance and Economics (%%E]f@%%gﬁr%ﬁ)
in Fujian Province, the PRC in July 1989, where he majored in Investment
Economics. He also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2012.
Mr. Huang obtained the qualification as an accountant in December 1997 as

certified by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC ( H 3 A\ R AL A ZH5).

From October 1998 to October 2014, Mr. Huang served various positions
in Zhenro Group Co., Led. (IEZSE AR F]) (formerly known as Fujian
Zhenro Group Co., Led. (MEEIEEEBARAFA)) (“Zhenro Group
Company”), including the chief financial officer, the assistant to the chief
executive director, the vice president primarily responsible for financial
affairs and the executive vice president where he was responsible for overall
management, consecutively. He has been a director and president of Zhenro
Group Company since November 2014. Mr. Huang has served as an executive
director and chairman of the board of Zhenro Properties Holdings Company

Limited ( 1F 58 b 2 £ i i 1 A PR /A 7 ) (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”)

since December 2015.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Mr. Huang was awarded “Outstanding Professional Manager in China for the
Year of 2008” (2008 4F- £ H1 B {5 H B SEREFEN ) by China Human Resources
Management Annual Selection Committee (PN I U AT B AT A%
A Z) in October 2008, and “Chief Accountant in China for the Year of
20117 (2011 FPE 4B & AT A by China Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (B A€ FfitH € ) in December 2011. He was awarded “Figure
with Contributions to China Real Estate Brands in 2015” (2015 H[E [E #1755
JEE LA ) jointly by the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development
Research Center of the State Council (;f% Be B8 JE B 50 ‘L‘ﬁ\%ﬁ%}ﬁ),
Property Research Institute of Tsinghua University (1 % K 8 [ Hll 2 A 50
) and China Index Academy (B FE OWE 5T B in September 2015. He
received “Top 100 Figures with Contributions to China Real Estate Industry
in 2016”7 2016 H [ J7 #b & 38 B BK A YY) award from China Real Estate
TOP10 Research Group ( F B HiLEE TOP10 BFFE4H ) in March 2016. He was
awarded “Contributor of China Top 100 Real Estate Entrepreneurs” ( *'[ [ i
7 H A FEE M) by China Real Estate TOP10 Research Group (!
J5 1 7 TOP10 5 7L 4L) in March 2018. He was awarded “China Real Estate
Influential Figure for the Year 2018” (2018 " [F 4F- i 5 %8 J1 Mo £ A 49)) by
China Real Estate Fashion Awards (Elﬂ@liﬂz%}itréﬁk%%) in August 2018. He
was also awarded “Leaders in the China’s Real Estate Industry in 2018” (2018
B R A SEE A ) by China Real Estate Association ( o b E
) in September 2018.

4 )t Annual Report 2018
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Mr. WANG Benlong (EAFHE), aged 43, was appointed as our executive
Director on March 28, 2018 and the joint chief executive officer on February 28,
2018 and re-designated as the chief executive officer on August 27, 2018. Mr.
Wang is primarily responsible for the day-to-day business operations, human
resources matters, customer relationship matters and overall administrative
matters of our Group. Mr. Wang has been serving as the vice president of our
Company from September 20, 2017 to February 27, 2018. Mr. Wang has
served as the president of Zhenro Properties Holdings since March 3, 2018,
primarily responsible for the overall affairs of the Company. Mr. Wang has
served as the vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings from January 2017 to
March 2018, primarily responsible for the operation management department,
customer relationship department and comprehensive management department.
Mr. Wang has been assisting the president of Zhenro Properties Holdings since
July 2017 with respect to affairs of the human resources department and has
been a director of Zhenro Properties Holdings since September 2017.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in 2014 and has served a number of other positions
in the Company’s subsidiaries, including: (i) the general manager and then the
chairman of the board of directors of Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate Development
Co., Led. (IE4E (K BEEBREARAF) from June 2014 to July 2016;
(ii) the general manager of Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Property Co., Ltd. (E%ﬁ
A (BEM) 5 HE A R FD) from July 2015 to July 2016; (i) the assistant
to the Chief Executive Officer of Zhenro Properties Holdings from May 2016
to January 2017; (iv) the manager in charge of our real estate business in
Beijing and Tianjin at Zhenro Properties Holdings from July 2016 to March
2017; and (v) the manager in charge of our real estate business in Zhengzhou at
Zhenro Properties Holdings from March 2017 to July 2017. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Wang worked in several property development companies in the
PRC including (i) the project general manager of Shanghai Longhu Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (|1 HE B R R R A A from February 2008 to August
2009; (ii) the general manager of Yancheng Zhongnan Century City Real
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. (i@ﬁ*r‘ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%& gﬁﬁﬁ/l}ﬂ) from
September 2009 to June 2011; (iii) the chief officer of the group engineering
center of Shanghai Penghui Property Development Co., Led. (- 1 [ I & 3
A PR 2 7l) from July 2011 to January 2013 and (iv) the general manager of
Tianjin Jingshang Property Investment Co., Led. (K HE 5t 1 B % & A R
/A Hl) from February 2013 till May 2014. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s
degree in engineering majoring in management engineering from Tianjin
University (K K#) in Tianjin, the PRC in July 1999.

Mr. Wang was awarded “Figure with Contributions to China Real Estate Brands
in 2018” (2018 12 7 Mt 28 5 BT J&K A4 ) issued by China Index Academy
(b B 46 BOWF % B )in September 2018. Mr. Wang has served as the vice
president of China Real Estate Association since December 15, 2018.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Mr. CHAN Wai Kin (Bfif#18), aged 38, was appointed as our executive Director
and vice president on September 3, 2018 and the chief financial officer of our
Company on November 15, 2018. Mr. Chan has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial matters. He served as the executive director, the vice
president, and the authorized representative of Future Land Development Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the issued shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1030) from
March 2015 to August 2018. During this period, Mr. Chan was mainly responsible
for overseeing the financial management and capital market related matters. Mr.
Chan served as the chief financial officer, the company secretary, and the authorized
representative of Times China Holdings Limited (formerly known as Times Property
Holdings Limited), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the issued
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1233), from February 2014 to March 2015. During this period, Mr. Chan was
mainly responsible for financial reporting and investors related matters. Mr. Chan
also served as the executive director, the chief financial officer, and the company
secretary of Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited (“Golden Wheel”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the issued shares of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1232), from April
2012 to September 2013. During this period, Mr. Chan was mainly responsible for
overseeing the financial management and regulatory compliance. Mr. Chan served
as the non-executive director of Golden Wheel from September 2013 to February
2014.

Mr. Chan worked as an auditor at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from December
2005 to August 2010, and an auditor manager at KPMG from August 2010 to
October 2011. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Business Science from Indiana
University Bloomington of the United States in May 2005. Mr. Chan obtained a
MBA at the University of Chicago Booth School of Business in March 2017. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since July 2009.

4 )t Annual Report 2018

9



10

O A P R R

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

FRATHE

K B A S Ak 34K 0 R F —EAE LA
S AR BB IR AT - B
T3 — 4 FF AT R AR SR R R R
FBCR S0 57 o BB R £ 2 R AR
V) A R LR (A LB R R B L
FRER o B B S M A AT SEHE A A 10 AR AE
B o BRI R P —F AL A SR P
e LUK R » e M EL BT AR
BE B .

HoZ—fE+ AR > BB — EIET
EEMEERGFNTES KAZF
— AR —HEEEAE A A #E
Foo SERNFE T —HE F—-FF
H o B 5y 1 Hb e B 4 2w A N K b
BHEE A IR A A TS > Wik 2 —%
FEABR SR - ABIE AR ES
GEFR -

B 1] 568 S A O T 5 PO e AR AR o RR
BEEEERAGEEGHE - R %
—ZAETLH > RO IL T AR N T & K
A M T T AR I R AR N A I
B o

KB R A 300 i —F —EAESLA
T AERAERRMOFRATES - B
FAM 9 55 — 44 T AT 8 R 5 10 2 o %
— R I I AR SR S Y T o R T
BRI A AR T 1 7 B TR I L BN
R o BN P 5 AT
A 10 RS o BREYAR N % — 4 A
LEE S RGN RS PN e 10
PRACH B 5 - RIS AQ I LB BB A o

IMAAR LS 7 2Z A > B AR TR B IE 5 O
) BREARAF([HBEE ] EKZ
A A —FERFE+AE-F——
Ftr—ABANIERBE - —F——4F
ToARZE = BREKHE F
—EFEARE TR -NECAREREE
TR F-SF=AFRF NS
H o WO B RS B 4 ) AR B > KA
SR AR TR (0 IE S A
M IEATES -

Non-executive Directors

Mr. OU Guogqiang (BKE %), aged 34, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on September 20, 2017. He is the brother of Ou Guowei, who is
also our non-executive Director, and the son of Ou Zongrong, one of our
controlling shareholders. Ou Guogiang is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and recommendations on the operations and management of our
Group. He has over 10 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Ou
Guogiang graduated from Peking University in Beijing, the PRC in July 2005,

with a bachelor’s degree in economics majoring in finance.

Ou Guogiang has been serving as an non-executive director of Zhenro Properties
Holdings since December 2015 and a director of Zhenro Group Company since
February 2012. He served as an executive director from November 2008 to
February 2010 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2010 to
February 2012, in Fuzhou Shiou Properties Development Co., Led. (8 tHEk
7 b 2E B EE A FR/A ), a real estate development company.

Ou Guogqiang is a member of the Fourteenth People’s Congress of Fuzhou City
(CRE N T 26 110 Je AR AL 3R ). He is also a councilor of Fujian Zhenro Public
Welfare Foundation (fREE A IF 4/ %54 ). Mr. Ou received the “Fuzhou
May 4th Youth Medal” (4 Ml % 4F 1. /4 4 &) from the Communist Youth
League of Fuzhou Municipal Committee (3575 [ 481 12 ) and Fuzhou Youth
Federation (RN & FH 5 E) in May 2013.

Mr. OU Guowei (HkPBf#), aged 30, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on September 20, 2017. He is the brother of Ou Guogiang, who is also
our non-executive Director, and the son of Ou Zongrong, one of our controlling
shareholders. Ou Guowei is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
and recommendations on the operations and management of our Group. He
has over 10 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Ou Guowei
graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (128 K52 ) in Shanghai,
the PRC in February 2010, with a bachelor’s degree in economics majoring in

international economics and trade.

Before joining our Company, Ou Guowei served various positions in Nanchang
Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (B IEEE Clmyk) BEEARAR)
(“Nanchang Real Estate”), including the chief officer of human resources from
October 2009 till November 2011, the general manager from December 2011
till February 2013 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2013
till February 2014. He also served as the assistant to the chief executive officer
of Zhenro Group Company from March 2013 to March 2016 and has been a

non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Holdings since December 2015.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Ou Guowei is the executive director of Shanghai Ronggu Venture Capital Co.,
Led. ( HIBARBAIZERE AR D), a subsidiary of Zhenro Group Company.
He is also the executive vice president of Fujian General Association of
Commerce in Jiangxi Province (LR AT E ), the executive vice president
of Nanchang Putian Association of Commerce (¥ & 7 H P &), a committee
member of Nanchang Youth Confederation (FEE T HFH A1), and the vice
president of Fujian Association of Commerce in Shanghai (b 1 i A8 2 7€)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam, BE§HK), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. Dr. Loke has over 42 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate governance. Dr. Loke obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in Malaysia in April
2001 and a doctor’s degree in business administration from the University of
South Australia in Australia in March 2006.

Dr. Loke has been a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since January 1982, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since April 2004, and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries since October 2013. He has also been a member of The Hong Kong

Independent Non-Executive Director Association.
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Name of Entity

S EA B A

Matrix Holdings Limited

5 BUHEE A PR A

V1 Group Limited

H I b A T 7 A I P A PR

China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited

H AR R P A R
(TR A [0 71 75 £ S48 B A R 7))
CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited
(formerly China Fire Safety Enterprise
Group Limited)

Dr. Loke was the sole proprietor of H.L. Loke & Co. and Loke Hoi Lam & Co.,
both Certified Public Accountants firms in Hong Kong, from February 1980
to April 1985 and from April 1990 to December 1991, respectively. He served
as a CPA partner in Loke & Heng from October 1984 to April 1985 and from
November 1989 to December 1990. He served as the CPA partner of Baker
Tilly, an accounting firm in Hong Kong, from November 1989 to December
1991 and a CPA partner in Tse & Loke from March 1993 to May 1996. Dr.
Loke has been serving as the company secretary of Minth Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 425) from June 2007 to February 2018. Dr. Loke has
been serving as the director of MHL Consulting Limited (#5834 HAT R
/AH]) since September 2004. In addition, Dr. Loke currently holds or had held

directorship in the following listed companies:

v R B AR

Place of Listing and Stock code

T 22 Bir (A58« 1005)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1005)

g A2 o (BB Q5% - 82)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 82)

T 22 ir (RO 5E © 39)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 39)

W52 BT (RO AR 5%« 445)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 445)

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Position and Period of Time

B RFENEIA =+ BRI E
FPATE S

an independent non-executive director
since September 30, 2004

A& F A TA B H RS
FHATHEE

an independent non-executive director
since May 17, 2005

A-ZFEZREAA-THAE =%
— N+ — A — BB B AT #
F

an independent non-executive director
from June 24, 2005 to November 1, 2018

A RERENA — RGBS IE
ITHEF

an independent non-executive director
since August 1, 2006
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Name of Entity

IKEEEEARAF

Winfair Investment Company Limited

e E R 4R I A BR 2 )

SCUD Group Limited

P EA R T

Zhong An Real Estate Limited

FHRREE A PR A

Chiho Environmental Group Limited

KB R A PR 7]

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited

H I R S P P AT PR

China Household Holdings Limited

RETHEBARAF

Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

Wi 22 r (A58 ¢ 287)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 287)

Wk 22 r (A58 = 1399)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1399)

W 22 o (B8 < 672)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 672)

g 52 o (BB Q5% = 976)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 976)

W 22 r (A58« 882)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 882)

g 52 o (BB - 692)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 692)

W =2 i (A58 : 1619)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1619)

Tk A 2 B i

Position and Period of Time

B oEFELENA - FE % /4
MH = R R AT
an independent non-executive director
from April 2, 2007 to April 3, 2018

AZFFNFELA A EZF N
FENH AL B AT R
an independent non-executive director
from May 14, 2009 to September 27, 2018

B ZENEAA =+ A RBLEL
FATER

an independent non-executive director
since June 30, 2009

HoF—REANH = HRELE
SLFPATE S

an independent non-executive director
since June 23, 2010

Ao &~ 4+ A+ BREIE
WAL PATE S

an independent non-executive director
since December 21, 2012

HoF—=FNARLHZEF—/\4F
ANAZS B AL S AT S

an independent non-executive director
from August 9, 2013 to August 6, 2018

HOoZF—ELA =+ — HRIBEE
SLHHATE S

an independent non-executive director
since May 31, 2014
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Name of Entity

S R IR AR

Mega Medical Technology Limited

RO FE AT BR A )

Lamtex Holdings Limited

FH o] 8 22 B AT PR 23 )

Forebase International Holdings Limited

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited

s IR A PR W

Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited

T AHE AT IR P B AT RS )

TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited

FERZE 5 EH e B R AT

TradeGo FinTech Limited

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

W32 B (e AR - 876)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 876)

W52 BT OB 5%« 1041)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1041)

W =2 i (A% < 2310)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 2310)

Bt 32 Br (e AR3%  3626)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 3626)

Wi =2 Jr (A58« 02882)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 02882)

W =2 r (A58« s1s)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 515)

T 22 ir (A58« 8017)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 8017)

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

HoZ—-ENH HFEE E—+k
A+ — B ER F AT E R
an independent non-executive director
from June 20, 2014 to January 11, 2017

H_ZF—HLFELtH Z+/\HEEE
S PATE S

an independent non-executive director
since July 28, 2015

B = F—NAENA A+ H RS
FATESR

an independent non-executive director
since April 18, 2016

H &N AN BRE T
S PATE S

an independent non-executive director
since April 26, 2016

HoZ—LHFELA=1—HEIEBEE
SLIRHATE S

an independent non-executive director
since May 31, 2017

H =& — /N4EAN AN BRS¢
HirHEFE

an independent non-executive director
since June 6, 2018

HoZ— /LA £ HEE SR
FHATES
an independent non-executive director

since September 17, 2018

VCERESeHd: > sapk - IR —F—LFE+ A
T A HBETAT BRI AT E S .
T A R R AN AR 1) R T PR
SEEE R o TSR A v B A 4 B A
W A 760 20 AR 585 o B 43 Rl — L /AN AR
B H BE—JUIL= AN A A B SRR
B2 e (B0 By 2 TR R K B2 ) A5 A8 vk 22
B S TE LB o TRAEA I — UL =R
15 H o B D i IS 114 e B R AR R o

Mr. SHEN Guoquan (VEBIH), aged 54, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Shen has over 20 years of experience in the legal and financial regulatory
area in the PRC. He obtained both his bachelor’s degree and master’s degree
in economic law from East China College of Political Science and Law (¥ 5
BUAEEPE), now known as East China University of Political Science and Law
(FERETEKE), in the PRC in July 1986 and June 1993, respectively. Mr.
Shen received his PRC Lawyer’s Qualification Certificate in 1993, issued by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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pita cp/ GRS o= S L K Sy pg S S =2 SSek U
HIEAE P B %WgﬁﬁﬁAE%ﬁ%V
ZRENWEZAGZA - H - JULLFINH
A > B — L ARy L T TR R Sl A S T A
BN o BUAL > TS B AR BUS IEAE
B b TN F Y SRS

oy g

Name of Entity

ey 2 5 [ B A7 KR )

Harbin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

WKL BB B A PR 7]

Zhejiang Crystal-Optech Co., Ltd.

H

5 R B A R R

East Money Information Co., Ltd

i 2 AR A A B )

Shanghai Xinhua Media Co., Ltd.

Mr. Shen is the arbitrator of Shanghai Arbitration Commission and a member of

the Fourth Listing Committee of Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Shen served as a

committee member of the Issuance Examination Committee of China Securities

Regulatory Commission ( 1[5 7%

HEBERZBEGBRITENZES) from

December 2004 to April 2007. He has been the partner of Shanghai AllBright
Law Oftices (i/ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁﬂi%f%f) since April 1999. In addition, Mr.

Shen currently holds or had held directorship in the following listed companies:

i S B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

RIS T
(e LHE © 600664)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600664)

TRIINRE I 28 5 B
(e AQHE : 2273)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2273)

VYIS 2752 5 By
(e fLHE © 300059)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300059)

B IR3EG r
(AR5 © 600825)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600825)

Tk A 2% B

Position and Period of Time

HoZZRAES A AR =%
FZNEZHZHIETEH L ESR

an independent director from December
24, 2004 to February 3, 2008

R i LR =t
AT = HEEE S

an independent director from April 12,
2007 to December 13, 2012

AHoZFEZNEAAZTARESE
—WE—A S HEEEES
an independent director from June 26,
2008 to January 21, 2014

HoZE/ AEZHAZ+FAEZF—N
F-b A HE LB E

an independent director from February 20,
2008 to July 14, 2014
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T

Name of Entity

AR Bk A AR AR AT R )

Beijing Hualu Baina Film & TV Inc.

TLPG B A TE R A A R A 7

Jiangxi Lianchuang Opto-electronic

Science & Technology Co., Ltd

BN K HE 5 P AR A R A )

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

I IR 28 5 7
(e AR5E = 300291)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300291)

AT e
(R 600363)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600363)

GEYI 385528 5 Pir
(Bt R5%  300390)

Suzhou TA&A Ultra Clean Technology Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Stock Exchange

I A I I R I PR A W

(T 26 — T s 2 BB A PR 7))
State Energy Group International

Assets Holdings Limited

(stock code: 300390)

W =2 r (A58« 918)

Stock Exchange (stock code: 918)

(formerly known as “Takson Holdings Limited

6 TR 7 M 72 AL IR A A PR )

Zibo Qixiang Tengda Chemical Co., Ltd.

I ERAT B A R

Bank of Shanghai Co., Led.

VRIS 2752 5 By
(e fLHE + 002408)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002408)

iSRS T
(AR - 601229)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601229)

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

AoF—ZFENAH LA E T AF
F—H =R EE

an independent director from August 9,
2010 to November 13, 2016

S LK o wip B iy i P & e =
—EA=T R R ES

an independent director from July 29,
2014 to January 30, 2019

A S R
T H A B E

an independent director from December 2,
2014 to December 25, 2016

A-ZF—ANEF-H I+ ZREZF
—NETA TR HEER L #EFR
an independent director from November
22,2016 to October 25, 2018

H-ZF L4 L HEEEE L E
F

an independent director since April 7,
2017

B —L4NH U H RS
SLEE R

an independent director since June 24,
2017
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FRAENEEL R LW A AR S TR -
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Name of Entity

BLIERE I3 A AT PR )

Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.

I < 7 I B AT BR 2 )

Sinolink Securities Co., Ltd.

e ek SR AT PR A
(B3 8 o A e e (178
BRRAARAF)

Fujian Zhongfu Industries Co., Ltd.

(now known as Zhongfu Straits

(Pingtan) Development Company Limited )

Mr. WANG Chuanxu ( ¥ ), aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 15, 2017. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Wang has over 18 years of experience in the finance industry and providing
secretarial and corporate service to listed companies in the PRC. He obtained
his bachelor’s degree in engineering majoring in industrial moulding design
from East China University of Science and Technology (HEHI T K2 ) in che
PRC in July 1994 and his master’s degree in economics majoring in political
economics from East China Normal University (ﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁjﬁ%) in the PRC
in July 1998. Mr. Wang was granted the qualification of securities investment
consulting by China Securities Regulatory Commission in December 1999.
He also obtained the certificate of secretary to the board of directors of listed

companies issued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2008.

Mr. Wang had held several positions in a number of listed companies, including

those set out below:

i S B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code

R R 5
(B AR5E  601377)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601377)

RIS T
(B - 600109)
Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600109)

GEYIFEI%38 5 r
(AR5 © 000592)

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000592)

Bk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

H—LILNEAH 2 R EETA
BAET R B > BRI SCERIT IS
s

a researcher and then the senior manager
of investment banking from June 1998 to
May 2007

A ZF LA R - FT/HE+ 2
H AR SR RAT #0540 B

a business director of investment banking
from May 2007 and to December 2008

A-FF/FEF A2 %N
HIEAEZ AR - G4 a% 2 7] Y B A
FESEE g

various positions including the vice general
manager and the secretary to the board of
directors of the company from December
2008 to September 2011
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Name of Entity

AL H A A R 7

Thaihot Group Co., Ltd

R A R A SE B AT B2 ]

Greattown Holdings Led.

i B B AR B

Place of Listing and Stock code
TINFE 528 5 B
(efrCaE = 732)

Shenzhen Stock Exchange

(stock code: 732)

Tk A B B i

Position and Period of Time

e i ik = ST
VSRR R #E R e

the vice general manager and the secretary
to the board of directors from November
2011 to April 2014

RS 252 5 B HoF—NUELHE " F—-HE=H
(et fHE + 600094) AT R AR AL
Shanghai Stock Exchange the vice general manager from July 2014
(stock code: 600094) to March 2015

HoZF—TAFENA®  EREIMEE il
PEROBRAFA IR A AT -

5 A48 Pl

Al 48

Mok B e A > 420 > R F — NHFNAH
ZrHEAERELARMOEBARE TEA
EAEEA SR - R A Y
HMTRE®. A -F— L4 +—
FH S0 A= 468 AT 1F 4% b s 8 R0 I 48 3 - H oG
AR R —NELAIMAAER » BN
{LHRIN B 25\ A R B8 30~ AR B 240 A
MO AS P R I A b P ) AR R BB

IMAAS AL B 2 Ay > FH S8 A4 ¥ e T Y
[ B BE P AL > BLHE R =T
B LA TR AT i E A R
A TREFAM AR A 48 > —FFLHERH
B R E AR A — A AT B A 1 AR MR
Wi S PR R TRl AR Ag B > — 2%
NE+—HB| = F—NELA RBEE L
T T M A R R R A AR
F I H AR o B e AR — JLILILAEE A
RENPRHTLERGNHME - TEEE
TAHE -

Mr. Wang has also been serving as an executive director of Shanghai NextDV
Software Company Limited (_F IR A FR 2 Al ) since August 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Vice President

Mr. TIAN Yongsheng (FHK3%), aged 42, was appointed as our vice president
on August 27, 2018, primarily responsible for the marketing management,
design management, cost management and engineer management of our Group.
Mr. Tian has served as the vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings since
November 2017. Mr. Tian joined the Company in May 2016, and has served
successively as the vice general manager of Suzhou Real Estate Company, the
general manager of Suzhou Real Estate Company and the assistant to the chief

executive officer of Zhenro Properties Holdings.

Before joining our Group, Mr. Tian worked in several property developers in the
PRC, including the vice manager of the engineering and technical department
of Shanghai Dijie Real Estate Limited (£ ¥ H £ & 2 A BR 2 7) from
February 2003 to May 2007 and the manager of the engineering and technical
department of Suzhou Xuhui Real Estate Co., Led. (#f JH I B 3£ A FR A
F) of CIFI Group(ﬂﬂ f 4E [E) from May 2007 to November 2008, and he
served successively as the operation deputy general manager and project general
manager of Shanghai Longhu Real Estate Co., Ltd from November 2008 to May
2016. Mr. Tian graduated from Yangzhou University in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC in July 1999, where he majored in Architectural Engineering.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Chen Jian and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping, Yvonne are the joint company

secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Chen Jian (BRE2), the joint company secretary of the Company, joined
the Company in October 2015. He has served successively as deputy general
manager of treasury department, general manager of finance department of
the finance management centre as well as deputy general manager of the
financial management centre of the Company. Mr. Chen is currently the
general manager of the financial management centre of the Company and is

responsible for all the matters of the finance management centre.

Mzr. Chen started his career as an audit assistant with PwC Zhong Tian LLP,
Certified Public Accountants (¥ #E 7K % 1 K & &t il 35 %5 OT A R 2 7))
from August 2003 to October 2004. He was manager of audit department of
KPMG Huazhen LLP (5 J& 3 ¥k & 51 i 25 %5 FT ) from November 2004
to December 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked with Fujian
Sansheng Real Estate Development Co., Led. (188 = B/ s B S A BRA 7))
from April 2009 to September 2015 where his last position was chief financial

officer.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor degree in finance from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics ( 7 Bf 88 K2 in June 2003.

Ms. Kwong Yin Ping, Yvonne () HEH), the joint company secretary of our
Company. She is a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Ms. Kwong has extensive experience in providing company
secretarial and compliance services to numerous private and listed companies.
She is currently the named company secretary or joint company secretary of

several companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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I am pleased to present to you the business review of Zhenro Properties Group
Limited (“Zhenro Properties” or the “Company”, together with subsidiaries,
the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and its outlook for 2019.

RESULTS

2018 is a year of significance for Zhenro Properties. In addition to the successful
listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong for access to the
international capital markets at the beginning of the year, it achieved contracted
sales of RMB108.0 billion for the year, representing a year-on-year increase
of 54.0%. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the revenue of the Group
increased by 32.3% year-on-year to RMB26,453.1 million; the gross profit
margin increased by 1.7 percentage points year-on-year to 22.8%; the profit
attributable to owners of the parent was RMB2,120.7 million, representing a
significant year-on-year increase of 50.5%; core profit attributable to owners
of the parent was RMB1,952.0 million, representing a significant year-on-year
increase of 70.7%. The Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.15 per
share, which accounts for approximately 27.0% of the core profit attributable to

owners of the parent.

BUSINESS REVIEW OF 2018
Contracted Sales exceeding RMB100 billion

In 2018, China’s macro economy experienced a modest growth. However, with
the impacts from the uncertainty risk of the macro environment, the restricted
property policies, gradual exit of the monetized resettlement policy for shanty
town redevelopment and other factors, the property industry experienced a rise
followed by a decline. The Group has always adhered to the business principles
of prudence and steadiness. In 2018, it continued to achieve good results, with
the amounts of both contracted sales and contracted GFA sold reached new high
and the contracted sales grew significantly by 54.0% year-on-year to RMB108.0
billion, surpassed the 100-billion level of property enterprises and strengthened
its leading position in the industry. Such outstanding results represent a gift for

Zhenro Properties’ 20th anniversary.
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Enhancement of Nationwide Development

2018 is a year of enhancing the nationwide development for the Group. In
response to the rapid development of the transportation network, increasingly
porous geographic boundary and urban cluster development, the Group adopted
the strategy of “metropolitan circles focus and regional penetration”. During
the year, the Group has adhered to the business principles of steadiness and
prudence and has acquired 57 parcels of land with a total GFA of 11.14 million
sq.m. During the year, the Group expanded its businesses to Chengdu and
Chonggqing region and the southern China region, forming a business coverage
over six major regions in China. As at December 31, 2018, the Group had a
land bank of GFA of 24.56 million sq.m. in 28 cities in China, with the average
land cost being RMB4,491 per sq. m. The Group is optimistic about the
development potential and prospect of the property markets in the first- and
second-tier cities, with approximately over 70% of its land bank located in the

first- and second-tier cities.

Optimization of Corporate Structure to Enhance Operational

Efficiency

Upon surpassing the 100-billion sales, the Group strives to improve its
corporate structure by putting forward the principle of “optimization of
headquarter and enhancement of regional companies” to realize sustainable and
high-quality growth with the new business scale. On one hand, it integrated
existing business arrangements and established competent regional companies in
order to achieve optimization and concentration of management and resources;
on the other hand, it accelerated the authorization to regional companies
to support their rapid development and to improve the efficiency of project

execution, through constructing a fusiform management structure.

Optimization of Financial Structure and Expansion of Financing

Channels

A solid financial position is the basis for the Group to realize sustainable and
high-quality development. Therefore, during the year, the Group actively
reduced leverage and enhanced cash flow management to improve its financial
position. In addition, the Group took advantage of the listing platform to
expand financing channels in both domestic and offshore capital markets.
During the year, it successively issued senior notes in the amount of USD760
million, corporate bonds in the amount of RMB2,000 million and asset-backed

securities in the amount of RMB3,504 million.

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B &

Chairman’s Statement

ATE - MEF A=t AEEE
IS L R BRI B o Hop s TREES
SLRE R LR KR TP E 74.0% ~ B A& HE
WMEBELRREFTL L2605 ERMESN
RET- YR A By 7.8% o

[ B i I i T 8%

HTAEAR > AR 4 [ B S % o 5 T A B
T T SRR RS T - T A A
BRI LLE > J5 R 50K i #om S 1
BB ENF EH - AEML
[ O53E CR ]  AE A6 > A A A R
TR BBIIERN |- TEME |-
(R I=RAETRI > W 2B S
FE fh T o oo [ BR B L i R 5T
Rl EREEREGEMR TR — - Wil
e T N SN SN IR A 3
T a8 nT - BRNEE 55 4 28 1l 35 75 oK 4
MBI B[R] It 2 B B i i 4T
D3R N

AL R AR BE I A 45 1 2 2= M A
o A A E Oy A e - kol 2 AE
B O - RIS > AR
350 7 3 o RO AT THAR > R T IE 2
O] TIESE |~ TR I = R Y 6 R
g o

HEIH B ]

Wi 5 1F 58 b 2 (0 KA S AT SE 07 4R T
A £ [ 1 o 2D T R AT A LR T o R
F— \AENH o AR A B A TE A %5
B R PR A BOE - VR B T A 4%
AR o AR > A AR ST AR RN P I B
A S EESE Top 13 > THEE 4G
B J1Top 20058 181 ~ &4 2018 4F &
W EBEEER ] SBN RZRES
B AN 7 R4S ~ A0 T 2018 4E IF L
fié £ 1 %[ 2018 T fEE 3= 2 IFF5E

As at December 31, 2018, major financial ratios of the Group have significantly
improved, with the net gearing ratio decreased significantly to 74.0%, the cash
to short term debt ratio improved to approximately 1.2 times and the weighted

average financing cost of debt as of year end being 7.8%.

“Home Upgrade Master (B KAl ) and Products Upgrade

In recent years, it can be observed from the change in structures of the average
GFA per unit sold in China and the average floor area per household in the
major first-, second- and third-tier cities that the drivers for property demands
have gradually changed from end-users to upgraders. The Group has positioned
itself as “Home Upgrade Master”. During the year, it comprehensively
upgraded the residential product lines, thus forming three major residential
series, namely “Zhenro Mansion”, “The Pinnacle” and “The Habitat”, and
launched such products across China. Of which, “The Pinnacle” series was rated
as one of the “Affordable Luxury and Quality Residence Top 10”. Through
years of development, the Group’s “Home Upgrade Master” brand image is
well recognized in the market, which follows the general trend of change in the
structure of property market demand, and lays a solid foundation for product

price premium.

The Group believes “upgrade” means residential space upgrade as well as
improvement in the life-style and urban function modules. Based on such
philosophy, the Group also upgraded its commercial product lines during the
year, thus forming the three major commercial property series, namely “Zhenro

Center”, “Zhenro Street” and “Neighborhood”.

Awards and Recognition

With the larger scale and the improved industry position of Zhenro Properties,
the progress and achievements of the Group have been recognized by different
sectors. In June 2018, shares of the Company were included into the Hang
Seng Composite LargeCap & MidCap Index and eligible stocks under Shanghai/
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Southbound. During the year, the Group
was awarded the title of “China’s Top 13 Property Enterprises in Terms of
Brand Value”, was ranked 18th in “China’s Top 200 Real Estate Enterprises
in Terms of Comprehensive Strength” and was honored the awards of “Newly
Listed Shares with the Most Investment Value 2018” in Golden Lion Award
and the “The Most Popular New IPO Company” in Golden Hong Kong Stocks
Awards, and continued to be awarded the honors of “Excellent Employer 2018”

and “The Best Corporate Employer 2018”.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019

Looking forward to 2019, subject to the unchanged principle of “houses are built
for living in, not for speculation”, implementation according to local conditions
and classified guidance provide more autonomy for local governments. The
policy focus will be gradually shifted from housing price control to housing
price stabilization, meanwhile the promotion of long-term mechanism will be
accelerated. The Group believes that in 2019, the industry will be at a critical
point for reform, and expects that the formation of a long-term mechanism will
play an important role in stabilizing the long-term and sound development
of the industry, while sales decline and the increased industry concentration
are inevitable trends of the property market. Facing the industry changes, the
Group will be cautious as well as proactively seize development opportunities in

the new business environment.

The Group will actively improve the sales performance and maintain
appropriate scale advantages. The Group has set the contracted sales target of
RMB130 billion in 2019. Its sufficient and high-quality saleable resources will
support the Group in achieving a high-quality, sustainable and steady growth.
In addition, the Group will continue to enhance cash flow management, pay
attention to collection of sales proceeds and maintain sufficient capital liquidity,

so as to easily respond to possible fluctuations in the market.

Facing fierce competition in the land market, we will pay close attention to
market change, insist on the strategy of regional penetration, focus on first-
and second-tier cities and their metropolitan circles, so as to fully explore
opportunities. The Group believes that China’s urbanization will be a long-
term development, and the property demands will remain strong in booming
metropolitan circles and their surrounding core cities. The Group will
reasonably replenish high-quality land bank while ensuring sufficient cash flow,

so as to maintain and reinforce the competitive strengths of Zhenro Properties.

In terms of financial strategy, the Group will keep paying attention to
reasonable and sufficient liquidity, continue to utilize and enhance the resource
advantages of the listing platform, construct a domestic and offshore linked
platform, in order to realize more diversified financing, optimize debt structure
and lower financing cost. Meanwhile, the Group will take a cautious and
prudent project investment strategy, and further reduce its financial leverage

level through improving its operational results.
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The Group will cautiously develop new businesses while holding on to the main
business segment and expanding its business scale. We expects that demands
for transitional and interim housing will increase in core cities. Meanwhile,
considering the great support from local governments for the development of
the housing rental market, the Group will launch its first long-term rental

apartment, “Rongyu (48 )", in Shanghai.

Throughout years of development, it is demonstrated that the Group is able to
respond to industry fluctuations, seize opportunities, achieve growth and realize
a win-win situation with shareholders and employees, with its principles of
integrity, excellent quality and responsibility. Looking forward, we will actively
embrace the reform, improve our setup and ability through innovation of the
organizational structure, pay attention to the scale and operational effectiveness,

seize market opportunities, and create a win-win future with shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere appreciation
to all shareholders for their support, and all employees for their dedication
and hard work in the past year. We will continue to uphold our core value
of “prosperity from integrity” and achieve a sustainable and healthy growth,
so as to bring our shareholders economic returns and develop ourselves into a

respectful and sustainable competitive enterprise.
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As of December 31, 2018, the Group had a total of 145 property projects

located in 28 cities. Among these properties, 86 projects were developed and

owned by the Group and 59 were developed by the Group’s joint venture and

associated companies. The Group had a total land bank of approximately 24.6

million sq.m. in GFA, or approximately 13.0 million sq.m. on an attributable

basis, as of December 31, 2018.

Total land bank represents the sum of (i) total GFA available for sale and total

leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under

development and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development.

The following table sets forth details of the Group's land bank by regions as of
December 31,2018.

R
T TR
/W
B RACHH
Completed GFA E S ¥l T B U b1
HH%H Available for #EHA  Planned GFA AR AMNE
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
3 Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
Tk ik Ik /LS %
sq.m. 5q.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
AR 0 5 O A )
Properties developed by the Group and its subsidiaries
R=A# i
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
1 i Shanghai 5 222,907 56,686 233,337 512,930 21%
2 i Nanjing 6 92,121 660,185 — 752,306 3.1%
3 B Suzhou 7 207,957 571,088 - 779,045 3.2%
4 RIE Hefei 3 - 611,140 158,476 769,616 3.1%
5 EA Jiaxing 3 — 235,568 — 235,568 1.0%
6 M Chuzhou 1 — 146,737 - 146,737 0.6%
7 A% Lu'an 1 - 134,645 424,121 558,765 2.3%
Nt Sub-total 26 522,985 2,416,048 815,934 3,754,967 15.3%
JEAG/NEE Attributable
Sub-total 26 475,934 1,533,707 535,060 2,544,701
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e i RACHH 5
Completed GFA PEsh B A +ib A+ Ho ok
HE%E Available for BEWH  Planned GFA s AENEL I
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
il Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
Tk S/ES FIk S/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
g A A i
Middle China Economic Region
8 HM Zhengzhou 1 — 275,539 393,386 668,925 2.7%
9  RE Wuhan 1 39,550 128,885 26,308 195,243 0.8%
0 kY Changsha 4 83,835 558,085 666,427 1,308,346 5.3%
1 Eh Xiangyang 1 — 271,743 - 271,743 1.1%
/it Sub-total 7 123,385 1,234,252 1,086,620 2,444,257 10.0%
JEAE NG Attributable
Sub-total 7 121,345 749,428 915,041 1,785,814
o A Ol
West China Economic Region
12 W% Xi'an 2 104,689 203,589 - 308,278 1.3%
13 A Chengdu 1 — - 7,190 7,190 0.0%
/hit Sub-total 3 104,689 203,589 7,190 315,468 1.3%
JEAE Nt Attributable
Sub-total 3 104,689 203,589 4,674 312,952
R e
Bohai Economic Rim
14 RE Tianjin 5 60,283 337,554 200,113 597,949 2.4%
15 Jinan 2 — 354,605 — 354,605 1.4%
/it Sub-total 7 60,283 692,159 200,113 952,555 3.9%
TEAE /I Attributable
Sub-total 7 60,283 490,699 162,306 713,288
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Completed GFA (R LA F e +i i L
HE%E Available for BEWH  Planned GFA e EHNE AL
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
ol Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank"” Land Bank
Tk S/ES FIk SP/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
TR A
Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
16 M Fuzhou 18 81,134 2,143,262 246,313 2,470,709 10.1%
17 HA Nanchang 6 195,051 236,776 — 431,827 1.8%
18 HM Ganzhou 1 — 162,760 — 162,760 0.7%
19  HE Ji'an 2 — 386,623 — 386,623 1.6%
20 HH Putian 10 278,416 955,676 — 1,234,092 5.0%
21 @M Quanzhou 2 — 115,597 187,198 302,795 1.2%
2 HE Yichun 2 4,785 - — 4,785 0.0%
23 M Zhangzhou 1 — 156,817 — 156,817 0.6%
Nt Sub-total 42 559,386 4,157,511 433,510 5,150,408 21.0%
JEA N Attributable
Sub-total 42 559,377 3,285,572 339,912 4,184,861
H=A A
Pearl River Delta Economic Zone
24 fhil Foshan 1 — 175,261 190,795 366,055 1.5%
Nt Sub-total 1 - 175,261 190,795 366,055 1.5%
JE /NG Attributable
Sub-total 1 - 59,589 64,870 124,459
/et Sub-total 86 1,370,728 8,878,820 2,734,162 12,983,709 52.9%
T /NG Attributable
Sub-total 86 1,321,629 6,322,583 2,021,862 9,666,074
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T/
e i RACHH 5
Completed GFA PEsh B A +ib A+ Ho ok
HH%H Available for BEWH  Planned GFA fEfidaso  HEHWE ML
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
il Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank" Land Bank
Tk S/ES FIk S/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
KR 7 A 3 T A ] B 0 2
Properties developed by the Group’s joint ventures and
associated companies
R=A# i
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
i Shanghai 1 — 348,062 — 348,062 1.4%
R Jiaxing 4 — 625,695 — 625,695 2.5%
M Nanjing 3 - 731,515 — 731,515 3.0%
M Chuzhou 1 - 203,407 - 203,407 0.8%
25 TR Xuzhou 3 - 242,636 445,657 688,293 2.8%
B Suzhou 18 - 2,324,582 - 2,324,582 9.5%
I Hefei 2 — 448,952 — 448,952 1.8%
26 1EH Wuxi 1 — 206,471 — 206,471 0.8%
NE Lu'an 1 — 45,112 411,634 456,746 1.9%
/it Sub-total 34 - 5,176,432 857,291 6,033,722 24.6%
JEM/NGE Arcriburable
sub-total 34 — 1,440,563 263,019 1,703,582
o o A U
Middle China Economic Region
LIl Zhengzhou 1 — 227,181 — 227,181 0.9%
27 FFE Xuchang 1 - 79,481 — 79,481 0.3%
K Wuhan 2 — 423,565 545,571 969,136 3.9%
Nt Sub-total 4 - 730,227 545,571 1,275,798 5.2%
JEAG /NG Attributable
sub-total 4 — 251,379 210,033 461,412
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i A
Ok TR
[ VT
S 1L AP 5
Completed GFA (R LA F e T +i i L
HE%E Available for BEWH  Planned GFA s AENEL I
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
ol Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
S/ES S/ES FIk ik %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
o R A P i
West China Economic Region
28 HE Chongging 1 — 113,124 277,325 390,449 1.6%
Nt Sub-total 1 — 113,124 277,325 390,449 1.6%
JEA /N Attributable
sub-total 1 — 18,100 44,372 62,472
B A
Bohai Economic Rim
K Tianjin — 808,980 — 808,980 3.3%
it Jinan - 933,045 191,948 1,124,993 4.6%
/it Sub-total 10 — 1,742,025 191,948 1,933,973 7.9%
JE /NG Attributable
sub-total 10 - 372,886 03,343 436,229
Ty A
Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
M Fuzhou 3 - 530,697 - 530,697 22%
HE Yichun 1 - 37,032 89,207 126,239 0.5%
HE Jian 1 — 235,221 — 235,221 1.0%
HE Nanchang 4 - 608,416 — 608,416 2.5%
BN Ganzhou 1 — 446,264 — 446,264 1.8%
Nt Sub-total 10 - 1,857,631 89,207 1,946,838 7.9%
JERE NG Attributable
sub-total 10 — 628,872 31,223 660,095
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[V kikiil
S 1L RACHH 5
Completed GFA P S L3 i L
HH%H Available for BEWH  Planned GFA fEfidas  BENESL
Number of  Sale/Leasable GFA under of Future Total % of Total
il Regions Projects GFA  Development  Development Land Bank Land Bank
Tk S/ES FIk S/ES %
sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
AEBBGERER  Properties
e o ) % developed
H4 by the Group’s
joint ventures
and associated
companies 59 — 9,619,438 1,961,341 11,580,779 47.1%
ARG A B Properties
T A ) [ 4 developed
iiE/ES by the Group’s
(LEMRBRS)  joint ventures
and associated
companies on
an attributable
basis 59 - 2,711,801 611,989 3,323,790
A Total land bank 145 1,570,728 18,498,258 4,695,503 24,564,489 100.0%
R AR Total land
(RIEM BT H)  bank on an
attributable
basis 145 1,321,629 9,034,384 2,633,852 12,989,864

4 #t Annual Report 2018 31



+ A fit A
Land Bank

NTRESNEE _F - /ET A=+ —H The following table sets forth details of the Group’s land bank by projects as of

AR AR BT H 843 1 L R December 31,2018.
HER /5
Elies ] ThiR
et AR ActualEstimated g
i i Autributable  Primary lntended Use P Constructon Toul
Project Names (ity tothe Group  of the Project SiteArea Completon Date Land Bank”
s Fik
sm .
KERRAREA Propertes developed by the Group and
Rtz its subsidiaries
kAR Yangtze River Dela Economic Region
I B EEE-E Stngh Hogg oo M P | 1S e fE%E Restode 57 JITETS: I ] M
IE TAH-H Stanghai Honggao Zenro Mansio Phse S oo % Resdetl AL WA Deenba 20l 16478
B E R St Hongio o Cae S g FE Resl 10 mERf  Debodr) 106112
I | Bt Stanghai Hongito Zen Cne P | L Syl 005 SESONORRTE  RedlSOHOwd e 5058 WGERE  Drenber 6 13
i Eyn Stng Hongg T Cee P L g 1005 FESORORRTE  RedlSOHOwd e B0 IBEIR Nowake 18 338
} E5B8-H Shanghai Zhenro Ropl Kingdom Phse H Shaghi e fE%E Resdevl el 514 IgEs My 206 038
% 25H Stanghai Zhenr Ropl Kingdom Phse S o % Resdetl 34748 DTN Nownbe 207 %84
{ 5 -4 Stanghai Zew T o of o Pae | 1S 00y Resdenl 0 HigEe June 2016 1
% BEhH Shangh Zoor TheCoielof o P D S oo % Resdenil B A Jne 2018 BIG)
5. 284 Shngh e The e of st Pra3 L8 St 000 EIZESOHOAATE  Reitid el SOHO wd e 194 mER g i)
5 TEERE Shngh oo Fotigl P g e fE%E Restod el 50 MEENR Denber g 58
%580 Stanghai Zhenro Fontaineblea Phie 2 ﬂﬁ&hanghm gy [F£2E Residental real 32000 WELR  Noeber 2017 8097
I RR=E Shanghal Zhenro Fontainebleau Phase 3 L Shaghi 00y Resderl 317% MOEIE Fhnay 209 580
LA Shangh il 5147 590
§ EATRAILA Nanjing Zheo Riverside Wondeond i Naing 1oy fFEi3E Resdencia el T34 WERA Db 20 16848
ERLREAL Nag i e Lo Ef Nujng o (%58 Rt 16535 M5 oy 09 1894
§ HELEE: Naing Zheno Ryl Fre 7 Naing oy %58 Resdil e B3t nigEs A ey 019 150
) ERRILER AR Naging T Rovesie Vi Nassin Pl A~ % Nanjg ne {28 Reseil el B0l MER Dbl 50
LERIER o) Nejing Zhenro Rivrside Viee Mansion Pace B mNmﬁng 00 FESOHORATR RetalSOHO and office | WEDRE December 20 118557
U 8 ik Nasg Zeno Rive Marin 5 Najng w228 Resteileu ) mER e 115874
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4R i/
Elia ] T
et BRI EENE ActualEstimated g
i i Attributable  Primary lntended Use AT Construction Towl
Project Names (ity tothe Group  of the Poject SiteArea Completon Date Land Bank”
s Pk
s .
[T il Najg i South Riesie Pk B Najny wss {58 Restrde 18y mER e 991
EE L N bl 30 5306
n ENERES St T Royd Kindom §iff Suho o ke Resdl e 10754 WSFIE  Drenber 28 B
B RAER ER- Suahou Zhero Happines Town Phise i Sutw sl (228 Resdevl el {8866 ial Juy 2017 #0
BiEs B St T Hppines Tow P il Sutw sl % Reseid 581 I gl 1960
W TR R0 St T Top o i St ooz B Resenid £519 R s 1568
1y HMES A Suzhou Zhenro Maestic Garden B st oy 738 Residentia eal 931 WSEDR  December 18 5649
16 HHER iR Suon Yo Tog B Gt Hoe i Suho o % Resdenil 105,210 MBS Sqenber 00 g
1 ENREEEA St T Blion MrsinPrcel B il Sutw sl Reseid 4% IOEIR Novnber 29 B3
EfHRECHR Suon T Bilon Mesin P C i Suho s f% Resdenil 0Tk s A Yoy 209 %5
BkREE A St T Bilon Mrsin P A i St s FEOHOIEHE Rl SOHOmdofic % mER M 53459
18 HML% BlER Suuhou Zhenro Xiangshan Piedmont Garden Bl S 1y £ Residenta 39,09 MOEDE  December 209 5803
BN Suzhon Suboul {94319 905
1y AEER NAE i e i Yie At e 00 ZZERHORAATE  Reitid el SOHO d e 10705 1mésh My 20 D
I AT Hei iy 907 AR ek oy REEE Restoidel 111380 mER el
n ARERERR e Zewo Mo ¥ Heki o % Resdenil R mE0f Ok 2 NG
ARAEAGH Hee bl M35 636
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L ALEE THRE
et SR MHSRE N ActualBstimated g
i i Autributable  Primary lntended Use P Constructon Toul
Project Names (ity tothe Group  of the Project SiteArea Completon Date Land Bank”
it it
g .
0 BEOREREHEBNE oy Doy oo oty GukoMayie By 5 g a0 B Resdenl HY MENR Obe 126
B BREREER-MOE Jiing Zhenro Counay Garden Yo Manson £ Jarng s Resdential TH! WSELE  Nownbe 2019 16574
oo BREHESETADE o BT CodGundMasin BB Jag g 5% Residoral el 5,568 MOER Ouober g 11768
ERARAG Jsingibond 10§34 i
5 RN-ERR Chhon e Marsn B et iy BEIRE Resdailfeal 8867 mER mm 4475
RN Chatoibc] 081 7
% AREERESRERLR Lt Couney G e North P Mision 7% L ny FERE Resdeni el 199979 mE Rl 55,769
ARG LinSibae] 19919 5316
RGN Yangae River Dea Economic Regon Subtoed 274676 3754967
1385,551 254701

HHHREHE Middle China Ecnomic Region

v ONREEER Thenghon Chegnun Zenro Mansion O enghos s f% Resideni 16533 IERE  Drenbe 200 6895
BB Thengzhou Sb-oul 163330 468925
B REERRAAE W T Mo P A HE o o (%78 Resatilel B H9E9H Sqpenber 09 16055
RELEA Widin Zheo Moo Puce B RE Wik 1005 FESOHORRTE RedlSOHOwd e 950l mER Hhayi EIhGY
RENEH Waban Subtoe 4736 19543
D RUEEBERE-E Chagh TR Gone o 5 gt ooy %58 Resdil e i WOEA Mk 6 254
ROTE HEhE Changsh Zheno Fortune Cenrue S 2 b gt o fE%E Resdevl el / g5 A My 2018 3806
FOTE HEhd- Changsha ZhenroFortune Centure Noreh ] ol g o7& Real 919 s March 2020 119
FOER HERATE  ChuoghZheFore G Noh ) ol gt o % Resdi I WOEDE  Ouobe 209 395
W RUERRIEE ChungaRierie T Mo 5 Chngtu 005 FEEESORORRTE  Resdmid el OHOdofic 106652 MmENR Otk e
i ROIE hesms Chugsa o Pk 520 Chge 0 B REQHORETE  RedailrailSOHO d e 2% MEH  Seprmbe 201 41
R RUBE TR Changh i Zeno Masion P 0 gt g 5% Resdl e 108221 ISR Spember 218 155,08
RyEE TRH-R Chungh M Zeno Marsion P ol gt I Resdi I mER Ao 199%
FiAmAGH Chngh ol W 1308346

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited



-+ 3k

Land Bank
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i L] HhiE
et BRI EENE ActualEstimated g
ek i Aurbursble  Primary lotended Use ik Construction Toul
Project Names City the Group  of the Project SieArea  Completion Date Land Bank”
s Fik
s, 5
B EhEREXR Niangyang Changtou Zhenro Manson 28 Yingng s FERE Resdenti el 8554 MERE  Drenbe 20 N
SRARN Niongyang Sboual 8,554 N
SAREARE e China Economic Region St (60988 24457
By 178814
THADERE WestChina Bonomic Zone
W ERER IR Yo o Raiow Vil ik i g FEQHORETE Rl SOHOwdofie i WSESH A8 68
5 BRERE-A(RAQISS) Ninhon Voo Pae | Pl Q680 % Xim mos % Reidid AR WIFRR  Deente ) 15314
FRERR- (RHQIL45) Yoo Mo Pre | Pucd QU0385) % W ey FEQHORETE Rl SOHOwdofie 5 M5 Spenber 2o 97
Tl YinSobod 0165 88
0o HiREER Chengd g urd B Chagh 60 % Reseid U6 MENE  Oteld 7%
HE NG Chengdu Sub-tol 256 A
TRESERE West China Economic Zone Sub-toral 9438 315468
579 i)
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(1)

Total GFA of the Group’s land bank includes (i) GFA available for sale and total leasable
GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under development and (iii)
total GFA for properties held for future development. For projects not wholly held as 100%,

total GFA will be adjusted by our equity interest in the respective project.
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Contracted sales
Contracted sales (RMB million)
Contracted GFA sold (sq.m.)
Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.)

Selected financial information
(RMB million)
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Profit before income tax
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest
Core profit ¥

Core profit attributable to Owners of the parent

Total assets (RMB million)
Total liabilities (RMB million)
Total equity (RMB million)
Equity attributable to owners of

the Company (RMB million)
Current ratio @

Net gearing ratio @

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited

BETH=Z1T—HIL4EE

For the Year Ended
December 31, [F] b 5 )
—F - )N\E —ZF L  Year-over-
2018 2017 Year Change
108,017 70,153 54.0%
6,442,995 3,795,355 69.8%
16,765 18,484 -9.3%
26,453 19,995 32.3%
20,432 15,778 29.5%
6,021 4,217 42.8%
4,127 2,750 50.1%
2,233 1,521 46.8%
2,121 1,409 50.5%
112 112 —
2,064 1,256 64.3%
1,952 1,144 70.7%
BE+-HA=1+—H

As of December 31, /] Lt 5
—F - N\E ZFE L% Year-over-
2018 2017 Year Change
141,399 106,422 32.9%
116,920 94,198 24.1%
24,479 12,224 100.3%
13,529 8,179 65.4%

1.4 1.3

74.0% 183.2%
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Performance Highlights

BifaE -

(6V)

(2)

(3)

“)

BEALEREAR - AEEEREEAFNE
HBIE o O A B BB R KR RO AR R AR I R
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FE R R > S EAEBCE Y N M A

BN LR AR B B AR LA B B 1

AT B £ L0 3 S5 AP R A R 4 TSR
TTHEERFR LIRE 45 BT TR L 100 ©

Notes:

1

(2)

3)

)

Includes contracted sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated
companies. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is based on internal information of the
Group. Contracted sales data may be subject to various uncertainties during the process of

collating such sales information and is provided for investors reference only.

Defined as net profit excludes changes in fair values of investment properties and financial

assets and the relevant deferred taxes.
Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Net gearing ratio equals to total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by total

equity as of the end of the year and multiplied by 100.

4E # Annual Report 2018

45



BB i S A
Management Discussion

and Analysis

-
AT
ke
E

TiTl

LLEELEEEEEEREEE

£

e

T T T i

HEREEEREEY

{1 N T P P PR

EREWH 4 -

J I-F
L LR 1

T T T T T AT AT AT A




W B & o3 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

5 4 e B %

R

BE_F - NE+_A=+—HILEE
AEE SRS A HESFARK 108,017.1
HEITT > BoF—LFER L Es4.0%
T 3L i A S T A T B o O A A £
] 2t 25 $AF AL — TR Y B T B
ST ARG 0T EL

BE_ZFZ— ) EFE+_H=1T—HIFE
MEXHERLEORED Hhoda BT H
Ko M_E—LERMWA38H &I
KIBIMA69.8% - W2 _F— /\4E+_H
=+ —HILEE > ST EE (Y E
B # B NRE# 16,7650, F K> T
—E—LAER A AR 18,484 ©, 07
Koo WD FEREH N F— /ET I E
R R AIK 1) 7 58 T R A A A0 R SR TR 1 1
BHIEIMBTEL

FEVE = A N AE TR [~ g ek 7Y AL I~ v
B o 4 4 I~ 9 P D e
L8 [ oy A A B i e — AR A 4 B
HaEE S A EH R A 52.7% ~ 25.8% ~ 14.1% »
5.6% M 1.8% °

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted Sales

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group recorded contracted sales
of RMB108,017.1 million, representing a 54.0% year-over-year increase from
2017, which was primarily due to the increase in salable GFA accumulated by
the Group in first- and second-tier cities in the past several years by executing

the Group’s development strategies.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, total contracted GFA sold amounted
to approximately 6.4 million sq.m., representing an increase of approximately
69.8% from approximately 3.8 million sq.m. for the year ended December 31,
2017. Contracted average selling price (“ASP”) for the year ended December 31,
2018 was approximately RMB16,765 per sq.m., compared with RMB18,484
per sq.m. for the year ended December 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily
due to the increase in the proportion of GFA with a relatively lower ASP among
total contracted GFA in 2018.

Contracted sales from Yangtze River Delta Economic Region, Western Taiwan
Straits Economic Zone, Middle China Economic Region, Bohai Economic Rim
and West China Economic Region contributed to approximately 52.7%, 25.8%,
14.1%, 5.6% and 1.8%, respectively, of the Group’s total contracted sales in
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FREIIAEFER % — N EGHHEY
A (F o [ ) 7)o

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the Group’s

contracted sales in 2018.

BRI
BRIE wH JEpigA
BAEHE SRHERH THEH % of
Contracted ~ Contracted  Contracted  Contracted
GFA Sold Sales ASP Sales

ANRET
Tk ARKFFL Frk %
sq.m.  RMB’000 RMB/sq.m. %
RAL= A MG [ Yangtze River Delta Economic Region 3,112,677 56,976,995 18,305 52.7%
TRV TG o 266 1 [ Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone 1,870,108 27,817,506 14,875 25.8%
] R A3 [ Middle China Economic Region 1,021,540 15,225,145 14,904 14.1%
Bifhif 45 g Bohai Economic Rim 280,256 6,016,779 21,469 5.6%
] 1 837 [ West China Economic Region 158,415 1,980,705 12,503 1.8%
At Total 6,442,995 108,017,130 16,765 100.0%

BE-_F-NE+HA=+—HILERE
HFBA B NRWE 47,1495 B 80 > 1
TR -LERBENHANRYE393241 H
JG o W 19.9% o #% K5 BGKAE R £ H
ikl E S AR GURRET (I
A R A ST R RS 1 R B
B -

HEMECHER K

WE -/ ET_A=t—HILEE
HEYECHER I E S ARKH26179.3
HEIL W~ LERYMH AR
19,882.0 B E G R £131.7% > th A % H
i 4 ALEE Y 99.0% o R ZF — )\ - A
EEH Y N O MR B EL S AR
17,445 96,/ F )5k » g =& —HAER AR
We13,11670, 5 KN 33.0% » £ H
A A AR A — 20 SE S R 2 ) A BT

A AR 3 o R B R Y A N R e e BRI
K P P B o

Advances from customers amounted to approximately RMB47,149.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018, representing an increase of 19.9% from
approximately RMB39,324.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Such advances from customers represents the proceeds received from customers
in connection with our pre-sale of properties, which formed a solid basis for the

Group's future growth in recognized revenue.

Revenue Recognized from Sales of Properties

Revenue recognized from sales of properties increased by approximately
31.7% from RMB19,882.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to
RMB26,179.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, accounting for
99.0% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s recognized ASP from sales
of properties was approximately RMB17,445 per sq.m. in 2018, representing
a 33.0% increase from RMB13,116 per sq.m. in 2017, primarily due to the
Group's further penetration in Yangtze River Delta Economic Region and
Bohai Economic Rim, where prevailing market prices of properties are relatively

higher.
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The increase in revenue recognized from sales of properties was primarily due
to (i) more GFA completed and delivered as a result of the Group’s continuing

expansion, and (ii) an overall increase in the ASP recognized in 2018.

During the year of 2018, the properties delivered by the Group included
Nanjing Zhenro Royal Fame (B % IE %€ ¢ J# %), Nanjing Zhenro Splendid
Land 2 (B 5% IEZ o J#4R ) and Shanghai Hongqiao Zhenro Center (- ¥
UG o IEAEH0) and others. The following table sets forth the details of the
revenue recognized from the sales of properties of the Group by geographical

location for the periods indicated.

g%
HEmECEDLS & Tl

Recognized Revenue from % of Recognized Revenue CRNAERSEHH BlATHER

Sales of Properties from Sale of Properties Total GFA Delivered Recognized ASP
Ne#L/ AR/
ARETE ARHTE % AR &7 S /7 S 0/ S 0 ¥ 3
RMB000  RMB 000 7 % sq.m. sgm.  RMBSq.m.  RMBSq.m.
“E-NE CR-bE ZFAE CRbE ZEE ZR4E CENE ZERAR
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
RIL=ZANARE Yangtze River Delta Economic Region 20,541,020 10,087,757 785 08 854608 474639 24,036 21,254
T A Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone 4,426,047 7,373,677 16.9 371 478,171 849,565 9,256 8,079
GELE Middle China Economic Region 1,093,383 72,164 42 04 161372 15,464 6,776 4,667
R Bohai Economic Rim 94051 2094750 03 115 4019 171,606 23,400 13372
TR AR West China Economic Region 24,843 53,067 0.1 0.2 2,481 4,611 10,014 11,038
&t Total 26,179,344 19,882,015 100.0 100.0 1,500,651 1,515,885 17,445 13,116

PR TR T

FRff B W S48 i A M B AR I 2
B T > 9 A BT B B T (E A R
IR o F5AE A B W) SEMA T ARBER
W S T 7 PR A R A B9 2 BL R SE o

HEFE—/F+A=+—H A%EH
MERELECR TYWEARK 11,4335
HEIG WEE F—tFE+_H=1+—
H AR ¥ 16,103.1 A 8 o080 29.0% »
WO TERAR F-NAFLELR
T 2T AT HERR Y55 8 - AL E T
FERTA REAE Tk T A R TR

=,
=

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent completed properties remaining unsold at the
end of each financial period and are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an apportionment of

related costs incurred attributable to the unsold properties.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group had completed properties held for sale
of RMB11,433.5 million, representing a 29.0% decrease from RMB16,103.1
million as of December 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily due to the delivery
of the completed properties sold and the revenue recognised in 2018. The Group
has obtained the construction completion certificates in respect of all completed

properties held for sale.
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Properties Under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after completion.
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, capitalized interests and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development period and net
realizable value. Upon completion, the properties are transferred to completed

properties held for sale.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group had properties under development of
RMB63,588.0 million, representing an 55.8% increase from RMB40,802.8
million as of December 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to an increase

in the number of projects developed by the Group in 2018.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental Income

The Group’s rental income for the year ended December 31, 2018 was
approximately RMB104.8 million, representing a 46.9% increase from 2017.

The increase was primarily due to rental price raised in Putian Fortune Center.

Investment Properties

As of December 31, 2018, the Group had 10 investment properties with
a total GFA of approximately 738,410 sq.m. Out of such investment
properties portfolio of the Group, 6 investment properties with a total GFA of

approximately 463,713 sq.m. had commenced leasing.

LAND BANK

In 2018, the Group continued its nationwide expansion and entered into
13 new cities. It acquired a total of 57 new land parcels with a total site
area of approximately 4.0 million sq.m. and an aggregate estimated GFA of
approximately 11.1 million sq.m. The following table sets forth details of the

Group’s newly acquired land parcels during the year ended December 31, 2018.

Total contractual land premium for the newly acquired land parcels in 2018 was
approximately RMB53,802.5 million. The average cost of land parcels acquired
in 2018 was approximately RMB4,829 per sq.m.
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AEBERIB A HENYE  PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP AND ITS

SUBSIDIARIES
A LA
(R fhat
e
Tt )
it Average Land
A S Cost (Based on
Wi W/ AT Ew i1} o Estimated THHHESL  the Estimated
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA  Land Premium Total GFA)
ANRH#
Tk Frk  ARKOBT Frk
$g.m. $g.m. RMB million RMB/sq.m.
RIL= WA
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region
#H FRERE o SO et/ %% 7342 16,574 38 2,279
Jiaxing Jiaxing Zhenro Country Residential/retail
Garden Yue Mansion
LS RIS » LTI et/ %% 32,622 113874 1,520 13,348
Nanjing Nanjing Zhenro Residential/retail
River Mansion
LS TR et/ %% 26,829 109,991 1,140 10,364
Nanjing Nanjing Zhenro Residential/retail
South Riverside Peak
A& ALERRIES et/ %% 199,979 558,765 L1 1,995
BESALAE
Lu'an Lu'an Country Garden Residential/retail
Zhenro North Pheonix Mansion
Vil
Middle China Economic Region
M SEM A IE 48 feg 163,330 668,925 900 1,345
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengnan Residential
Zhenro Mansion
&Y RUIER ¢ %08 et/ %6 20275 216,671 768 3,544
Changsha Changsha Zhenro Pinnacle Residential/retail
$bi BBRE o ERN et/ %% 68,554 271,743 850 3,129
Xiangyang Xiangyang Changtou Residential/retail

Zhenro Mansion
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Wi W/ HE 4R LiE
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use
R A

West China Economic Region

A A ER IR lixd
Chengdu Chengdu Spring Rural Fields Residential
Rasan

Bohai Economic Rim

Kt KEMIESE (394 050) £z
Tianjin Tianjin Heshan Garden Parcel 39 Residential
it KHMIESE (384 H050) lixd
Tianjin Tianjin Heshan Garden Parcel 38 Residential

W= A

Pearl River Delta Economic Rim

{1l GAlIE P &2 N T et/ %%
Foshan Foshan Jinmao Country Residential/retail

Garden Zhenro Mansion

IE % b 7 42 B A5 fR A ®]  Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Site Area
Tk

sq.m.

24,639

25,428

38,606

109,246

it
ke A
Estimated

Total GFA

Fik

sq.m.

7,190

51,862

75,613

306,055

N £

Land Premium

ANRHEET

RMB million

41

270

423

3,004

T HBA
(Rt
ot

[ )
Average Land
Cost (Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
AR#
Fik
RMB/sq.m.

5,757

5,206

5,994

8,207
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i
City

TR A

=

/R AR

Land Parcel/Project Name

Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone

M
Fuzhou
i
Fuzhou
T
Pingtan
%

Ji'an

E
EES

Ji'an
[i1E
Nanchang
M

Zhangzhou

B

Quanzhou

it

Subtotal

TRl 201841 —025%

Fuging No. 2018-02

fRiE 20189003 8

Fuqing No. 2018-03
FEREE o ERA

Pingtan Lanwan Zhenro Mansion
HREREESR o TR
Ji'an Country Garden

Zhenro Luling Mansion
EREHELA o BRK 4
Ji'an Country Garden

Zhenro Luling Mansion Phase 2
i B LS

Nanchang Yuelong Mansion
M o E2TF

Zhangzhou Xihu Zhento Mansion
M o 83 o AN

Quanzhou Zhenro Baojia

Riverside Mansion

LT
Land Use

fre/ %6
Residential/retail
fre/ %4
Residential/retail
/%8
Residential/retail
fre/ %6

Residential/retail

et/ %%

Residential/retail

fre/ %6
Residential/retail
fre/ %4
SOHO M FH
Residential /retail/
SOHO and office
fre/ %6

Residential/retail

AT

Site Area

ik

sq.m.

68,079

64,728

55,161

74,388

78,938

36,587

59,573

59,486

1,213,790

fhst
A
Estimated

Total GFA

ik

5g.m.

208,036

198,796

194,792

193,387

193,236

102,938

156,817

187,198

3,892,463

=N £

Land Premium

AREFET
RMB million

1,008

900

1,163

739

776

376

1,548

500

17,079

P LA
(Rt T
i
[
Average Land
Cost (Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
ARHT/
ik
RMB/sq.m.

4,845

4,527

5,970

3,823

4,014

3,052

9,871

2,671

4387
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AEBEGBAEMBE S A%  PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP’S JOINT

SE7ES VENTURES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
FH A
(ebtlat
il
i)
Average
it Land Cost
BEGEE  LHMEE  (Basedon Heffimédi
Wi W/ EHAR Rt i} TR Estimated Land the Estimated  Attributable
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA Premium  Total GFA) Interest
AEH/
Tk Fik ARBEET Pk
RMB RMB/
sq.m. sq.m. million sq.m.

RIL=AMAEHE

Yangtze River Delta Economic Region

il FRMBADLEN fe/ % 58321 148,409 875 5,895 25.0%
Jiaxing Jiaxing Cifi Light Blooming Land ~ Residentialretail
Rl R o BRI b2/ % 67,91 202,686 1351 6,665 30.0%
Jiaxing Jiaxing Shimao Shining Times Residential/retail
i [kt 4! fE 35,01 113,680 1,340 11,787 33.0%
Nanjing Nanjing Long Yue Residential
S RIS « KEM fe/ & 90,981 362,036 240 6,187 49.0%
Nanjing Nanjing Zhaoshang Zhenro Residential retail

East Forwarding Mansion
A TN o Bt fe/ & 89,886 203,407 466 2091 30.0%
Chuzhou Chuzhou Hongyang Times Residential retail

Billow Courtyard
(3 PRI (342 030 fe/ % 60,584 113,040 37 3,067 33.0%
Xuzhou Xuzhou Splendid Mountain Residential retail

Mansion Parcel 34
(3 TR (35¢ 030 fe/ % 86,948 157,192 572 3641 33.0%
Xuzhou Xuzhou Splendid Mountain Residential retail

Mansion Parcel 35
(3 frHoE fe/ % 45,352 129,596 929 7,168 27.0%
Xuzhou Xuzhou Royal Palace Residential retail
(3l TRt FE/ %8 166,471 288465 830 2878 250
Xuzhou Xuzhou Phoenix Tree Residential/retail

Grand Mansion
B oM LMAE R b2/ % 46,004 119,180 803 6,741 33.0%
Suzhou Suzhou Shanghu Masterpiece Garden  Residential/retail
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i
City

B

Suzhou

BEM
Suzhou
B
Suzhou
BN

Suzhou

BN
Suzhou
BEM
Suzhou
B
Suzhou
BN
Suzhou
BEM
Suzhou
B
Suzhou
BN

Suzhou

NE

Lu'an

/R

Land Parcel/Project Name

BRI oA

Suzhou River City Fountainhead
Garden

B R

Suzhou Sea Times Garden

BeM b

Suzhou Lake Yue Billow Courtyard
BMER M ERA

Suzhou Flavour Yue Four
Seasons Garden

BEMSRAR KA

Suzhou Platinum Jade Mansion
BRI 2

Suzhou Girty Celebrity

BN EREE

Suzhou Cloudline Orchid Mansion
BMKREKE

Suzhou Cloudside Waterfront
LRl e

Suzhou Asia Mansion

e R

Suzhou Double Jade Mansion
BEMmbR

Suzhou Lake Havens

AT R B AR
Lu'an Country Garden Zhenro

South Pheonix Mansion

B
Land Use

/%8

Residential/retail

fit/ %4
Residential/retail
/%%
Residential/retail
fiz/%&

Residential/retail

fiz/%&
Residential/retail
fit/ %4
Residential/retail
/%%
Residential/retail
ik
Residential

iz
Residential

iz
Residential
ft2/%&/soHoMHFH
Residential/retail/
SOHO and office
fiz/%&

Residential/retail

LA

Site Area

ik

sq.m.

09,982

69,200

59,235

56,479

36,748

131418

59,065

34,801

05,378

17,361

62,563

199,748

fhat
BRSHE
Estimated
Total GFA
ez

sq.m.

122,187

186,396

158,809

123,795

85,047

240,548

173,310

93,575

198,023

49,402

206471

456,746

THh®ES
Land

Premium

ARWEAT
RMB

million

399

590

360

361

829

2,116

1,177

300

1,245

116

485

1,102

FH A
(e it
Edaed

[ EEY
Average
Land Cost
(Based on
the Estimated
Total GFA)
ANR#/
Pk
RMB/

sq.m.

3,209

3,163

2,305

2914

9,683

8,797

6,793

3,209

6,287

2344

2347

2413

Al i
Attributable

Interest

13.0%

145%

16.3%

20.0%

16.7%

33.3%

33.0%

13.8%

31.8%

33.0%

20.0%

33.8%
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FH LA
(Rt it
gl
ikt H)
Average
it Land Cost
agamE  thEs (Based on
Wi W/ ERAR L LHWEE  Estimated Land  the Estimated
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA Premium  Total GFA)
NERT/
Fik Tk ARKEET Fik
RMB RMB/
sq.m. sq.m. million sq.m.
B
Middle China Economic Region
B BB fEe/ % 20,994 79481 187 2357
Xuchang Xuchang Sky Yue Mansion Residential /retail
iE BRTRAR s 150,048 390,449 2151 5,508
Chongging Chonggqing Central Jade Cloud Residential
R ERE
Bohai Economic Rim
Xit REMLER: « TR (40 £ 50458 101,069 553 5412
Tianjin Tianjin Heshan Garden Parcel 41 Residential
K il fte/ % 52482 242,060 3,520 14542
Tianjin Tianjin Jiuhe Mansion Residential/retail
i A fte/%& 101,792 266,072 1,082 4,065
Jinan Jinan Jiu Long Mansion Residential retail
i L fbe/ % 51,597 177,130 1,945 5453
Jinan Jinan Pheonix First Mansion Residential/retail
i PN fte/ % 51,614 179,559
Jinan Jinan Tianchen Mansion Residential/retail
i bR fe/%& 40,843 107,966 1,499 6,123
Jinan Jinan Jinyue Mansion Residential retail
i LR it/ %8 46,541 136,843
Jinan Jinan Park Academy Residential/retail
i UGN fte/ % 84,949 257424 1680 6,526
Jinan Jinan Times Gloty Residential/retail
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Interest

33.3%

16.0%

50.0%

18.0%

33.0%

20%

15%

33%
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FH LA
(Hebith it
Tt )
Average
it Land Cost
MEEmE LS (Based on TEfh RS
i W/ ERAR L LWEE  Estimated Land the Estimated  Ateriburable
City Land Parcel/Project Name Land Use Site Area Total GFA Premium  Total GFA) Interest
NERL/
Fik Tk ARKEET Fik
RMB RMB/
sq.m. sq.m. million sq.m.
AT
Western Tarwan Straits Economic Zone
A MR RbR R fe/ % 77113 158,846 889 5,597 200%
Fuzhou Fuzhou Country Garden Residential/retail
Zhenro Yue Linglong
A AL RARR L fe/ % 131972 27,483 1,25 5,385 200%
Fuzhou Fuzhou Yango Poly Qixi Garden Residential/retail
A JEHEREER « ENT /%8 27,980 62456 147 2359 33.0%
Nanchang Nanchang Cifi Zhenro Country Residential/retail
Garden Cloud Over Mansion
A HASHEKERNERE /%8 65,914 122342 546 4463 30.9%
Nanchang Nanchang Zhenro Gemdale Residential/retail
Jinmao Yue Prime
i BNBRELSE X /%8 158977 446,264 1431 3,206 50.0%
Ganzhou Ganzhou Zhenro Country Residential/retail
Garden Cloud Piedmont
[iES HRERBALI o« SR /%8 82468 235,201 763 3,045 50.0%
Ji'an Ji'an Zhenro YangoWen Lan Residentialretail
Mansion
HE HEERESEMIT fe/ %k 55,027 12639 266 2,107 35.0%
Yichun Yichun Zhenro Jintou Residential/retail
Yuanzhou Mansion
it 2859842 7,249,564 36,723 5,066
Sub-total
&t 4073,632 11,142,027 53,802 4,829
Total
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 32.3% from RMB19,995.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB26,453.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018. Out of the Group’s total recognized revenue in
2018, (i) sales of properties increased by approximately 31.7% to RMB26,179.3
million from 2017, (ii) property leasing increased by approximately 46.9%
to RMB104.8 million from 2017, and (iii) provision of commercial property
management services increased by approximately 45.8% to RMB56.6 million
from 2017. The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue for each of the
components described above and the percentage of total revenue represented for

the periods indicated.

—F )\ &g
2018 2017
ek A AR W AR L)
A4k ke
% of Total % of Total Year- over-
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Year Change
AT % ANRWTIT % %
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 % %
L/ E S iR Sales of properties 26,179,344 99.0% 19,882,015 99.4 31.7%
A Rental income 104,812 0.4% 71,354 0.4 46.9%
YIEE A Property management income 56,610 0.2% 38,816 0.2 45.8%
BB UA © Management service income 112,340 0.4% 2,876 0.0  3,806.2%
st Total 26,453,106 100.0 19,995,061 100.0 32.3%
fftaE - Note:
1) FEAALE SSRGS AR S R (1) Primarily includes revenue generated from provision of design consultation services to a

B R -

joint venture and an associate.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales primarily represents the costs it incurs directly for the
property development activities as well as its commercial property management
and leasing operations. The principal components of cost of sales for property
development include cost of properties sold, which represents direct construction
costs, land use right costs and capitalized interest costs on related borrowings for

the purpose of property development during the period of construction.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately 29.5% from RMB15,777.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB20,431.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, primarily attributable to the increase in the
number of properties completed and delivered by the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2018.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increased by approximately
42.8% from RMB4,217.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to
RMB6,021.3 million, for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Gross profit margin was 22.8% for the year ended December 31, 2018,
increased from 21.1% for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to

the attributable to the increase in selling price of delivered properties.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
commercial compensation and others. Interest income primarily consists
of interest income on bank deposits. Commercial compensation primarily
represents forfeited deposits received from certain potential customers who did
not subsequently entered into sales contracts with the Group and penalties
received from certain customers due to their breach of sales or pre-sales

contracts.

Other income and gains increased by approximately 164.3% from RMB154.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB407.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to an increase in interest income
on bank deposits mainly as a result of the increase in the total amount of bank

deposits in 2018.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising, marketing
and business development expenses, sales and marketing staff cost, office
expenses, fees paid to our third-party sales agents, rental and other expenses
relating to sales of our properties and property leasing services.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
36.7% from RMBG641.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to
RMB876.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to
(i) the strengthened selling and marketing efforts to promote newly-launched
property projects in new cities and regions in which the Group operates as part
of its business expansion; and (ii) the expansion of the Group's in-house sales

and marketing team to support its business expansion in 2018.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of management and administrative
staff costs, entertainment expenses, office and meeting expenses, stamped duties
and other taxes, rental costs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
professional fees, travelling expenses, bank charges, listing expenses and other

general office expenses and miscellaneous expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 47.6% from
RMB664.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB980.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to the continuous
increase in the number of property projects under development and planned for
future development, which was in line with the Group’s business expansion,
resulting in increases in its management and administrative headcount,

traveling expenses and other miscellaneous expenses.

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by 9.9% from RMB40.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to RMB44.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2018.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain commercial properties on a long-term
basis for rental income or capital appreciation. Fair value gains on investment
properties decreased by approximately 59.1% from RMB353.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB144.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018.
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Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses for bank and other

borrowings net of capitalized interest relating to properties under development.

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 30.8% from RMB551.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB381.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to an increase in the level of

capitalized interests in 2018.

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures and Associated Companies

The Group's share of losses of joint ventures was RMB59.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018, decreased by 9.3% from RMB65.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to the continuous improvement

of the joint ventures’ profitability.

The Group's share of losses of associated companies was RMB98.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018, increased by 702.6% from RMB12.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in
the Group's relevant expenses resulting from the increased property projects

held by its associated companies.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent corporate income tax and land appreciation tax
(“LAT”) payable by the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 54.3% from
RMB1,228.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to RMB1,894.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to an increase in
the Group’s profit before tax. The effective corporate income tax rate was 27.5%
for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared with 28.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year increased by
approximately 46.7% from RMB1,521.4 million for the year ended December
31,2017 to RMB2,232.5 million, for the year ended December 31, 2018.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The industry in which the Group engages is a capital-intensive industry. The
Group met and expects to continue meeting its operating capital, capital
expenditure and other capital needs with proceeds from the IPO, proceeds
from pre-sale and sale of properties, loans from commercial banks, proceeds
from corporate debts or other securities offerings, and capital injections from
shareholders. The Group's need for short-term liquid capital is mainly associated
with loan repayments and capital needs for operation, and the Group's short-
term liquid capital comes from cash balance, proceeds from pre-sale and sale of
properties and new bank loans. The Group's need for long-term liquid capital
is associated with capital allocated for new property development projects and

repayment of long-term loan.

Cash Positions

As of December 31, 2018, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB22,539.0 million (December 31, 2017: RMB14,539.5
million), pledged deposits of approximately RMB963.6 million (December 31,
2017: RMB1,195.3 million) and restricted cash of approximately RMB4,866.0
million (December 31, 2017: RMB3,931.5 million)

Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB38,170.6 million, compared with RMB40,061.2 million as
of December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2018, the Group also had onshore
corporate bond and senior notes with carrying amounts of approximately
RMBS,321.0 million, compared with RMB2,002.4 million as of December 31,
2017. The Group’s borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi and US
dollars.
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The following table sets forth the Group’s total borrowings as of the dates

e indicated.
®wE+-H=1+—H
As of December 31,
S )UE SE L
2018 2017
ANREFIL ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
BRI K Current borrowings:
SRAT IR — KA Bank borrowings — secured 80,000 250,000
SRAT A5 3R — HEHL Bank borrowings — unsecured — 230,000
Ho A 3K — A Other borrowings — secured 5,292,063 4,106,572
A £ R — AR Other borrowings — unsecured 15,900 688,416
s R AR R R AR Plus: current portion of non-current borrowings
SRATAE R — AW Bank borrowings — secured 8,379,839 7,032,732
SRAT 15 R — HEHE A Bank borrowings — unsecured 832,643 33,400
HAl A 3K — A HR P Other borrowings — secured 5,185,600 7,660,637
oAb B — ST Other borrowings — unsecured 1,843,165 980,000
BT EE s A Senior notes and Corporate bonds 2,209,986 2,002,359
BV A5 2k 4l m Total current borrowings 23,839,196 22,984,116
FERIHAfE R Non-current borrowings:
SRAT A8 3K — A KA Bank borrowings — secured 11,655,746 7,722,609
SRAT & 3 — LI Bank borrowings — unsecured 583,896 1,705,859
HA A 3K — B K Other borrowings — secured 4,066,849 9,531,953
A 3K — SRR Other borrowings — unsecured 234,888 119,000
(oS YSYNGIk e Senior notes and Corporate bonds 6,111,026 —
JE BIHA 8 sk 4k A Total non-current borrowings 22,652,405 19,079,421
A5t Total 46,491,601 42,063,537
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The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group's total

borrowings as of the dates indicated.
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As of December 31,
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2018 2017
ANRETFIT ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
JHN — N EE Repayable within one year 23,839,196 22,984,116
SRS A Repayable in the second year 13,309,982 13,585,642
JHN R HARNEE Repayable within two to five years 8,809,949 5,493,779
R R Repayable more than five years 532,474 —
N Sub-total 22,652,405 19,079,421
A5t Total 46,491,601 42,063,537
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Additionally, as of December 31, 2018, the Group issued varieties of corporate
bond and unsecured senior notes. Please refer to “Bond Offerings” below for

more details.

Borrowing Costs

The Group's weighted average effective interest rates on bank and other
borrowings were 7.8% for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared with
7.3% for the year ended December 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to

an increase in the overall market interest rate.

Charge on Assets

As at December 31, 2018, the Group's asset portfolio which includes
investment properties with carrying value of RMB4,005.1 million (December
31, 2017: RMB5,742.7 million), prepaid land lease payments with carrying
value of RMB344.0 million (December 31, 2017: RMB2,350.4 million),
properties under development with carrying value of RMB48,508.9 million
(December 31, 2017: RMB26,640.9 million), completed properties held for sale
with carrying value of RMB1,503.5 million (December 31, 2017: RMB2,415.0
million)and restricted cash amounting to RMB298.0 million (December 31,
2017: RMB425.0 million) were pledged as security for the Group’s secured

borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which
the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions is
Renminbi. Any depreciation of Renminbi would adversely affect the value of
any dividends the Group pays to shareholders outside of the PRC. The Group
had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group
to foreign exchange risk. The Group currently does not engage in hedging
activities designed or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group
will continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the Group's

cash value.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group's current ratio was 1.4 as of December 31, 2018; increased from 1.3

as of December 31, 2017, primarily due to the increase of current assets.

The Group’s net gearing ratio decreased from 183.2% as of December 31, 2017
to 74.0% as of December 31, 2018, primarily due to the Group’s continuous

efforts to manage its financial leverage to achieve sustainable growth.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the mortgage
loans they provided to the Group’s customers in order to secure the repayment
obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are issued from the date
of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i) the
transfer of the relevant real estate ownership certificates to the customers, or (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans by the customers. If a purchaser defaults on
the mortgage loan, the Group is typically required to repurchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the mortgagee
banks will auction the underlying property and recover the balance from the

Group if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds.
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As of December 31, 2018, the material contingent liabilities incurred for
the Group’s provision of guarantees to financial institutions in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers were approximately
RMB32,850.0 million, compared with RMB21,961.4 million as of December
31, 2017.

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
purchasers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate, had a

material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. The Group believes that no liabilities
resulting from these proceedings will have a material and adverse effect on our

business, financial condition or operating results.

Commitments

As of December 31, 2018, the Group’s property development expenditures it
had contracted but yet provided for was RMB13,396.1 million, compared with
RMB9,168.6 million as of December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group’s operating lease expenditures was
RMB113.9 million, compared with RMB89.6 million as of December 31, 2017.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as of December 31, 2018,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance leases or hire

purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

BOND OFFERINGS

The Group continuously looks for financing opportunities to support its
business development. These opportunities include the raising of funds through

asset-backed securities programs, corporate bonds and other debt offerings.
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In April 2018, the Group issued the asset-backed securities through a private
placement in an aggregate proposed principal amount of approximately
RMB2,421.0 million. The securities was issued in two tranches. The first
tranche being the senior tranche of the securities with an issue amount of
RMB2,300.0 million has a three-year tenure and a coupon rate of 7.3%. The
second tranche being the subordinated tranche of the securities with an issue
amount of RMB121.0 million has a three-year tenure and has no fixed coupon

rate and the maturity date is April 2021.

In May 2018, the Group issued a one-year senior notes of US$160.0 million
through a private placement, with an annual interest rate of 8.5% and maturity
date of May 2019. The entire outstanding principal amount of these notes
were repurchased by the Group in February 2019. For details, please refer to

“Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

In June 2018, the Group issued senior notes of US$250.0 million through
public offering. The notes will bear interest at a rate of 10.5% per annum due
June 2020.

In September 2018, the Group issued non-public corporate bond with a total
principal amount of RMB2 billion for a term of three years at an annual coupon
rate of 7.5% for the first two years, with the right to adjust the coupon rate at
the end of the second year.

In October 2018, the Group completed the repurchase of the corporate bond
issued in October 2016 (the “2016 Corporate Bond”) in an aggregate principal
amount of RMB892.4 million. The 2016 Corporate Bond was issued to
qualified investors in an amount of RMB2.0 billion with a three-year term at
a coupon rate of 6.4% per annum. The coupon rate was adjusted from 6.4% to
7.2% for the last year of the term of the 2016 Corporate Bond. Immediately
following the repurchase of the 2016 Corporate Bond, the aggregate principal
amount of the 2016 Corporate Bond remains outstanding is RMB1,107.6

million.

In October 2018, the Group issued a 27-months senior notes of US$280.0
million through public offering, with an annual interest rate of 12.5% and

maturity date of January 2021.

In addition, in October 2018, the Group issued senior notes of US$70.0 million
through public offering. The notes will bear interest at a rate of 12.5% per

annum due January 2021.
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In November 2018, the Group issued the asset-backed securities in an aggregate
proposed principal amount of approximately RMB1,084.0 million. The
securities was issued in two tranches. The first tranche being the senior tranche
of the securities with an issue amount of RMB1,029.0 million has a two-year
tenure and a coupon rate of 7.2%. The second tranche being the subordinated
tranche of the securities with an issue amount of RMB55.0 million has a two-
year tenure and has no fixed coupon rate and the maturity date is November
2020.

The Group intends to use the proceeds from these bond offerings to repay
external borrowings and may also consider other debt offering plans in the near

future.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

During the year ended December 31, 2018, there was no significant investment
held by the Group.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group currently has no plan to make any significant investment or
acquisition of capital assets but will continue to seek potential investment or

acquisition opportunities according to the Group’s development needs.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 2018, the Group had a total of 2,167 employees. The

Group offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. It contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity

insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group has the following material subsequent events:

In January 2019, the Group issued senior notes of US$200.0 million through
public offering, with an annual interest rate of 8.6% and maturity date of
January 13, 2020.

In January 2019, the Group issued additional senior notes of US$150.0 million
through public offering. The additional senior notes will bear interest at a rate
of 10.5% per annum due on June 28, 2020 and will be consolidated and form
a single series with the 10.5% senior notes due 2020 in the aggregate principal
amount of US$250.0 million issued on June 28, 2018.

In February 2019, the Group issued senior notes of US$230.0 million through
public offering. The notes will bear interest at a rate of 9.8% per annum due
August 20, 2021.

In February 2019, the Group repurchased the entire outstanding principal
amount of the 8.5% senior notes due 2019 issued in 2018 (the “Notes”). After

completion of the repurchase of the Notes, the Notes will be cancelled.

In March 2019, the Group issued senior notes of US$200.0 million through
public offering. The notes will bear interest at a rate of 9.15% per annum due
March 8, 2022.

In March 2019, the Group issued senior notes of US$420.0 million through
public offering. The notes will bear interest at a rate of 8.65% per annum due
January 21, 2023.

The Group intends to use the proceeds from these bond offerings for refinancing
its existing indebtedness and may also consider other debt offering plans in the

near future.

Other than the abovementioned matters, no material events were undertaken by
the Group subsequent to December 31, 2018 and up to the date of this annual

report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Group completed its IPO and was successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on January 16, 2018. Net proceeds from the IPO (including
the exercise of the over-allotment options), after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses in connection with the Offering

which the Company received amounted to approximately HK$4,392.3 million.

During the year of 2018, in a manner consistent with the proposed allocations
in the prospectus, the Group utilized the proceeds from IPO, of which
approximately RMB902.1 million was used to repay borrowings falling due
and approximately RMB753.8 million was allocated to project companies as
general working capital. Among the remaining proceeds used for construction
and development of property projects, RMB573.1 million was paid, while the
remaining will be paid year by year according to the progress of construction in

the following years.

As of the date of this annual report, net proceeds not utilized are held in bank
deposits and it is intended that they will be applied in the manner consistent

with the proposed allocations in the prospectus.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of
the Group is property development, property leasing and commercial property

management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement,
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 to 25 and
pages 46 to 70, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 46 to 70 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended December 31, 2018

and up to the date of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty as
to the acquiring of land reserves for development in desirable locations at
commercially acceptable prices; (ii) uncertainty as to business expansion into
new geographic locations; (iii) uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient funding for
land acquisitions and future developments; (iv) risks related to the fluctuation
of profitability of property projects; (v) risks related to obtaining administrative
certificates; (vi) risks related to the performance of the PRC property markets;
(vii) risks related to the government policies and regulations regarding the PRC
property industry; and (viii) risks related to the increasing raw materials price

and labor costs.
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The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
financial risks of the Group is mainly foreign exchange rate risk. These financial
risks, and the related risk management policies and practices used by the Group
are discussed in note 46 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimize its
environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations. The measures we take to ensure our compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include: (i) strictly selecting construction
contractors and supervising the process of construction; (ii) applying for review
by the relevant government authorities in a timely manner after the project
is completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment
and designs. We also take voluntary actions with respect to environmental
protection and make energy conservation and emission reduction as primary

considerations when designing our property projects.

None of our properties had received any material fines or penalties associated
with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the year ended
31 December, 2018.

Our 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report shall be published

separately.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group had
complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects and have
obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant

regulatory authorities.

Relationship with Employees

We believe high-quality employees who value our corporate culture are essential
elements to promote our sustainable growth. We intend to attract and retain
skilled and talented employees from reputable universities of PRC through
various initiatives, including our creative trainee programs, competitive

compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report - Employees and

Remuneration Policies”.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-term
business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses. We reinforce
business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive

and effective manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the section

headed “Directors’ Report - Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers satisfaction with our services and products has a profound effect on
our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant communication with
our customers and potential customers to uncover and create customer needs
and help customers make informed decisions. Identification of customers’ pain
points alongside grasping the market trend are critical for the Group to timely

adjust our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

For details regarding our major customers, please refer to the sections headed

“Directors’ Report - Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 and the state
of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 113 to 311.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.15 per share
(equivalent to RMBO0.13 per share), amounting to approximately a total of
HK$618.45 million (or approximately RMB527.66 million) for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (the “2018 Proposed Final Dividend”), representing
approximately 23.6% of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The 2018 Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held
on May 24, 2019. The 2018 Proposed Final Dividend will be declared and paid
in Hong Kong dollars.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, May 24, 2019. A notice
convening the AGM will be published on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to the Shareholders in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of
determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 21, 2019 to Friday,
May 24, 2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote
at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, May 24, 2019, all transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Monday, May 20, 2019.
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Subject to the approval of the 2018 Proposed Final Dividend at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Thursday, May 30, 2019 to Monday, June 3, 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
qualify for the 2018 Proposed Final Dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Wednesday, May 29, 2019. The 2018 Proposed Final Dividend, if approved by
the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, will be paid on or about
Wednesday, July 10, 2019 to those shareholders whose name appear on the
register of member of the Company on Monday, June 3, 2019.

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2018

are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company

during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018 are set out in

Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2018
amounted to approximately RMB10.5 million.
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Directors Name

wAIBS A

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi

MREA RS e

Mr. LIN Zhaoyang

EAFEE

Mr. WANG Benlong

BRA fe e

Mr. CHAN Wai Kin

B 2 58 S 2
Mr. OU Guogiang

[k 2 S A
Mr. OU Guowei

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 312 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the

listed securities of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018 and

up to the date of this annual report were:

Position
WRREHPATEDSR

Chairman of the Board and executive Director

ﬁ %%W;?—AEAE TLHEHMD)

AT F—NET A AN H hATBURERE B BT BURE > Wk =
F— /NN L HEHE

Executive director (resigned on August 27, 2018)

Re-designated from chief executive officer to joint chief executive officer on
February 28, 2018 and resigned on August 27, 2018

FTBCRE AT E S O =% — /\E T H /R S W07 47 B
B IO — & — N B B AT B I R =
HZ P NBEZAL B TES)

Chief executive officer and executive Director (appointed as the joint chief
executive officer on February 28, 2018 and re-designated as chief executive
officer on August 27, 2018 and an executive Director on March 28, 2018)

HATES - BB AE (R —F— /ELA =S ERERATE
BRI W —F— /S — A+ IR R AT B KR L)

Executive Director, vice president and chief financial officer (appointed as
the executive Director and vice president on September 3, 2018 and the chief
financial officer on November 15, 2018)

FHATES
Non-executive Director
FEMATHES

Non-executive Director
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Mr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
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Mr. SHEN Guoquan
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Position

B IEATE S

Independent non-executive Director

WS IR ATE F

Independent non-executive Director

WS IR ATE S

Independent non-executive Director

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr.Huang
Xianzhi, Mr. CHAN Wai Kin, Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and

Mr.WANG Chuanxu shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of Mr.Huang Xianzhi, Mr. CHAN Wai Kin, Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE
Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG Chuanxu has an unexpired service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory

obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”

in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’
Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

4 )t Annual Report 2018

77



78

HEFHREE

Director’s Report

HE4 Bd m AT BON BUR AR 2 vl 5
JUR WG 5 B RY Je Ay ~ BB B 4 B
Rt vl 2 B IR Y

MoE— N+ H=+—H  EHFILA
O T R AT BON B AR 2 R sl AR B
B G 3% a8 05 S B e 1) 5 X ov ) 1 ik
3~ FH B B 0 B F AR 5 v A AR R R I
W B 90 55 35 2 MR A A ) BT L I B
oM TR Bk o SRR b TR AT AN AT
75558 Gy R e sy I (T AR e <E I D) 20 &
AR ) IS AT RE SR SR B R

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

A2 F] B
AL E AW WEXH 4 L
R 4 Approximate
# T B B4 Name of Group G4 RERR R O ety ¥ H percentage of
Name of member/associated Capacity/ Number of  shareholding in
Director/Chief Executive corporation Nature of interest"” Shares our Company
Al A A ] LRt 2 DN 4,569,000 0.11%
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi The Company Beneficial owner
EARESEE AL ] Ha A A 2,436,000 0.06%
Mr. WANG Benlong The Company Beneficial owner
Wk 2 5 S AL H SR A O 217,800,000 5.28%
Mr. OU Guogiang The Company Interest in controlled
corporation”
W £ 1 AL ] L L 217,140,000 5.27%
Mr. OU Guowei The Company Interest in controlled
corporation”
B3 - Notes:
(1) %ﬁu%ﬂ*&ﬁfiﬂ]ﬁﬂ?% ° (1) All interests stated are long positions.

2 W% 217,800,000 BB 4 7 B RoSheng Limited
Fifi o

(G) % 217,140,000 B B £ & ¥ B Warm Shine
Limited £547

4) [k | 7 5C 4= %5 RoSheng Limited 19 ME— 710 [ B
SHEAT N - HARERE 5 S B ] RS
Ji% RoSheng Limiced HEAT 4 I RC 0 AT BE 4 o

(5)  BRBIESEA: B Warm Shine Limited [ME— 575 &
B A A - EARIERE 7 O B il > bl
F41% Warm Shine Limiced HEA HE 4 09 B0 R4
LS

(2) These 217,800,000 Shares are all held by RoSheng Limited.

(3) These 217,140,000 Shares are all held by Warm Shine Limited.

(4) Mr. Ou Guogiang is the sole legal and beneficial owner of RoSheng Limited and is deemed

to be interested in the Shares which are interested by RoSheng Limited under the SFO.

5) M. Ou Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Warm Shine Limited and is deemed

to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Warm Shine Limited under the SFO.
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EUHERE A A A R4 R 5 % 00 e 191 5

352 G K2 7 0% W] ZH A B B RC A T R
ORE 2 BOR A o BUZEARR AR E ST QI g AR
23 A B A T R AR BOR AT

32 2B R B 3T Al N 8 e Ay B i
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, none of the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any of the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2018, the following persons (other than the Directors or the

chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the Shares

or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

11565 336 0 K sE A 2 W A7 B 8 we i B Company under section 336 of the SFO:
OB Y HE 25 R AT
RELSMEA E 43 L
P A By sws Z M H Approximate
B k% % B 25 1 Number of Shares or percentage
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” of interest
BRoR SR SEE @ ik Wt 2,384,957,000 (L) 57.85%
Mr. OU Zongrong ? Interest in a controlled
corporation
VN E e P e BB 2 2,384,957,000 (L) 57.85%
Ms. LIN Shuying® Interest of spouse
HiaafEA A 2,278,525,000 (L) 55.26%

RoYue Limited

Beneficial owner
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IR

Name of shareholder

RoSheng Limited
Warm Shine Limited

o B By A R A PR
China Orient Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

o B 1 2 A B R A A PR
China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

REZS WA 43 L

PR A By SR 22 B H Approximate
REZS PR Number of Shares or percentage
Nature of interest securities held” of interest
JEE L7 ZEDN 217,800,000 (L) 5.28%
Beneficial owner
SEE 7 ZEDN 217,140,000 (L) 5.27%
Beneficial owner
Ry B ST RE SR RO A 575,000,000 (L) 13.95%
Person having a security
interest in shares
P B AR @ 171,600,000(L) 4.16%
Interest in a controlled
corporation®
A B v AT SIS AR £ B N 440,000,000 (L) 10.67%

Person having a security

interest in shares

it
(1)

(2)

(3)

“4)

FHILIEARA LSRR R -

% 7% 55 2,384,957,000 B & 13 7+ 2,278,525,000
M 15 H RoYue Limiced 5 A » 106,404,657 B M 17
# RoJing Limited A7 » K 27,343 A3 HH RoJing
ZR (PTC) Limited ¢ A o B 7% 4 % 4 S5 RoYue
Limited * RoJing Limited&Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited
MME— Ak RE A A > I > BRI A b
H 5 A RoYue Limiced 5 47 19 2,278,525,000 % i
it ~ RoJing Limited ¢ A 1 106,404,657 i Bk 7 &%
RoJing ZR (PTC) Limited £§45 1 27,343 LM 49 rh 4
Fittids o

AR 5 o 2 S 1 B A o MR O S B
55 XV BB > BRI £ T B A e A B A
it 4 R ] 0 e o A HE A

Courage Yard Limited Ff Robust Strength Limited
A EHEA > T Robust Strengch Limiced Ff HUFEL R
J5 () PRI BRA Rl 2 B8 - LR IR
(7 1 ) < 28 P A R )l R 8 O 1 A B
N E A EHEAT o 1S R I AT PR
W7 A RS R B 52,749 HE i o
MR I T B et - b B ROy B AT
FR A 7] 4 45 2 1% Courage Yard Limited Jo 5B a5
I (B ) R BT PR R A 9 00 o e A HE

e
i ©

Notes:

@

(2)

(3)

“)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

These 2,384,957,000 Shares represent 2,278,525,000 Shares held by RoYue Limited,
106,404,657 Shares held by RoJing Limited and 27,343 shares held by Rojing ZR (PTC)
Limited. Mr. Ou Zongrong is the sole legal and beneficial owner of RoYue Limited, RoJing
Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, therefore Mr. Ou Zongrong is deemed to be
interested in 2,278,525,000 Shares, 106,404,657 shares and 27,343 Shares held by RoYue
Limited, RoJing Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, respectively.

Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. Ou Zongrong. Under Part XV of the SFO, Lin Shuying
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Ou Zongrong is

interested.

Courage Yard Limited is wholly-owned by Robust Strength Limited which in turn is
wholly-owned by Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd, which in turn is owned as to 52.74%
interest by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Courage Yard

Limited and Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, our Directors or chief
executive are not aware of any other person, not being a Director or chief
executive of our Company, who has an interest or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2018, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from its top
five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue, and the purchases

from its top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of total purchase cost.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the
Group's risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of
the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights under the

laws in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s

securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at December 31, 2018, the Group employed a total of 2,167 full-time
employees (December 31, 2017: 1,899). The increase in the number of

employees was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group’s business.

We actively recruit skilled and qualified personnel in local markets through
various channels, such as on-campus recruitment programs, recruiting
firms, internal referrals and advertisement on the Internet. We particularly
value employees who demonstrate loyalty to their work and who values our
corporate culture, as well as those with relevant working experience. Our
continued success and growth, to a considerable extent, depends on our ability
to identify, hire, train and retain suitably skilled and qualified employees,
including management personnel, with relevant professional skills. Therefore,
we have established systematic training programs for our employees, such as
management as well as marketing and sales personnel, based on their positions

and expertise.

We enter into labor contracts with all of our employees. We offer our employees
competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries, discretionary
bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end bonuses. To incentivize
our employees and promote the long-term growth of the Company, we have
conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the sections headed “Director’s

report — Share Option Scheme”.

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, we are subject to social

insurance contribution plans.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in Note

6 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On December 15, 2017, a share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally approved and adopted by the then
shareholders of the Company and its implementation is conditional on the
listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising the Participants (as defined below) and retaining
employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work towards enhancing

the value of the Company and promote the long-term growth of the Company.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption date, being December
15, 2017 to December 14, 2027, to grant options to any director or employee
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participant”). As of December 31, 2018, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 8 years and 11

months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may
be granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of the Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim
period; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to publish its interim or annual
results announcement under the Listing Rules; and ending on the date of actual

publication of such results announcement.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
option schemes existing at such time of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 400,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as of the date of the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange, the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”), which represents 9.7% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the annual report. The Company may renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit at any time subject to prior shareholders’ approval but
in any event, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the renewal of the

Scheme Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to any Participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12 month period shall not
at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise separately
approved by shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his

associates abstaining from voting.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period and in accordance with the vesting
schedule and other terms specified in the offer. No option may be vested more
than 10 years after the date of grant. Subject to earlier terminations by the
Company in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall

be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee before the

options can be exercised.
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The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to a

Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a

business day;

U the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the Offer Date; and
o the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant,

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of

an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in

the prospectus.

As at December 31, 2018, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted
by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

A resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2018, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
to shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB4,473.2

million.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB38,170.6 million, compared with RMB40,061.2 million as
of December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2018, the Group also had onshore
corporate bond and senior notes with carrying amounts of approximately
RMBS,321.0 million, compared with RMB2,002.4 million as of December 31,
2017. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi and US
dollars.

The details are set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and

Capital Resources — Indebtedness”.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies
or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any

equity-linked agreement.

IE % M ZE % B A R A A Zhenro Properties Group Limited



=R E

Director’s Report

R BT PSR R 4

TAAAE R B > AR B JE 4w
R LA A0 T AR Y ]
BRLAR % ) J L T o 2 ) ) SR 5 A B T
IS 3BE T+ 1) SE55 FP R A RE SR T ZE AR L i
BRI A%

HEHE Lol B S8 13.51B(1) Bt
B R AT BN B e R 5
o

BT 3 2 % AR T 8RR | — 0 BT P R
Gh o BARF T AR H R I
HAbARYE LTRSS 13.51B(1) RH T 9075
) o A PR S ) o

% B¢ JBe AR H 08 A 8L T 7 ol

Ty FR o) BELAS 2 W) ) S5 3 T - 2 SRR
SRR T~ KRR e KRR S A
RoYue Limited > RoJing Limited >~ RoSheng
Limited X Warm Shine Limited ([ % A%
RN =F—LFE+ A+ HF LA
AT S - WNRS I <K (S RO
) o MR TR - BB RK G
(e AL 46 ) R BRA SR M SE B T > Aok
FRFFHENALFAME —F — L4
T A AN H R i E AR B R
A B AR | — B T S 38 3248 170 B

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in businesses,
which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical details which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since

the date of the 2018 interim report of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, our controlling
shareholders, namely Mr. Ou Zongrong, Mr. Ou Guogiang, Mr. Ou Guoweti,
RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited, RoSheng Limited and Warm Shine Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of non-competition in
favor of the Company on December 15, 2017 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of the Group,
and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section
headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated December
28, 2017.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to the
Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed of Non-
competition (the “Undertakings”) during the year ended December 31, 2018
(the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling Shareholder
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period for the
annual assessment, the independent non- executive Directors noted that: (a)
the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully complied with the
Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no new competing business was
reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the Relevant Period; and
(c) there was no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the
Undertakings being questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the
Undertakings were complied with by the Controlling Shareholders in the

Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices, pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors liabilities in respect of

legal actions that may be brought against the Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Ou Zongrong and Mr. Ou Guogiang are the substantial Shareholders of the
Company. Zhenro Group Co., Led. ((IEAE B A R/AF]) (“Zhenro Group
Company”) is owned as to 91.90% by Mr. Ou Zongrong and as to 8.10% by
Mr. Ou Guogiang, and hence an associate of substantial Shareholders of the

Company and thus a connected person of the Company.

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a
framework agreement in relation to the provision of pre-delivery property
management services with Zhenro Group Company on December 15, 2017 (the
“Pre-Delivery Management Services Agreement”). Under the Pre-Delivery
Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Group Company and its subsidiaries
(“Zhenro Group”) shall, where it is selected following the tender processes in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, provide management and
related services to our Group according to the tender documents and definitive
management agreements to be entered into between Zhenro Group and members
of our Group from time to time. The Pre-Delivery Management Services
Agreement has been effective from January 16, 2018, being the date of listing of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”), and up to and including
December 31, 2019 and the term may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to applicable laws and regulations. The aggregate management
service fees paid by the Company to Zhenro Group for their service in 2018 is
RMB24.4 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of the transaction for
2018 of RMB44.2 million. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
of the transactions of the annual cap in respect of the management and related
services under the Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement
exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, therefore, the transactions are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76
(2) of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Pre-Delivery
Management Services Agreement also constitute related party transactions of the
Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 43 to the financial

statements.
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The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a
framework management services agreement in relation to the provision
of management and related services with Zhenro Group Company (the
“Management Services Agreement”) on December 15, 2017. Under the
Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Group shall provide management and
related services to the display units, sales offices and community clubhouses of
our commercial and residential properties under development, including but
not limited to cleaning, gardening, concierge, maintenance of public order and
security services to the aforesaid venues. The Management Services Agreement
has been effective from the Listing Date and up to and including December
31, 2019 and the term may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to applicable laws and regulations. The aggregate management service
fees paid by the Company in 2018 is RMB105.9 million, which did not exceed
the annual cap of the transaction for 2018 of RMB132.6 million. As one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios of the transactions of the annual cap in
respect of the management and related services under the Management Services
Agreement exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, therefore, the transactions are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Rule 14A.76 (2) of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under
the Pre-Delivery Management Services Agreement also constitute related party
transactions of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 43

to the financial statements.

All the independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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The Company's external auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions and they have provided a letter to the Board

of Directors confirming that:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by

the Company’s Board of Directors;

(i)  nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

(iii)  nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap

set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group
had not entered into any other connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed in Note
43 to the financial statements do not constitute connected transactions required

to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report form

part of this report.

By order of the Board
HUANG Xianzhi

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 24, 2019
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability, transparency,
independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has developed and
implemented sound governance policies and measures with the Board being
responsible for performing such corporate governance duties. The Board will
continue to review and monitor the corporate governance of the Company with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules so as to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of

the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on January 16,
2018 (the “Listing Date”). The Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code during the period commencing from the Listing Date and up

to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for the management
and conduct of the Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the management of the Company,

who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from time to
time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard

of corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity
policy to set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of
Board members. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time
to be devoted as a director of the Company. The Company will also take into
account factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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In order to have a clear division between the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business operation of the Group, the role of
the chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer. The chairman,
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, focuses on the overall management of the investment
strategies and business development of our Group. The chief executive officer,
Mr. Lin Zhaoyang (resigned on August 27, 2018) and Mr. WANG Benlong (re-
designated as the chief executive officer on August 27, 2018), are responsible
for day-to-day business and management of our Group. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance of

power and authority.

Our non-executive Director Ou Guogiang is the brother of Ou Guowei, who
is also our non-executive Director, and Ou Guogiang and Ou Guowei are the
sons of Ou Zongrong, one of our controlling shareholders. The details are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management
— Directors”. Save as disclosed above, no Board member has other relationship
with the other Board members and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 6 to 19 of this annual

report.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract with our
Company on December 15, 2017, except Mr. Wang Benlong, who has entered
into a service contract with our Company on March 28, 2018 and Mr. Chan Wai
Kin, who has entered into a service contract with our Company on September
3, 2018, and we have issued letters of appointment to each of our non-executive
Directors and each of our independent non-executive Directors. The principal
particulars of these service contracts and the letters of appointment are (a) for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from September 20, 2017 (for
executive Directors except Mr. Wang Benlong and Mr. Chan Wai Kin and non-
executive Directors), March 28, 2018 (for our executive Director Mr. Wang
Benlong), September 3, 2018 (for our executive Director Mr. Chan Wai Kin)
or December 15, 2017 (for independent non-executive Directors), and (b) are
subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service
contracts may be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the

Company and the applicable Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year

ended December 31, 2018 was approximately RMB16.9 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management for 2018 are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision B.1.5
of the Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of the

senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2018 is set out

M| 42 A [ s B n below:
A P g N\
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e 4 1 ) 43 2 v A A B T senior
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Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date through and up
to December 31, 2018, the Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number
of independent non-executive directors must represent at least one-third of the

Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules, and considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures are followed. Throughout the period commencing from
the Listing Date through and up to November 11, 2018, Mr. TAN Mingheng,
was one of our joint company secretaries. The Company has also engaged Ms.
KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne, a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as another
joint company secretary to assist Mr. Tan in discharging his duties as company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Kwong's primary contact person at the Company

was Mr. Tan.

Mr. Tan resigned as a joint company secretary on November 12, 2018 and the
Board appointed Mr. CHEN Jian as a joint company secretary on December
24, 2018. Following the resignation of Mr. Tan, Ms. Kwong's primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. Chen.
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In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. TAN, Mr. CHEN and
Ms. KWONG has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended December 31, 2018.

On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has arranged
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and business and is fully aware of the director’s
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant statutory
requirements. The Company will arrange suitable training for all Directors
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of their

continuous professional development.

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that at least
four regular Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly

intervals.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2018, the Company
held 7 Board meetings and one annual general meeting. A total of 37 proposals
were considered at the Board meetings, including proposals for the consideration
of the Company’s 2017 annual report, 2017 annual results announcement, 2018
interim report, 2018 interim results announcement and the recommendation on

the payment of a final dividend.

The table below sets out the details of Board meetings and annual general
meeting’s attendance of each Director during the period from the Listing Date
to December 31, 2018.
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PATESR Executive Directors
EANB A () Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman)

MREARG ek (R — & — \FEZH Mzr. LIN Zhaoyang (re-designated from chief

N H BAT B TAT B executive officer to joint chief executive
WA RS AT AR, > officer on February 28, 2018, and resigned
—&R— NENHA L HEBHE as executive director and joint chief
BAT AT B executive officer on August 27, 2018)

AR (h =& — /4EZH Mr. WANG Benlong (appointed as the
TN E R AT S W AT L joint chief executive officer on
B W —F— /M= H February 28, 2018 and our
T NHEZTAT AEITES executive director on March 28,
Bk ZF— N4 A\H 2018 and re-designated as chief
T B SRAEAT B R executive officer on August 27, 2018)

P AR S 2E O = — \4EJLH Mr. CHAN Wai Kin (appointed as the
= HIEZAT By AT E executive Director and vice president on
Il AR E A Bt — % — )\ 4 September 3, 2018 and the chief financial
+—H T+ BERT R officer on November 15, 2018)
W RE )

FHTES Non-executive Directors

JRC 2 5 S AR M:r. OU Guogiang

Wik 2 ft S Mr. OU Guowei

BT ES Independent non-executive directors

(2RI Dr. LOKE Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Uk B HE e A Mr. SHEN Guoquan

T Mr. WANG Chuanxu
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Notes:

(1) Mr. LIN Zhaoyang was appointed as an executive Director on June 27, 2017 and resigned
as an executive Director on August 27, 2018. Since there were only 3 Board meetings held

during the period, he was only required to attend 3 Board meetings.

2) Mr. CHAN Wai Kin was appointed as an executive Director on September 3, 2018. Since
there were only 3 Board meetings and no annual general meeting was held during the

period, he was only required to attend 3 Board meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are available on the website of the Company

and that of the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi
Lam) and Mr. WANG Chuanxu, our independent non-executive Directors,
and Mr. OU Guowei, non-executive Director. Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi
Lam) has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is our
independent non-executive Director possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include: (i) making
recommendations regarding the appointment and removal of external auditors
of our Company; (ii) reviewing the accounting policies and financial positions of
our Company; (iii) reviewing and supervising the internal audit functions and
internal control structure of our Company; and (iv) reviewing and overseeing the

risk management of our Company.
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During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2018, 2 meetings
of the Audit Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit

Committee members is set out in the table below:

Attended/

Eligible to attend

W

Directors R
Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)

(Chairman) 2/2

Mr. WANG Chuanxu 2/2

Mr. OU Guowei 2/2

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions) and risk management systems
and processes and the reappointment of the external auditor. The Board had
not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the

selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major

findings in the course of audit.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. WANG Chuanxu and Mr.
SHEN Guoquan and one executive Director, being Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, who
is the chairman of our Board and also acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the composition of the Board of Directors and assess the ability and
experience of Directors; (ii) making recommendations to our Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors; and (iii) assessing the independence of

the independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of the Company. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the

Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before

making recommendation to the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2018, 3 meetings
of the Nomination Committee were held and the attendance record of the

Nomination Committee members is set out in the table below:

Attended/

Eligible to attend

W HE R

Directors IR
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. WANG Chuanxu 3/3
Mr. SHEN Guoquan 3/3
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During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2018, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy; assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and made recommendation to the Board in relation to the re-election

of retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
being Mr. WANG Chuanxu and Mr. SHEN Guoquan and one executive
Director, being Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, who is the chairman of our Board. Mr.
WANG Chuanxu, our independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include: (i) reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board regarding remuneration policies for Directors and senior

management; and (ii) supervising the implementation of remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code

provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code in its terms of reference.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2018, 3 meetings
of the Remuneration Committee were held and the attendance record of the

Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

Attended/

Eligible to attend

W HE

Directors R
Mr. WANG Chuanxu (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. SHEN Guoquan 3/3
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi 3/3

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service agreement,
appointment letter and remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to the Board on the
service agreement, appointment letter and remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and senior management.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that
they have complied with the Model Code for the period from the Listing Date
to December 31, 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to

which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders
of the Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations

of the Group.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s operations,
earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and any other conditions
the Directors may deem relevant at such time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the

Cayman Islands and the articles of association of the Company.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no

assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the fees paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Ernst & Young, for the audit of the financial statements of the Group
are RMBG.8 million (excluding the expenses on the audit and non-audit service

provided by Ernst & Young related to the Global Offering of the Company).

Ernst & Young did not provide any non-audit services to the Group in the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from the
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
on pages 105 to 112 of this report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going

concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and
shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports their findings

to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-
day departmental operations are entrusted to individual department which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance and is required to operate its
own department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and to
implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company
from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed
of material developments of the department’s business and implementation of

the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the management
in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors
and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held
regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the

policy.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may whenever
it thinks fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company, general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition
to the Board of the secretary of the Company of any one or more members of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are and will
be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election

of individual Directors.
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The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as a director is
available on the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders may
lodge written proposal to the company secretary of the Company at 40/F,
Sunlight Tower, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such written notice is given,
shall be at least seven days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders would have
sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the person proposed
for election as a director, shareholders are urged to lodge their written notice of
his intention to propose a person for election as director as early as practicable
in advance of the relevant general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12
business days (as defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is open for business of dealing in securities)
before the date scheduled for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the
Company can complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share
registrar, and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written notice
is received by the Company later than the 12th business day before the date
of holding the relevant general meeting, the Company will need to consider
whether to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give shareholders a notice of at

least 10 business days of the proposal in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the Company are set out
in the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders can also direct
their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, whose address
is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report,
there has not been any change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association. The Company’s memorandum and articles of association are
available on the website of the Company (www.zhenrodc.com) and that of the

Stock Exchange.
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To the shareholders of Zhenro Properties Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 113 to 311, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “TASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are furcher described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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R ()

I T O

Key audit matter

REWFEZ M

Valuation of investment properties

B BT R A A 2 R R A PR R I BRI > 5
WER T NE+ A=+ —HRREBENS S AR
8,461,900,0007C > 43 Al T A0 WG e B 1 W7 MK 5.98%
K34.57% - BEMOM@EIMNBEEMR —F—/\F+21
=t A HEYEET I E -

The Group owns investment properties in mainland China
which were measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying
amount was approximately RMBS8,461,900,000 as at 31
December 2018, which represented 5.98% and 34.57% of the
Group's total assets and net assets, respectively. The Group has
engaged an external valuer to perform the valuation of these

properties as at 31 December 2018.

TE i 2 BUEYISEI AR F 2 AF W E R KNG > 2% AFE
J st R BRI T DL o 5% P AR ) B A (65 % Mt T g 2 3K
NPEEBERER o B BOEY L5 B E 5 B
FHEH -

Significant judgment is required to determine the fair values of
the investment properties, which reflects market conditions as
at the end of the reporting period. The use of different valuation
techniques and assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of fair values. Accordingly, the valuation of

investment properties is identified as a key audit matter.

BB YISER Gt BUOR R R G A B R 2.4 > 3 %
14 °

The accounting policies and disclosures of the investment
properties are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

F LTI r o B ) g 7 A o O

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HFHC RGNS (AT RE S ~ Bt R A B o B T AN
Al LB B (5 B A (L7 5 B T AR

We evaluated the competency, independence and objectivity of the
external valuer. We understood the valuation approach and key

assumptions used by the external valuer.

eAh o B5E T T Al A A (B A S ) 0 S A 0 R P E RO
Sl 2 A S A (S W B 5 A A (7 85 DA B MRt - H % 4%
VR YA B S R LA B T 305 OB AT L3 > DAGRAG £ (R
H R A TR

Furthermore, we assessed the correctness of the property related data
used as inputs for the valuation and involved our internal valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology and the
underlying assumptions. We evaluated the source data used in the
valuation by benchmarking them to relevant market information on

a sample basis.

BEAh - B4R R A B BUE Y SEfS ER B -

In addition, we evaluated the disclosures on the valuation of the

investment properties.
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BB ()

I T O

Key audit matter

LI (E B

Provision for land appreciation tax

BEMB—XPTEAMFERERER  HERMBEEEY
X LIRBIE - e BB LS W - FERIRMT
- e R (T E o R ) B BEEBESOE M EHAL
JE A 2 — o W ZE B B ) 8 (BB 4% I 309 & 609 1) 2
HEEBL R TR AR - I IR BRI R
43R JEC S R B0 5 A0 ) A LA e RS s g (P
i DA w1 S 15 SRR 198 B SRR (B4 - b i P HEAEL
BB~ VER A ~ (SRR B S ) A At « 7E
BB A% T 52 + 0 (R By > AT K T AR B A BT A
(Al o ot (B A AR S B IR T S B K
L A8 LT B B R 1 S R B i Bk B LA R 1 B
(R R o (Rl > T S (E RO PR S 0l o 0 BRSSO
The Group is a property developer in mainland China
focusing on the development of residential properties and
the development, operation and management of commercial
and mixed-use properties. Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
mainland China is one of the main components of the Group’s
taxation charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the
appreciation of land value. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group estimates the provision for LAT
based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax
rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties
less total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges
for land use rights, property development costs, borrowing costs
and development expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently
determined, the actual payments may be different from the
estimates. Provision for LAT in mainland China is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and involves significant
management's judgement and interpretation of the relevant tax
laws and regulations and practices. Accordingly, provision for

LAT is identified as a key audit matter.

3t 58 (R B8 48 10 I Al D 98 R O AR A
M3 K10

The accounting judgements and estimates and disclosures of the
provision for land appreciation tax are included in notes 3 and

10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAF ORISR BB H A 1 B 55 3 T I ERURDUE TR &
BEFEE BRGNS DR B BB 5 P 8
G P B R A St Rk e K B A BB LR » B D
WA ABREGRAR > W EFNFESRE BEESBNE
BOEATHEL -

We involved internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the estimates
and assumptions used by the Group and the evaluation of tax
exposure based on communications received from the relevant tax
authorities and applying our local knowledge and experience. We
also recalculated the tax computation and compared our calculations

with the amounts recorded by the Group.
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TS A7 88 0 JC A BB

B8 7 A EORRIE AT - AR
GFRRERNER > ARG MBERER
FAF IR o

F B S BB HCGR AR 05 0 0 3 A
B T S A S A R 3R RAE AT
RS o

MEFFEGERMBRERN S > BEOITR
BRI EFCA R > 81 5 At B R 75 B AR
B HRER R E FEFLRE P EB OB
BRAA > BFAAAEE R B RBR - f5
LT EHEAT I TAR R A M B B K 8
wRBRAL > EAF R A o Bt B
R A o

B B R AURIE N
it

R v E A TR B R A A B e
i I % S 5 o ) el 2 ) W Y 4
BUE - 0 BT A1 oo S WA L A 4 B
R WA R A S B R R
WAL AT B R B A > DA% SR AR B R
ANTEAE Hh A R T R T 2 G K B R R

it o

TEfn WA B B MR > BARERAART
i BEBEFELENRST > Wk EERT
BAHBMEENER) - BrFE BAFEES
% R B BT LR > BRI A A
HABE BRI AT I > 75 RIZEBR R DURS A A
R etk o

ERZARGWHY BAFEFRELUER
B AEEMBHRSEEFORET -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€rror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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Ak S 4 T R R AU
M RIE

HEENBEL R E LM RARENS
ANE A A F R UK TR B T 2 A K B R
b o W FE A B R R R o AR R
i o> AR B SF 405 ASHh 1 7 2R B
B BRICLUNA TR A AR - HHEBEA M
A 0 A BT A A L B R EORE AT
AL -

PR E 5 JE R AR o MR R R A R
RIEAT Wy b AR A e AR o A RE A L A 17 FE 1Y
R B R BRI o B R R T IR R R
B i i A SRS R TE S BT I LT AT
JRFE AR AR AR5 B 5 R AT o B A TR B B
B A E RS SR B -

TERBHEFHEAETEZNRES - 5%
B EHE > (REGEEMBERE - BHI5
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AP RMTELEF USSR
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EMELEY  HILF el HEH
AR B A B BRI R -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group'’s internal control.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



T S A% B e A

Independent Auditor’s Report

A R 4 T T R AU
M EAE )

o MO G R EORAOR U A
VB 6 2 T

o HEHFARAKLEGTHERNSEYT
15 i & o I AR O BT R B AL R
e A 2 1 A A B IR R DA B Y R
AHEEE > AT ReEE HEEY
FRGERNELERERE - MEFR
RAFTEERANHEEN - QA LG
gl oh 4 A O TE AR e MR R
A B R o A B R AL > B
AT E SR o B SRR T R
2B F Ik IR 0 9 R
M AF o SRT > o A€ 2 IH B U0 v A
B REMERFRLE

o AHMEGEMBBRERNEREHRA A
WERE - BIEEEER > RS
BHREEE A H BB 5 M % -

o BEERNEMSCEEEHNMEE
FHERR T & BB W F IR > U
RAMBEHRERREL - FEAREH
FRHTT e BB BT - BEMEY
BRI -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRE-F—)E+H=1—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

st ZRNE SR b
Notes 2018 2017
ANBHFLT  AREFIL

RMB’000 RMB’000

et REVENUE 5 26,453,106 19,995,061
S8 A Cost of sales (20,431,790)  (15,777,701)
EH Gross profit 6,021,316 4,217,360
RN Other income and gains 5 407,565 154,221
SR R BB 5 Selling and distribution expenses (876,602) (641,043)
FTELRH 52 Administrative expenses (980,864) (664,519)
4 B 7 (AR T AR Impairment losses of financial assets, net 25 (4,141) —
HoAth BA 7 Other expenses (44,921) (40,873)
BB AT Fair value gains on investment properties 14 144,561 353,798
& A Finance costs 7 (381,482) (551,539)
JRE A A S 38 1 B e 4R, - Share of profits and losses of:

AEpE Joint ventures (59,482) (65,557)

k=N Associates (98,471) (12,269)
ik B il i ) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 4,127,479 2,749,579
EEib Income tax expense 10 (1,894,942)  (1,228,185)
4 g i PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,232,537 1,521,394
IS AL LS Attributable to:

BAREA A Owners of the parent 2,120,734 1,408,876

e TR £ Non-controlling interests 111,803 112,518

2,232,537 1,521,394

BN RS ERER A A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
A 4 P 2 ) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT
L YNE Basic and diluted 12 AR¥o0s5208 AR™¥0477C

RMBO0.52 RMB0.47

4 #t Annual Report 2018 113



B 4 T AR R

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BEZZ—)\ETHET—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

e
2018 2017
ARBFTE  ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

A 5 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,232,537 1,521,394
AL AR R B Other comprehensive income that may
18 i 2 FoAth A T i be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
e St 7 48 - Exchange differences:
S 1 SE TS T AR A B B 2 A Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (66,015) —
AR ER R EE L Net other comprehensive income
JFC At 2 T 13 that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods (66,015) —
A P A A T KRR - 0 BRBLIE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (66,015) -
AR 9 A TH AR SR > BRI TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2,166,522 1,521,394
IS ARG Attributable to:
(SYNEIE RPN Owners of the parent 2,054,719 1,408,876
JEE e 47 Non-controlling interests 111,803 112,518

2,166,522 1,521,394
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—&F—)E+H=1+—H

31 December 2018

B st ZF ) SE L
Notes 2018 2017
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B G NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ER S Property, plant and equipment 13 876,882 74,702
Bayt Investment properties 14 8,461,900 8,542,700
TE A - 5 3ROR Prepaid land lease payments 15 213,674 125,360
HAh 4T & Other intangible assets 16 9,940 7,130
NEERENZE Investments in joint ventures 17 1,931,702 1,404,370
BN A G Investments in associates 18 1,796,827 207,587
TRAER TG e Deferred tax assets 19 1,463,999 1,059,807
I T A Total non-current assets 14,754,924 11,421,656
HEE CURRENT ASSETS
AN TEFIA RN Financial assets at fair value
G A through profit or loss 20 862,161 —
A R Available-for-sale investments 21 — 5,000
BH a5 ) 2 Properties under development 22 63,588,003 40,802,768
FrEHEC R T Completed properties held for sale 23 11,433,470 16,103,145
B 5y eI R Trade receivables 24 34,151 15,605
JRE i R W/ ) 3K R Due from related companies 43 7,686,366 2,677,975
FEAT b A E0H Prepaid land lease payments 15 754,184 2,926,996
FAATFIH ~ HoAth R K HAhEE Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 25 12,755,716 11,815,558
A i [e] Aol T Tax recoverable 1,160,983 986,699
% PR B 45 Restricted cash 26 4,866,036 3,931,480
AR Pledged deposits 26 963,560 1,195,303
e KB E&5EY Cash and cash equivalents 26 22,538,953 14,539,485
) A Total current assets 126,643,583 95,000,014

4E )t Annual Report 2018

115



116

R IS

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E— A=t
31 December 2018

i ZE2)N\E CFbE
Notes 2018 2017
ANRWFL  AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

WA CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 BEA SE I A S Trade and bills payables 27 8,212,543 5,539,852
H Al R A R TR S RE R Other payables and accruals 28 5,449,969 4,471,244
K Advances from customers 29 — 39,324,143
BHATE Contract liabilities 29 47,149,486 =
JREAST TR B/ W 3K Due to related companies 43 3,332,983 801,280
FHEVRAT B A A 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 30 21,629,210 20,981,757
e Senior notes 31 1,094,198 =
AFIESR Corporate bonds 32 1,115,788 2,002,359
JRE A5 BT Tax payable 10 2,297,672 1,429,557
) B AR Total current liabilities 90,281,849 74,550,192
VBB R NET CURRENT ASSETS 36,361,734 20,449,822

A W B LA TOTAL ASSETS LESS

CURRENT LIABILITIES 51,116,658 31,871,478
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

B sl SR N\E CE L
Notes 2018 2017
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Fem A 1 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FHESRAT R A fE 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 30 16,541,379 19,079,421
Lt B A5 I e it Other payables and accruals 28 3,285,661 —
Al Corporate bonds 32 2,034,399 —
BREREE Senior notes 31 4,076,627 —
TR B fE Deferred tax liabilities 19 699,591 567,756
T B £ A A Total non-current liabilities 26,637,657 19,647,177
HHEE Net assets 24,479,001 12,224,301
eSS EQUITY
BEA TR AR Equity attributable to owners of the parent
L& Share capital 33 265 3
fetifhe Reserves 34 13,528,703 8,178,781
13,528,968 8,178,784
KA BARGE S Perpetual capital securities 35 3,008,224 2,974,443
FIRig £ Non-controlling interests 7,941,809 1,071,074
Tl 75 40 Total equity 24,479,001 12,224,301
HAIRE ek FAHE A Mr. Huang Xianzhi Mr. Wang Benlong
EH HH Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

F—/)\ETA=T—HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

BATBH R EEely o
Attributable to owners of the parent Non-controlling interests
e (3] KA
BIRGE  WBGkE N o
Bk BbveE a0 WABE  Swuory  Exchange  REIER Perpetual A%
Share Share Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation  Retained o5l capital iy 3t Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits Total  securities Others Total equity
ANRHTFE NRHTFE NRETFE NRETE ARHTE ARHTL ARWTLE ANRWTL ARKTE ARKTZ ARKTZ ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Wit33)  (Witsap) (Weksad) (Witsda) (Wetsie) (Wiksde)
(note 33)  (note 34))  (note 34(d))  (nore 34(a) ~ (note 34c)  (note 34(e))
RoF—t% Asat 31 December 2017
+ZH=1-H 3 — 4521360 387,636 292,319 — 2971466 8178784 2974443 1071074 4045517  12,224301
PRI PR 5 Effect of adoption of IFRS 15
R RlPE - - - - - = 003 00%) — (638 (1638 (G645
AZZ—NE=H—H  Acl Janvary 2018 (restated)
(E5) 3 4521360 387,636 292319 = 2951373 818691 2974443 105476 4029159 12,187,850
S PRl Profic for the year = = = = = — 2120734 212073 258781 (146978) 111803 2232537
S OS2 - Other comprehensive
income for the year:
AR RN Exchange differences on translation
i35 of foreign operations — — — — — (66,015) - (66,015) - — — (66,015)
AT A Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (66,015) 2,120,734 2,054,719 258,781 (146,978) 111,803 2,166,522
BITHR Issuance of new shares 202 3,588,067 — - - - — 3588329 - - — 3588329
WA IR Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - — - 187,928 - - - 187,928 — 6907373 6907373 7,095,301
R R S Acquisicion of non-controlling interests = = = (130,781) = = = (130,781) = (128850)  (128850)  (259,631)
WM A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = = = = = — 486277 486277 486277
1o A W EREBUROR. Dividends paid to.a non-controlling
TRATRE shareholder of the subsidiary = = = = — - - - — (30729 (30729 (230,129)
Yl Dividends and distributions - - - - - — (9918 (329918) - - - (M9
MAKAEAESFH A Dividends to the holder
ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ of perpetual capital securities — — — — — — — — (225,000 — (225,000 (225,000
BRELERRRHE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserves — — — — 208,947 — (268,947) — — — — —
RZF—\E Asat 31 December 2018
FZA=1—H 205 3,588,067  4,527,360* 444,783* 561,266* (66,015)% 4473,242% 13528968 3,008,224 7941809 10,950,033 24,479,001

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



A 0 2 A ) R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BB = LIS
Year ended 31 December 2018

B B ARERG PR
Attributable to owners of the parent Non-controlling interests
HE KA ¥*
ki EARE  BRER
BAk Al EARE  Suwoy  REEF Perpetual Non- et ds
Share Merger Capital surplus  Retained At capital ~ controlling A3t Total
capital feserve reserve reserves profits Total  securities  interests Total equity

NRIWEFE ARWTE NRWTE ARBTL ARKTFI
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB 000
(Wits3) (W 34d) (Wat34e) (HiEs4c)

(note 33)  (note 34(d)) (note 34(a))  (note 34(c)

NBH T NRKTF ARWTZ ARETZ ARKET
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

REZ—tFE—A—A Asat | January 2017 — SATI0%  G42485%  204,035% 1,650,874% 7,974,754 — 1015177 1,015,177 8,989,931
FRiEF Profit for the year = = = — 1408876 1,408,876 — 112518 112518 1,521,394
FRATEI AR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - — 1408876 1408376 - 112,518 112,518 1,521,394
BIAR Issue of new shares 3 - — — — 3 — — — 3
WEBARFERBRLE  Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries — — 140,629 — — 140,629 — 457471 457471 598,100
YRR B R Acquisition of a
non-controlling interest — —  (393,479) - —  (395,478) — (454,522 (454,522) (850,000
AT B A R E RS Acquisition of subsidiaries by
ESTINL ) YN the Group from the then
equity holders of the subsidiaries — (950,000 - - — (950,000 — - — (950,000
BITRABEARE S Issuance of perpetual capital securities - - — — - — 2,974,443 — 2974443 2,974,443
1] S A R FE B R R Dividends paid to a non-controlling
TRATRE shareholder of the subsidiary = = = — — — = (59570)  (59,570) (59,570
B 2 o B ARG Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserves — — — 88,284 (88,284) — — — — —
R-F—t4 As at 31 December 2017
FZA=1—H 3 4527360%  387,636%  292319% 2971466% 8,178,784 2974443 1,071,074 4,045,517 12,224,301

* AR B B A TR IR N A A

N R %13,528,703,000 0 (& — L4« AR¥

8,178,781,000 JG.) °

Gl *

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB13,528,703,000 (2017:
RMBS8,178,781,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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HEBERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BREZF—)N\E+H=1—HIFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

BifsE “F-N\E  —“ZtE

120

Notes 2018 2017
ANREETFL  AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
HMETHHBL SRR CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
I o i i ) Profit before tax 4,127,479 2,749,579
AR Adjustments for:
YIZE ~ B Rt e H e Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6,13 29,235 21,708
S 6 L Ath AT Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,16 4,437 2,702
B - R Rk T E Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,
fiR, () AR plant and equipment,net 6 46 (351)
it e Gain on bargain purchase 5,38 (3,734) —
H B G A D ) i i Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5,39 (11,641) (1,708)
JREA DA B i ) B e A Share of profits and losses of:
AELE Joint ventures 59,482 65,557
= /N Associates 98,471 12,269
P R R Fair value gains, net:
N TR AR £ 1 4 Al Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 5 (80,452) —
BB Y2 T (EH 5 Changes in fair value of investment properties 14 (144,561) (353,798)
FE AT FROH ~ HoAl R iGRH K Impairment provision for financial
JFCfth 1< S D (L9 A assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets 6,25 4,141 —
[ 5 v g SE TR ) VL e 1R Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development 6,22 282,783 74,030
oL s PR B Impairment losses written-off 6,23 (186,508) (72,330)
Al A Finance costs 7 381,482 551,539
FEHA Interest income 5 (272,424) (138,182)
4,288,236 2,911,015

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



HEBEeRER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-F—/NFE+_A=+—HILFEE

Year ended 31 December 2018

Bk ZZ2)\E ZFE L
Notes 2018 2017
ANRETFL ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BREE 3 R B R R L Increase in properties under development
ES | and completed properties held for sale (10,863,013)  (9,293,893)
FEAT L AH SR D Decrease in prepaid land lease payments 2,084,498 4,276,475
2 Rl 35 4 1 Increase in restricted cash (934,556) (947,044)
EARIAE R D (K m) Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 142,226 (95,251)
B 7 MENE JE 3 n Increase in trade receivables (18,546) (5,400)
TEATFIE ~ oAt BRI K Increase in prepayments, other receivables
HoA 3 and other assets (2,916,771)  (8,723,681)
JRE i R W A ) X T 8 i Increase in amounts due from related companies (41,216) (4,254)
5y I AT TR A SRR e Increase in trade and bills payables 2,523,183 57,767
JFC A R AT 3 T R BT Increase in other payables and accruals 3,431,465 4,530,760
& FEGEK Increase in advances from customers — 6,711,360
ARAGEM Increase in contract liabilities 4,412,757 —
JREAST R 5 7] 2 JE (Decrease)/increase in amounts due
(), Hm to related companies (7,141) 12,228
‘gt () Bld Cash generated/(used in) from operations 2,101,122 (569,918)
B AR Interest received 5 272,424 138,182
AR Interest paid (3,498,072)  (2,733,363)
AR Tax paid (1,539,412)  (1,073,856)

AL B i B 4 L R R

Net cash flows used in operating activities

(2,663,938)  (4,238,955)
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HaBleaR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BWE-F—/E+-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

Bk —F-)M\E ZF-LF
Notes 2018 2017
ANREETFL  AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEFEHBL SRR CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
FEE Y - W KBUEE R Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (126,223) (47,516)
I B L 4T Y Purchase of other intangible assets (7,336) (4,594)
REREYE Additions in investment properties (293,738) (636,351)
1 i Y g A Acquisition of subsidiaries 367,299 —
W T A o R Acquisition of available-for-sale investments — (613,578)
Wi AT (ERT A TR £ 1Y 42 Rl Acquisition of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (748,450) —
B 2 Disposal of subsidiaries 24,035 40,725
AT EFT AR £ 1 5 Rl & Disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 5,000 —
HEF A ERE Disposal of available-for-sale investments — 608,578
NEBLENTE Investments in joint ventures (1,090,853) (1,414,038)
N A Al E Investment in associates (1,651,586) (184,746)
HEYIE - B R Disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 1,132 1,651
FOE T ) 7 3 4 0 o A Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,520,720)  (2,249,869)

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



HOaBleER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-F—/NE+H=+—HIHEE

Year ended 31 December 2018

sk ZZ2)\E ZFE L
Notes 2018 2017
ANRETFL ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Tl T B i CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
WIS 2 ) R MR M o o Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries 7,095,301 598,100
1) o ) 42 P P SRR £+ P 6, Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries (230,729) (59,570)
1] 7 2 F) A8 g R A IR TS Dividends paid to the equity
holders of the Company (329,918) —
16 7K A 8 5 R A GRS TS, Dividends paid to the holder
of perpetual capital securities (225,000) —
A B ) W 2 ) e A Acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group from
DN oy ] the then equity holders of the subsidiaries — (950,000)
ST 2 ) R A Acquisition of non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries (259,631) (870,000)
ER 4 T IR BGR Repayment of advances to a shareholder 43 14,973
TR IR R Repayment of advances from shareholders 43 — (79,856)
L NGIE Advances from related companies 43 4,365,197 1,441,067
=g ol NCIE Repayment of advances from related companies 43 (208,745) (659,663)
45T R AR K Advances to a shareholder 43 — (6,763)
TEIRAS T B2 ) () #ak Repayment of advances to related companies 43 31,546,359 7,150,013
45T BV A W R BGR Advances to related companies 43 (38,384,020) (7,973,843)
EAE R, () Increase/(Decrease) in pledged deposits 89,517 (267,398)
it BERAT B FA A S 15 308 Proceeds from interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings 22,004,959 24,433,541
R T ESRAT S Ho At Repayment of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings (24,104,568) (19,406,424)
AT B T 75 K 0E Proceeds from issue of new shares 3,677,296 —
JReAR 347 B 32 Share issue expenses (88,967) —
AT AR S5 B A5 I Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds 32 1,994,500 —
fER N F E S Repayment of corporate bonds 32 (892,445) —
BEAT B R A5 A Proceeds from issue of senior notes 4,767,196 —
BT SRR SR A5 Bk 0A Proceeds from issue of asset-based securities 28 3,285,661 —
BATK A EAE S TG 0E Proceeds from issue of perpetual capital securities 35 — 2,974,443
il ) T A5 B 4 U U AR Net cash flows from financing activities 14,101,963 6,338,620
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HeBlehaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BWE-F—/E+-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

Fif 5 —F-)\E T tF
Notes 2018 2017
ANRWFL  AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Bl BB &5 Emm,/ (Wd)F4  NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,917,305 (150,204)
SRS K B A S B Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,539,485 14,689,689
B4 B B4 S B RE S s 18 Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents 82,163 —
ERBE KB F CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 22,538,953 14,539,485
Bl RBLEF M AR AT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B4 TSR AT 4 Cash and bank balances 26 28,368,549 19,666,268
W 2RI & Less: Restricted cash 26 4,866,036 3,931,480
B KA Pledged deposits 26 963,560 1,195,303
ME RIS B4 KRS EY Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the statement of cash flows 22,538,953 14,539,485

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



b 785 % MY

Notes to Financial Statements
e SN 2 Vi Y et
31 December 2018

1 A R EE R 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
ANTFRF—NELH =+ —HEH The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
SHEHMB L AERRARAT o A& liability in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2014. The Company’s shares
NE BB —FE - NFE—H+AHE were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
T A5 A R A A (T8 s B ) Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 January 2018. The registered office
F A LT o A F Y AR A R of the Company is located at 27 Hospital Road, George Town, Grand
27 Hospital Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands ©

RER REBEERFEEEZYERN During the year, the Group was principally involved in property
% WS YRR o development, property leasing and commercial property management.
EHRBL > ANE W RAERA AR In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
RoYue Limited » 5% 2> il i35 J& i o #E 5 Company is RoYue Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
(95 VAR Islands.
A 1 B & A\ i Rk Information about subsidiaries
AN FE MW E N m R R Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
CBAEER, AR T A
ik, A B i 43 b
B R Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
W 2~ registration registered attributable to ~ FEEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
B
Directly held:
Zhenro International Limited
([ Zhento International ) ERIELTEE 50,000 7T 1009  BELER
Zhenro International Limited
(“Zhenro International”) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 Investment holding
Blooming Force Limited
(I Blooming Force ) eI R L 50,000 %70 100%  HEER
Blooming Force Limited
(“Blooming Force”) British Virgin Islands U8$50,000 Investment holding
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F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1 A REBEER L.
A B oD 4 ] Sk (4
A/ W4 RS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(#) (Continued)
CRTLER/ L
Gl vve Al A JoOHE i 43 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il A s registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

WEH - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited

([ Zhenro HK ) il 10,0007 100%  BEER
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
(“Zhenro HK”)
WIRECEA A (THIK ) i 10,000 #7¢ 100% BEHER
Sheen Billion Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
(“Sheen Billion”)
IESE GRS BE B IRARAF Hinsg 5,000,000 H ETT 100%  BeEHER
(TEEZH s ) Singapore SGD5,000,000 Investment holding
True Dragon (Singapore) Pte. Led.
(“True Dragon”)
AR BEAr 8 5 A IR A ) I AR A R#10,000,000 7 100% BEHER
([ AR A ) = (T ) /i st RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
TR REA 5% A PR A ] People’s Republic
Fuzhou Huiheng Trading Co., Led. of China (‘PRC")/
(“Fuzhou Huiheng”) * Mainland China
M BRI A RA R /R B 1,000,000,000 76 100% BEREK
(AR e ) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 Tnvestment holding
MR AR
Fuzhou Fengzewei Industrial
Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Fengzewei”)
MR E A RA T e/ B H 200,000,000 70 100% BEHHK
(TEMER ) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 Investment holding

MR T AR

Fuzhou Huace Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Huace”)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEFR ) 1.
A T BEHJE  w) B R (4
PYNSSER A VLT TR

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
CRTLER/ AT A
kAL, Al A JoOHE i 42 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
WEH - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
RMBREREERARAA R /o B #800,000,000 76 100%  BEER
(MBS ) PRC/Mainland China RMBS00,000,000 Investment holding
RMBRER AR
Fuzhou Juntai Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Juntai”)
FA8R (L) BERRARAT R,/ HE R B 100,000,000 7C 100%  HERAEE
(T L®a)) PRC/Mainand China RMB100,000,000 LB
RS (L) BERRAR AT Property
Zhenro Yupin (Shanghai) Real development and
Estate Development Co., Ltd. propetty leasing
(“Shanghai Yupin”)
ERBE (LG BERRARAR  PE/PERE B #100,000,000 76 100% R
(I FiseRE ) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
IEASER (i) BB RAF development
Zhenro Yuyuan (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yuyuan”)
ERER (L) BERERARAA  ohEl/PERL ABM50,000,0007C 100% YR
([ EB®X]) PRC/Mainland China RMB 50,000,000 FHEHE
ERER (i) BERERARAR Property
Zhenro Yutian (Shanghai) Real development

Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yutian”)

and property leasing
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F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
B BB N w B R (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN F) E A A FE SR Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
() (Continued)
CRfEER AR/ T A
akfaL,/ GAUTIEN JREHET 3 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

MR « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

RS (L) BEERRARAR /B NEH 325,500,000 72 100%  HEME
((sti=2 ) PRC/Mainland China RMB325,500,000 Property
ISR (1) BERRAR AR development

Zhenro Yufeng (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yufeng”)

FREY (L) BERRARAT e /b N B 50,000,000 7E 100%  WERE
(2" PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
EREE G BERRARAT development

Zhenro Yuzun (Shanghai) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yuzun")

ERFEERARAR B/ A AR 50,000,000 7 100%  FEYEE M
(SRR ]) PRC/Mainland China RMBS50,000,000 Commercial

AT EERARAF property

Zhenro Commerce Management management

Co., Ltd. (“Zhenro Commerce”)

E4 (G H) REBRARA /B AEH 100,000,000 7 100% ¥R
([HERE]D PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
EHH) RERRARA development

Zhento (Putian) Investment

Co., Ltd. (“Putian Investment”)
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B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements

“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

2wl B AR MR )
B oD 4w SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R R RS T

(#)

W 2

Subsidiaries

B « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
REEREFREXRARAFA
(TREER])
REEREREEARAT
Wuhan Zhenro Zhengtai Real
Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Wuhan Zhengtai”)

B IEA A B A A A
(TP EEA])

MEEREA ERARAH

Nanchang Zhenro Zhengchuang
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Zhengchuang”)

B IEA IR B A R A A
([ EEAER )
MEERERERARAH
Nanchang Zhenro Zhengxing Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Zhenro Zhengxing”)

RUERMEERARAF
(W)

RUERFEEHARAH

Changsha Zhenro Commerce
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Changsha Commerce”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Gl vve

il kBRI

Place of incorporation/
Registration

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B o
PRC/Mainland China

AL/
PRC/Mainland China

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

B 50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

AE50,000,000 76
RMB50,000,000

NE50,000,000 TG
RMB50,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7C
RMB1,000,000

AR/ A
BEHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FEEY

Principal activities

ES R
Property

development

IEE
Property

development

EL
Property

development

[GES7ESESE
Commercial
propetty
management
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F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

2] B SR B )
A T B A R B R (4
PYCEE A ] VElr s IE

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

B : ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)
ER () BERRARAF

(HEZE]D

R GHH) BXBRAR A
Zhenro (Putian) Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

(“Putian Real Estate”)

T4 (FH) B EREARAR

(75 M 1)

R () 7 e A RA R
Zhenro (Putian) Property
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Putian Property”)

BB () BXARAR

(TP RIB L))

IEAME (R BRARAH

Zhenro Fortune (Fujian)
Real Estate Co.,Ltd.

(“Putian Fortune Center”)

4 () HEERERAT

(Tes TR

E4 (B ) B AR A

Zhenro (Putian) Commerce

Management Co., Led.

(“Putian Commerce Management”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Gl vve
e e E 3

Place of incorporation/
Registration

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

/B
PRC/Mainland China

L/
PRC/Mainland China

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

A B 100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

AE30,000,000 7
RMB30,000,000

A E# 100,000,000 7T
RMB100,000,000

ANE®10,000,000 7C
RMB10,000,000

AT A
JREHET 3 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

IEE
YLE il
Property
development
and property

leasing

EE
Property

development

B
FEME
Property
development
and property

leasing

UESE
Property

management



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements

“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

2wl B AR MR )
B oD 4w SRk (4

AT E WA 7 R R RS T

(#)

W 2

Subsidiaries

B « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
ER(RY) BEARLAH
((RUEE)
ER(RY) EEARAT
Zhenro (Changsha) Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Changsha Real Estate”)

HBIER i) BEARAR
(rEEX]

R IR R ) BSRA RAH

Nanchang Zhenro (Singapore) Real
Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Real Estate”)

I E B M B PR
(TH & R )

i E BB L B A R )

Nanchang Shiou Properties
Development Co., Led.
(“Nanchang Shiou”)

IESEILHIER (F4f) BB RARA

(TTEZRIL H IR |)
ERWBIER CHE) BEXRR
HIRAF
Zhenro Shantian Zhengtai (Pingtan)

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Zhenro Shantian Zhengtai”) **

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

Gl vve

il kBRI

Place of incorporation/
Registration

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B o
PRC/Mainland China

AL/
PRC/Mainland China

CRTLER/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AR 60,000,000 T
RMB60,000,000

N E# 105,000,000 7T
RMB105,000,000

NE50,000,000 TG
RMB50,000,000

NE#50,000,000 G
RMB50,000,000

AR/ A
BEHET 23 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

51%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FEEY

Principal activities

B
YLl
Property
development
and property

leasing

IEE
YEIESiiN
Property
development
and property

leasing

EL
Property

development

ES
Property

development
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Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
B BB N w B R (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN F) E A A FE SR Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
() (Continued)
CRfEER AR/ T A
akfaL,/ GAUTIEN JREHET 3 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

MR « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

RS SNBSS ES ) VNG B/ B B 500,000 7 100%  FXPFER
(TfEf)) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 Commercial

2 A M S A PR property

Xi'an Jingheng Commercial Property management

Management Co., Ltd.

(“Jingheng Commerce”)

G %2 57 s S P B PR A ) e /b ABRH5,000,000 7 100%  WERE
([F%Z5A ) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 Property
T % S R s 2 B A BR A development

Xi'an Jingqi Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Xi'an Jingqi")

BN ERFEE G RAF R/ AR 1,000,000 78 100%  FEMEER
(MR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 Commercial

BN IER G A R A ] property

Fuzhou Zhenro Commerce management

Management Co., Led.

(“Fuzhou Commerce”)

AR () BB A RAR /i AR 80,000,000 TG 1009 R
(T HEER]) PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 Property
T ) PAEE A R /A F] development

Zhenro Yuhu (Putian)

Development Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Yuhu”)

132 IE 2 Hh e 2 A R A A Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEFR ) 1.
A T BEHJE  w) B R (4
PYNSSER A VLT TR

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
CRTLER/ AT A
kAL, Al A JoOHE i 42 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
WEH - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
ERIEZ (HH) BEERRARAA R /o 80,000,000 7 100%  WEME
(TEAEZ#H]) PRC/Mainland China RMBS0,000,000 Property
ERIEZ (H) BEERARA development
Zhenro Zhenghong (Putian) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhenro Zhenghong Putian”)
WP 75 LK B A R A /B ABH8,000,000 7 100% MM
(T LK ) PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 Property
WiR 7 LK EEARAR development
Hunan Xiushan Lishui Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Xiushan Lishui”)
SR IE 5 B B RATRA A L/ B 100,000,000 70 100% W%
(BN EREE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
FRN IE 3 B 8 A R A ] development
Suzhou Zhengrui Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Suzhou Zhengrui Real Estate”)
M B ERA BB ERBARA A /R AR 100,000,000 7C 100% YR
(MR EALR)) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
M B ERA BB GRRAR A development

Nanchang Zhenro Honggu
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Nanchang Honggu”)
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Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1 A REBEER L.
A B oD 4 ] Sk (4
A/ W4 RS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(#) (Continued)
CHTLER,/ AT A
Gl vve Al A li¢ Xepido
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
B - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MAEAHT R ERRARAA /B B 50,000,000 7 100%  HEME
(TrE#E]) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
B EENERGRRARAR development
Nanchang Zhenro Xinjian
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Xinjian”)
Bk R A RAR /B B 400,000,000 7 5% MEHE
(TR ALK A ) PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 Property
BIEKHEERRARAF development
Hefei Yongtuo Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hefei Yongtuo”) **#*
RIEEREER A RA T R/ B 100,000,000 70 100% MR
(&IEER]) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
BIEEREEERAR A development
Hefei Zhengmao Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Hefei Zhengmao”)
AL B R EARAR /R B 125,000,000 7 100%  MEHE
(T AEEH#]) PRC/Mainland China RMB125,000,000 Property
BIEEREEERARAR development

Hefei Zhengyu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hefei Zhengyu”)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A REBEER 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
B BB N w T E R (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN E A F R RS T Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
() (Continued)
SRR/ AR/ A
L RUTIE e HE T 4 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

M+ « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

T () B 3B RA R A ) R /o 80,000,000 7 100%  WEME
(¥ HIEH]) PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 Property
I (FH) BEEERARAF development

Zhengrun (Putian) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Zhengrun”)

BN IE T S B A A R A ) L/ T AE#100,000,000 TG st MR
(THEM LT 1) 2 PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
FRMN IETE 5 o A A R A ) development

Suzhou Zhengrun Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Zhengrun”) **

EF () BEEBRARA /B AEH50,000,000 7T 5% MRS
([FREIET )% PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
B CHE) BERRAR A development

Zhengsheng (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Pingtan Zhengsheng”) **

% R E W R A T /R B 50,000,000 7 100%  MERER
([PH%RE]) PRC/Mainland China RMBS50,000,000 UESiN

Pt 7 A A A R A ) Property

Xi'an Jingheng Property development
Development Co., Led. and property
(“Xi'an Jingheng") leasing

4E )t Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

L A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
B BB N w B R (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN F) E A A FE SR Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
() (Continued)
CRfEER AR/ T A
akfaL,/ GAUTIEN JREHET 3 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

MR « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

E4 (T BEBRRARAH /o AR 50,000,000 70 100% YR
(FEX] PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 Property
ER (BT BXERARAF development

Zhenro (Nanping) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanping Real Estate”)

A (B BB RARAA /B N B 50,000,000 72 9% WEHE
([ o 5 | ) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
IE5 () BB RA R development

Zhentro (Minhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Minhou Real Estate”) **

ER(BR)BERRARAR /i B 80,000,000 7C 100%  WERER
(THREE] PRC/Mainland China RMBS0,000,000 /ES il

FRER)BERRARAF Property

Zhenro (Mawei) Real Estate development
Development Co., Led. and property
(“Mawei Real Estate”) leasing

& (M) B8 RARAR /i AR 50,000,000 70 100% YR
(TR EE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property

R M) BXERRAR A development

Zhento (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Real Estate”)

136 IE 2 Hh e 2 A R A A Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1 A REMER ) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
AR E AR BB R 4) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN F A B R RS T Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(4) (Continued)
SRR/ AR/ A
L RUTIE e HE T 4 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

M+ « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

4 (B B A B RA R A R /o A8 50,000,000 7 100% WEHER
(TAIfRAE D) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 ESiN
R (M) RERRARA A Property
Zhenro (Minhou) Investment development
Development Co., Ltd. and property
(“Minhou Investment”) leasing
ERILH (FR) BERRARA A e /o AR 100,000,000 7T 100% PR
(FEEE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
RN CHE) BEERARAT development

Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Pingtan Real Estate”)

BRI R G BRARAH /B AR # 100,000,000 7C 100% R
(T E ) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
MR ERILER G RARA A development

Nanjing Zhenro Jiangbin

Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Nanjing Investment”)

MR ERFEEREARAR /B AEH 100,000,000 TG 100% ¥R
(TR EHE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
P RS S E B A R A ) development

Nanjing Zhenro Property

Development Co., Led.
(“Nanjing Property”)
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—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEF ) 1.
A T B A R B R (4
PYCEE A ] VElr s IE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
CRfEER AR/ T A
akfaL,/ HRUTIE JREHET 3 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
PEEsEA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MR EREERRARAH B/ B A R# 110,000,000 78 100% YEHE
(T EE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 Property
R EREERRARA A development
Nanjing Zhenro Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Real Estate”)
ER (R BEBRARAT g/ A R% 100,000,000 7 100% YERE
(TREEX]) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
IEAE (K BEBRARAT development
Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Real Estate”)
I CHE) S RARAT g/ A E%50,000,000 78 100% YERE
(FERE]D PRC/Mainland China RMBS50,000,000 Property
R CHE) R EERARA R development
Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan)
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Pingtan Investment”)
IESERHE (B BERBARA R /R AR 159,462,900 7 6271%  WEHE
(TERM B D)+ PRC/Mainland China RMB159,462,900 Property
IESRRR (BRM) B R RAR A development
Zhento Sunan (Suzhou) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Real Estate”) **
IESESE I RRR (BRM) SLEA R AR g/ A% 100,000,000 7 100% YERE
(TBMBE D) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
AR R R (B BUE A R A development

Zhenro Group Sunan (Suzhou)
Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Investment”)

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEFR ) 1.
A T BEHJE  w) B R (4
PYNSSER A VLT TR

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
CRTLER/ AT A
Gl vve Al A JoOHE i 42 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
WEH - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
LA EAJR S B A R A A /B B 1,000,000,000 7 100%  HEME
(VLG 7 3 ) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 Property
VLT IE 5 s B B A PR/ development
Jiangxi Zhenro Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Real Estate”)
RHEIERIEE B R RA AR /B N B 50,000,000 72 100% MM
(TREIEE]) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
REERIERBERRARAF development
Tianjin Zhenro Zhenghong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Zhenghong")
EAER (KR) BERRARAT L/ A EH50,000,000 78 100%  WIERE R
([ESIER]) PRC/Mainland China RMBS50,000,000 EZiN
IERIER K BERERARAF Property
Zhenro Zhengxing (Tianjin) Real development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. and property
(“Zhenro Zhengxing”) leasing
IERERE (BN 7 s e A PR A ) /R B H 98,254,300 76 5191% MM
(THEM 5 A ]) PRC/Mainland China RMB98,254,300 Property
IERERH (M) B EA R A development

Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Property
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Property”) **
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31 December 2018

Lo 2 BB BEERt )
A B oV 4 ] A SRk (4

0 T WA 7 AT -

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

B - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
ISR AEPERR A A PR )
([ ERMRE R ])
IESE A IR YA R A ]
Zhenro Property Holdings
Company Limited
(“Zhenro Property Holdings”)

MR EREGRLEREHRAR
(I M A5 )
R IE AT R A P B A R )
Nanjing Zhenro Dexin Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Dexin”)

A 5 R R IE 48 7 o 7 R A PR
([EEFEME])

TR 5 AR5 5 o
IR

Fuzhou Mawei District Zhenro
Property Development Co., Ltd.
(“Mawei Property”)

A M) BB RA R A A
([HRMEE D)

R (M) BEBRBARA A

Zhenro (Fuzhou) Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Fuzhou Investment”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)
CHTLER,/
Gl vve Al A
e e E 3 Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/
Registration registered

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

/B
PRC/Mainland China

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

share capital

N E# 6,600,000,000 T
RMBG6,600,000,000

A E# 100,000,000 7T
RMB100,000,000

NE# 60,000,000 TG
RMB(0,000,000

50,000,000 76
RMB50,000,000

AT A
JREHET 3 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%
(HHE)
(Note)

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FEEH

Principal activities

Investment
holding

ELEIS
BN
Property
development
and property

leasing

EE
Property

development

B
Property

development
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Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A REBEER 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
B BB N w T E R (47) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AN E A F R RS T Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
() (Continued)
SRR/ AR/ A
L RUTIE e HE T 4 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

M+ « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

LA EEBRARA /o AEH50,000,000 7 100% R
(TBfRIES]) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
B G IE 2 A E SRR AR A 7] development

Minhou Zhenro Zhengsheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Minhou Zhengsheng”)

ERHRE (B BREREARAT B/ PE A N B 50,000,000 7 100% WM
(MM EeE ) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
TERHCE BN ) 5 B A TR A A development

Zhenro Sutong (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Sutong”)

WM IEE B R RARA B/ B A B 125,000,000 ¢ 40% PR
(TRMIEE J) PRC/Mainland China RMB125,000,000 Property
TR IEZ B R AR AT development

Chuzhou Zhenghong Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Chuzhou Zhenghong”) ***

e B8 RARA R o AEH50,000,000 7T 100%  YIERE
(T MES]) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
AT ET B8 RA A development

Shishi Zhengsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Shishi Zhengsheng")

4 #t Annual Report 2018 141



142

F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

2wl AR MR )

1 BV 28 W IR R 4)
A TR B A R R BRI

(%)

M 2

Subsidiaries

B - ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B CHE) EXERARAR
([FRIER ) *

R CHE) B RARAH

Zhengmao (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Pingtan Zhengmao”) **

BMIEM EXARAR
(TBRMIER])

B IER B AR

Suzhou Zhengli Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Zhengli")

B (EM) BB RARA A
(MEMER])

B (M) BB RARA

Zhengtai (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Zhengtai”)

IETH (M) BB RA A 7
(TARMIET])

TR BB RARAT

Zhengsheng (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou Zhengsheng”)

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

Gl vve
e e E 3

Place of incorporation/
Registration

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R/ B
PRC/Mainland China

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

CHTLER,/
Al A
Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NEH50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

A E# 100,000,000 7T
RMB100,000,000

NEH 50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

NE50,000,000 76
RMB50,000,000

AT A
JREHET 3 b
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

75%

100%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FEEH

Principal activities

E R
Property

development

EE
Property

development

E R
Property

development

EE
Property

development
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEFR ) 1.
A T BEHJE  w) B R (4
PYNSSER A VLT TR

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
CRTLER/ AT A
kAL, Al A JoOHE i 42 b
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities

M+ « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

EYGEH) EXRRARAA /B B 80,000,000 7 100%  HEME
((HEHIEY]) PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 Property
IS (FH) BRERRARA A development
Zhengfeng (Putian) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Zhengfeng”)
Wh R IE R A A A /i A E#500,000,0007C 505% I
(T IERL]) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 Property
W IE R EA PR development
Jinan Zhengqi Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Jinan Zhengqi")
BN RS B R RA R A /B B 10,000,000 70 100%  WEME
([HMIER]) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 Property
BT ER & F B RARAR development
Ganzhou Zhengbi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Ganzhou Zhengbi”)
RENREFEARAR /B N 80,000,000 7 0% W
([REITR ) o s PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 Property
BENREERR AT development

Fujian Liwo Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Fujian Liwo”) #&/#isk
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Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEF ) 1.
A T B A R B R (4
PYCEE A ] VElr s IE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(#) (Continued)
CHTLER,/ AT A
Gl vve Al A li¢ Xepido
TGRS L Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
B - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
R (i) EXRRARAA /B A 1,000,000,000 7 sie  MERE
([FETEIE S ) % PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 Property
IES (836 BB RARA A development
Zhengding (Fuqing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuging Zhengding”) **
5 (1616) B RARA A /B B 1,000,000,000 ¢ 1% WK%
([T E i | ) % PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 Property
IE5 (FTE ) BB RA R A development
Zhengrui (Fuqing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fuging Zhengrui”) **
IER () BX B RARA T R/ B 50,000,000 70 s1% MR
(TFRIEAR J) % PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
ERCHRE) ELBERRAH development
Zhengxin (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Led.
(“Pingtan Zhengxin”) **
T B A R A R ) /R B 100,000,000 7 s0% MM
([ 32 LR |) voe PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
FR AR AEREARA R development

Jiaxing Zhuosu Property
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Jiaxing Zhuosu”) ***

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

Lo 2 BB BEERt o) L.
A B oD 4w Sk (4
A/ BB 24 7 R R WS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(4) (Continued)
CRTLER/ L
kAL, Al A Y4 YepidoA
LW S R Issued Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
il 2wl Registration registered attributable to ~ FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
MEEsEA ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
RRESEEARAA /B B 50,000,000 7 S1%  WERE
([FEHREE |) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property
FEEREZHRAT development
Jiaxing Rongyu Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
(“Jiaxing Rongyu”) **
KA A A B i VG T B 60,000,000 7 so% WM
(TRHEA R |) e PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 Property
KA R 2 R 3 A PR A development
Tianjin Hesheng Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Hesheng”) ***
RUEBEEARAR I/ B 800,000,000 70 s1% MR
(R ]) % PRC/Mainland China RMBS00,000,000 Property
RUVEREEARAH development
Changsha Zhengze Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
(“Changsha Zhengze”) **
B BEARAR I/ B 100,000,000 76 90%  EHE
(TR 7 5 |) % PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
WM B EA R A development

Zhengzhou Xinronggui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Xinronggui”)**
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31 December 2018

1. A RAEBEEF ) 1.
A T B A R B R (4
PYCEE A ] VElr s IE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(#) (Continued)
CHTLER,/ AR RS

Gl vve Al A SR 73 b

TGRS L Issued Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
iR A s Registration registered attributable to  FEFEH
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company  Principal activities
B : ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

LR FE WA RAT /B B 40,000,000 7 so MM
([HRBR |) rrx PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 Property
EEiE L ke N development
Ji'an Birong Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Ji’an Birong") ***

RS A AT R/ B B 200,000,000 7 s0% MM
([ERER ]) e PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 Property
4 T R4 B A PR development

Ji'an Yuanrong Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Ji'an Yuanrong”) ***
RUEAERBEXRRARAA iV T AR 100,000,000 7 s0% MM
([RAPIESEIESR |) s PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property
RUELEREERRARAA development
Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai”) *##/#¥#%
B R R R E B A A A R/ B AR 560,000,000 72 38%  WIERE
(TR AR AR A ) e PRC/Mainland China RMB560,000,000 Property
R KRS 2 B A PR development

Nanjing Liangrongxin Property
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Nanjing Liangrongxin”) *#*

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

1 A REHEER
B oD 4w SRk (4
A R4 9 RS

(#)

i 24

Subsidiaries

PEEsEA : (.

Indirectly held: (Continued)

NEIEH 7 B A PR )
(IR IER ]) e

N IERR T BB A PR A

Lu'an Zhengyu Property
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Lu'an Zhengyu”) ***

R TRE EAIERARAR
(TFER5IER] ])

Il

R IE AV E A IR A
Xiangyang Changfang Zhengchuang

Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(“Xiangyang Zhengchuang”) **
HCE R H R R SRR A TR A )

([ A )+

R 3 I [ SR PR A )

Chengdu Chunhua Tianyuan

Agticulture Development Co., Ltd.

(“Chengdu Chunhua”) **

N T IEAR B R
([N LER 1) #
BT IR B RA
Zhangzhou Zhengyu
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangzhou Zhengyu”) **

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)
CHTILER,/
Gl vve Al A
LEW e R Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/
Registration registered

and business

s/ B
PRC/Mainland China

HRE /B A
PRC/Mainland China

/B
PRC/Mainland China

WL/
PRC/Mainland China

share capital

AE#150,000,000 TG
RMB150,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

AR 10,000,000 7C
RMB 10,000,000

AR 1,600,000,000 TG
RMB1,600,000,000

AT A
JREHET 3 L
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

35%

51%

65%

51%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FEEH

Principal activities

ESE
Property

development

ESEE
Property

development

EE
Property

development

ES
Property

development
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

Note:

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiary as collateral to

trust financing company as at 31 December 2018.

R N\E
+=AZ+—H

i R A 4 L

Percentage of

equity pledged as

at 31 December 2018

Nanjing Dexin 10%

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase at a fixed amount

on a future date upon repayment of the borrowings from the trust financing company.

* Fuzhou Huiheng is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

ok These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s

control over them.

#%k  As the Group has exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
those companies, and has the ability to affect those returns through its majority
voting position and the existing rights to direct the relevant activities including but
not limited to the budget, pricing and promotion strategies of these companies, the
Group has control over these companies and these companies are thus accounted for

as subsidiaries of the Group.

#*k%  During the year, the Group acquired Fujian Liwo and Changsha Zhenro Zhengtai
from third parties. Further details of these acquisitions are included in note 38 to

the financial statements.

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by management of the Company to
translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have

official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 ke
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5 ) AR AR IR S A 1 A R M
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Wi5h > B S BA 2 Bl T -

GLiE-3

%5 B B OGRS ) R
NE AR AL ) BE -F—N\4F
T A=t HIEEER BB - W
Ja > )y AR A ) T A 0
(LR A NPT R - B A I 2
BB B 5 L5 I A5 103 B ) 4OR8 AL By
BEA A R R A R LB B R
1 Fy (BP A 42 B T R i A DA B4R
3B S R 3 B R A R ) S 5
ks > BUEA PEHIHE o
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K2 WA S SO REA > U A 42 F Y F
WHERBHAB R EHROEN TS
& — VVAHBR 2 T R AL - L

@  HEEEERHMSERA AN G
2

(b)  HAbB A LERTE AR K
(©  AREBWSEMEREESAE -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations)
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “[ASB”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

()  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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2.2 TR K4 5% 4 B 2.2

AR AR BB R R IR AL R
BTRT T ARG B R B A5 o A T )

120 ¢ B 5 s E UV 58 2 SR R B 3T
Amendments to IFRS 2

IR P 75 M UV 588 4 S5 F BT

Amendments to IFRS 4

] R B o HE RIS 0 5%
IFRS 9

I B 5 o e RS 15 9%
IERS 15

IR % A RS 15 BERY BT
Amendments to IFRS 15

B e RS 40 BRI BT
Amendments to TAS 40

I R s o i R R B e SR 22 9%
IFRIC 22

G JE P~ F— A2 N AE A
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the first

time for the current year'’s financial statements.

LU 13 73 BERT 11 50 3 H9 2 R R i i

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
FRIT B PR 75 R 75 TR 55 4 9 R B i A I — F JE T I B R P R
9P TR

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with I[FRS 4 Insurance Contracts
A

Financial Instruments

EFaAa

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

P B B BB A SR 15 SE 5P & A

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MR EY

Transters of Investment Property

SFER S RBATCHE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

R 5 5 o 4 U6 0 I i B 56 28 R RS 5T
Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS 9 and IFRS
15, the adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

(@) IFRS 9 Financial Inscruments replaces 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification

and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group has
applied prospectively, the Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening balances in equity at
1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not

restated and continues to be reported under IAS 39.

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting IFRS
9 on the statement of financial position, including the effect of
replacing TAS 39’s incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS 9's
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).
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152

(#)

E VEin
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HE ISR 39 SR IR T A9 B 1A (e B I

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)

Classification and measurement

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under IAS 39 and

the balances reported under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as

S5 i 5 YR BV 2 9 IR T B 2 follows:
KSR Z BHRAIT
B ErRHERIS 39 Bt B R RAE o it
1AS 39 measurement IFRS 9 measurement
it Kl &8 EioE RMGEEEH i & il
Note Category Amount  Reclassification ECL Other Amount Category
AEMF  ARMFL  AREFR  AREFR  AREFxR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SGE Financial assets A
it ERE Available-for-sale investments ARS! 5,000 (5,000) - - - N/A
12 FATETARE  To: Financial assets at fair value
A through profic or loss 0] (5,000) - -
N Due from related companies L&R’ 2677975 — — — 2677975 AC
85 R Trade receivables L&R 15,605 - — — 15,609 AC
AT ATBATEE Bl Financial assets included in prepayments,
FEMGHR R ER  ocher receivables and other assets
hamE L&R 567,607 - - - 567,607 AC
AT AR R Financial assets at fair FVPL
E A value through profit ot loss ()
FVPL* - 5,000 - - 5,000 (mandatory,
B ERE From: Available-for-sale investments i 5,000 - -
ZRiBE Restrited cash LR 3931480 - - - 3940
B Pledged deposics LR 1195303 - - - L1530 AC
REMHEEEY)  Cuband ash equivalens LR 1433948 - - — 1433948 AC
e Total aset 093455 — - - 9
SHAK Financial liabiliies
SRR SUR RIERZER Trade and bils payables AC 553982 - - = 558 AC
AASMBEMZER  Financial liabilities included in other
FERH R 2R B payables and accruals AC 1,075,316 — — — 1,075,316 AC
TERTRE A AR Due to related companies AC 801,280 - — - 801,280 AC
A% Corporate bonds AC 2,002,359 - - - 2,002,359 AC
R RIS Tnterest-bearing bank and
other borrowings AC 40,061,178 — — — 40,061,178 AC
BAf Totallsbliies 49479985 - - = 4941998

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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2.2 FuHBOR R 8 e

(a)

(b)
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1 AFS @ [ it B
2 L&R © B B IR

3 AC © JEHE 8 AR 51 R 1 4 L K e
o4 A E

4 FVPL : 448 TAE T A8 55 1 4 il
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments

2 L&R: Loans and receivables

3 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost

4 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Note:

(i) The Group has classified its trust fund investments previously classified

as available-for-sale investments as financial assets measured at fair value

through profit or loss as these financial instruments were held for trading.

There was no significant impact by replacing the aggregate
opening impairment allowances under IAS39 with ECL allowances

under IFRS 9 on financial instruments as at 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the
financial statements. As a result of the application of IFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue

recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective

method of adoption. Under this method, the standard can be
applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application
or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The
Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not

completed as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS 15
was recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits as at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported under
TAS 11, IAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the
adoption of TFRS 15:

i3 B4,/ Geib)

Increase/
Notes (decrease)
AR
RMB’ 000
2923 Assets
TR A G Deferred tax assets (1i1) 12,150
bR EE )2 Properties under development 6) 651,846
MG Total assets 663,996
AR Liabilities
& 7K Advances from customers (i) (39,324,143)
HEHIAE Contract liabilities (1), (i1) 40,024,590
At Total liabilities 700,447
eSS Equity
R B Y A1) Retained profits (i), (iii) (20,093)
JEHE I A Non-controlling interests (i), (iii) (16,358)
2 403 Total equity (36,451)

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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(b)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(#) (b)
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(Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
line item was affected as at 31 December 2018 and for the
year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption of
IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 has had no impact on other
comprehensive income or on the Group's operating, investing and
financing cash flows. The first column shows the amounts recorded
under IFRS 15 and the second column shows what the amounts
would have been had IFRS 15 not been adopted:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31

FEENGEHEGER December 2018:
AR DA e A 2 S 4
Amounts prepared under
BB R RO B B K,/
I 15 9% el ()
Previous Increase/
Notes IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
i3 ANRWTFIT  AR¥TLT ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i 7 Revenue (1), (if) 26,453,106 26,107,074 346,032
B A Cost of sales (1), (i1) (20,431,790)  (20,134,360) (297,430)
B Gross profit 6,021,316 5,972,714 48,602
R L i A Profit before tax 4,127,479 4,129,568 (2,089)
e SE %) Income tax credit (iii) (1,894,942) (1,883,314) (11,628)
4F W i Profit for the year 2,232,537 2,246,254 (13,717)
DA A HEAG Attributable to:
BARBEE A Owners of the parent (ii1) 2,120,734 2,128,526 (7,792)
FEHE A 2 Non-controlling interests (iii) 111,803 117,728 (5,925)
2,232,537 2,246,254 (13,717)
YNGR T A Earnings per share attributable
A NG R B A to ordinary equity
holders of the parent
A Basic and diluted ARWo0s5278 AR 0.5270
— 4 1A i ) — For profit for the year RMBO0.52 RMBO0.52 —
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2.2 ARl BOR R B %2 B o) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
by (#) (b)  (Continued)
WoF— \E+Z A =1+—H % Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
BMBARIE - 2018:
AR DA T 3 JU 45 S 4

Amounts prepared under
i 3ips s S i3 g B,/
HeRGE 15 9% o sh e ()
Previous Increase/
Notes IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
Bifsd ANRHTLT  AREFFT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R SE R U Deferred tax assets (iii) 1,463,999 1,463,476 523
s i) 2 Properties under development (1) 63,588,003 62,472,731 1,115,272
MG Total assets 141,398,507 140,282,712 1,115,795
& PR Advances from customers (1), (i1) — 45,983,523  (45,983,523)
HHAR Contract liabilities @), (ii) 47,149,486 — 47,149,486
Y=L Total liabilities 116,919,506 115,753,543 1,165,963
FEE Net assets 24,479,001 24,529,169 (50,168)
ikt Reserves (i), (iii) 13,528,703 13,556,588 (27,885)
T I A Non-controlling interests (i), (iii) 10,950,033 10,972,316 (22,283)
%2 205 Total equity 24,479,001 24,529,169 (50,168)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The natute of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the reasons

for the significant changes in the statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2018 and the statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are described below:

(1)

Financing component

For contracts where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised property or service
is more than one year, the transaction price and the amount
of revenue from the sales of completed properties is adjusted
for the effects of a financing component, if significant.
Accordingly, the adoption of IFRS 15 resulted in the increase
of properties under development of RMB651,846,000,
decrease of advances from customers of RMB39,324,143,000
and increase of contract liabilities of RMB40,024,590,000 as
at 1 January 2018, respectively, which resulted in a decrease
in retained profits of RMB20,093,000 and a decrease in
non-controlling interests of RMB16,358,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of IFRS 15
resulted in an increase in properties under development of
RMBI1,115,272,000 and a decrease in contract liabilities of
RMBI,165,963,000, respectively.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

by (#F) (b)

Gi) MEPEEWENTES
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(ii)

(ii1)

(Continued)

Proceeds from customers of pre-sold properties

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised
proceeds from customers of pre-sold properties and the rental
received from lessees of commercial properties as advances
from customers. Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified
as contract liabilities. Accordingly, the Group reclassified
advances from customers of RMB39,324,143,000 to

contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of IFRS 15
resulted in a decrease of advances from customers of
RMB45,983,523,000 and an increase of contract liabilities
of RMB47,149,486,000, respectively.

Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above, other items
of the primary financial statements such as tax were adjusted
as necessary. Retained profits and non-controlling interests

were adjusted accordingly.
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IFRS 16
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IFRS 17
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Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
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Amendments to IAS 19

IR e 4 28 SRR 1B AT

Amendments to IAS 28
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IFRIC 23
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Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

KB EF:

Definition of a Business’

BA B8 A2 S

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

REFHRBE L r 25 B2 0B E &

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or _Joint Venture'

HE"

Leases'

REEE#°

Insurance Contracts’

EYN o

Definition of Material®

A - AT

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

FBE L ARG B F R R !

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

T 1 Bl JE P A TR 1

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

BT T A SR 5 3 5~ BB B AR A SR A 11 5
B g st R 12 9E R B B At HE R 23 SEHT 6 AT

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for

adoption now.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in
IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions

in IFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019
and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to
apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the
date of initial application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed
by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12
months as of the date of initial application. The Group's future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at
31 December 2018 were RMB113,901,000, with the minimum lease
payments of RMB48,735,000 due less than one year, RMB62,494,000
due more than one year and less than five years and RMB2,672,000 more
than five years, respectively. Given that the Group had total assets of
RMB141,398,507,000 and total liabilities of RMB116,919,506,000 as
at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the initial adoption of IFRS 16 will not have any significant impact on

the financial performance and position of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of IFRS 9 only
includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term interests that in
substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an encity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate or
joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January
2019 and will assess its business model for such long-term interests based
on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using the
transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to
apply the relief from restating comparative information for prior periods

upon adoption of the amendments.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the

Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the cartying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds

from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after

reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets

or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that

market participants act in their economic best interest.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()

or

(b)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person

®)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(@

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the patent of the Group.



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TRERHBORBEE )

W3k - b Kk ff BT 8
W RUR R (1 TRRBRSM) T3k
AU 28 T A O A 4RO -
W RO R A A SO R
T A A 4 7 B0 AT T 7 0
7 R B 0 L R R

S7E R N E S E N X TETE
(RS - Al RARE RS > EH R
7R I R A AR o A HE DA E
A B = s T T A R A AR R A
REENEERTE - MBI
W5 B e B ZEAN R L A 4 Tl 50 %
WP~ R BB B AR A
A {1 P 6 391 SRR R 38 FC AR el 4 o

P8 75 LA R e A T {6 4 T
B TEM X - BRE K sk i A R
BRAEE o B0 A5 5T AT 68 P AR 30 R 4
PFrERMT

HEYREE

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the cartying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the annual

depreciation rates ate as follows:

Estimated Annual

useful depreciation

lives rates

it FE

PR 4F S RS

Land and buildings 204 4.75%
20 years 4.75%

Motor vehicles 54 19%
5 years 19%

Office equipment and electronic devices 3-54F  19% %33%
3-5years 19% to 33%

Leasehold improvements 5 4F 20%
5 years 20%
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POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Wherte parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retitement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of

property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects

market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment

properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
cartying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in

profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the

development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those
will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the

properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial
position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the properties.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs ate allocated to each unit according to their respective saleable
gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA. Construction costs
relating to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common
construction costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA

similar to land costs.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are

reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Softwares are stated at cost less any impairment loss and are amortised on

the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated

useful lives.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases wherte substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit

or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and

equipment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income, and fair value through profit ot loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component ot for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost ot fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)

on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting

contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the

following conditions are met:

®  The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash

flows.

®  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows: (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or

significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except

in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes in
fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and

only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance

costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to

needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition

(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the

assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in

equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o e B E WO 4 = T R 2 o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
LI
o AFEFECHREET 7R A . the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
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asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other

credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and

forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and

for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

BB B 1 A o to lifetime ECLs
F) 5
i Simplified approach
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For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has evaluated expected loss rate that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the

simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred

to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later

recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar

financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an

investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and

recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value

after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is

less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment
is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at
amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value
of the instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, an
amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative financial

instruments and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TRERHBORBEE )

SMEEMREL 22— )\4—H
— H 8 ] Z 1 s B 75 e o e
BOMH T MBUR RMRBR ZZF
— )\4E—H—HZHi#H Z B g
B ar RIS 39 SRIH T MBUR) (40)
A FEIfEZF

AN RVBEAT A B0 S L ) (B
A #3004 )RR ) 92 ) 5 TE A e
REEMERFER - RBTHY > A
T 47 L [ HE A 4 2 A T (TR - A
B 4 6525 10 & G 0 1 PR B
P ) 2 e 0 A ) B o B
HATEFHE > EATESILERER S
TR o BREEAT /N A AR 5 A I 22 5 LA
A A T 1 LU 19040 P T B B AR
S I A o LR L I AT I 22 5
A BV A B AR TR o B R0 A
B 58 5 B A BB 0 P T
16 B o ) A R B -

B

O FVBAT AR B R AR I o (R
B # S B 0 R 2R ) B B ST SRR AE O 0
A BRI TR o RBAT H I AE
T A2 S8 [0 HERER A3 3293 /- (EL 3 o

M

TEFAR I - 8 5 B2 4% 10 (085 30 4 i 7
PR Sk 1 G A SR o R LI e
BN T EH R AP EELE
AR o

BB AT B C R R B S 5 AS 1R A
PR E B2 BT R R R R (g
PR 4y o BH AR B ] AR A B A0 52
Gy A B R AR 4 > BB B0 A
(K92 5 A 7 A BB A (R IR T (B -
{67 P 1 5 ko R S S0 P B o

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Corporate bonds

Corporate bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability and
early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host contract)
are classified separately on initial recognition. At the date of issue, both
the liability and early redemption option components are recognised at
fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability component of the corporate
bonds are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The early redemption option is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the corporate bonds are allocated to the liability and early redemption
option components in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction
costs relating to the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the periods of the corporate bonds using the effective interest

method.

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability and early
redemption option (which is not closely related to the host contract) are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition. At the
date of issue, both the liability and early redemption option components

are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the senior notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The early redemption
option is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are allocated
to the liability and early redemption option components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the early
redemption option are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the debt component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the senior notes

using the effective interest method.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as

to use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided

that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of
(i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the general
guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
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of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services provided in the ordinary

course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred
to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or at

a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group's
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by the purchaser; or

J creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the

Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of the

asset.

4E )t Annual Report 2018

197



198

F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

2.4 TRERHBORBEE )

W (H 22— \4F—H—H
R ) (#)

SEME )

5 I 40 T A 2 4 FE T 5l A A
45 52 0B 4 55 4 3 0 2 AR S T 5
B AT R A 2 Ao A AR o

T TR 5E 22 5 f A IR - v A i
K A S I A 0 ) B T
Bk EEH -

BT TE L R B HOR H0) 36 HHE  5 h E
PR B A4 s I H TR EY
P A R 9% T 36 I A 2 B A B A
45 1 B Ry £ A7 HE WS I ASF I AR AT i e
RE R -

P IR B A

AR R Y S A R RS B
B R 5 WS A TS R A R R B 2 I
W75 B 1 FE BT MU A P 42 11k 2 7 4 5 e

271
ae ©

AR A TR 9 e
L 4 e 1 L 8 4 4 4 D 0 2 o e

M A

LB S 8 2 Y DA ) 5 1 0
R T < P TR A il R R B Ui B 4 7
TH R AT G A0 0 R B R 4 B E AR T
(B EO A 3T AERE

5 M A T e S S SRS A 35 e AR A
s -

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Sales of properties (Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation that best depict the Group'’s performance in

satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is

significant.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has a present right to payment and

the collection of the consideration is probable.

Property management service income

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered and the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the

entity performs.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated

with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is

T E A A R RERR recognised when all the following criteria are met:
()  WISENTA RER 2K B K% (e RS (@)  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are
ESY= i transferred to purchasers;

(by Sl AR B — B BT A HE A B 9 45 A
IR N R I

(© WS ERZ

(d)  HE22 5 A B ST IR 45 AT BE AT A
AREE 5 R

(&) 5B ROl LI A RE T 5E 5T
% °
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(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the properties

are retained;
(c)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties is
recognised upon the signing of property handover letter, which is taken
to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the

property have passed to the buyer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement

of financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

Service income from commercial management services and other activities
are recognised when the services are rendered and the inflow of economic

benefit is probable.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are

recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the presentation currency of the
financial statements of the Company for the purpose of aligning with the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income

relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation

and translated at the closing rate.

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with no contracted obligation to repay their

principal or to pay any distribution are classified as part of equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are

leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary

setvices are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Classification between investment properties and completed

properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The Group considers
its intention for holding the properties at the early development stage
of the related properties. During the course of construction, the related
properties under construction are accounted for as properties under
development included in current assets if the properties are intended
for sale after its completion, whereas, the properties are accounted for
as investment properties under construction included in investment
properties if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties
held for sale are transferred to completed properties held for sale and
are stated at cost, while the properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.
Investment properties, both under construction and completed, are

subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit

insurance).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the properties sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated

and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables and prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is disclosed in note 24 and note 25 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for properties under development and completed

properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Based on
the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the subject properties,
the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
of properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in selling

the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which such

estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the income

tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT”)
The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based

on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
the tax authorities for all its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the related

provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,

the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(@)  current prices in an active market for properties of a different

nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

() discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the

cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of investment properties was
RMBS,461,900,000 (31 December 2017: RMB8,542,700,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement,

are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing and commercial
property management by project locations for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, while
no single location’s revenue, net profit or total assets exceeds 10% of
the Group's consolidated revenue, net profit or total assets. As the
economic characteristics are similar in all the locations, where the nature
of property development and leasing and management, are similar, as
well as the nature of the aforementioned business processes, the type or
class of customer for the aforementioned business and the methods used
to distribute the properties or provide the services, and thus all locations

were aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue from the
external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland China
and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside Mainland
China.

Information about major customers
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue at the end of

the reporting period.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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5.  REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

“ZB-N\E  —“FtE
2018 2017
ANRBEFLT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W35 Revenue
F7 G A A Revenue from contracts with customers
SHEME Sale of properties -26,179,344 19,882,015
LEERINE TN Property management service income -56,610 38,816
EIRBS WA Management service income -112,340 2,876
K H R MR WA 7 Revenue from other sources
AU A Rental income 104,812 71,354
26,453,106 19,995,061
ERAHIWES Revenue from contracts with customers
G) s ER (1)  Disaggregated revenue information
BE_ZFZ— /\F+_HA=+—HI For the year ended 31 December 2018
E3i 4
ANRHT T
i 4 R IR [ - Timing of revenue recognition:
SH B ) S A A B — I ] B R Revenue from sale of properties recognised at a point in time 26,179,344
W) S TR IR i 4 o e ] e Revenue from property management services
recognised over time 56,610
B TR IR i i B T D Revenue from management service income
recognised over time 112,340
26,348,294
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5. WA~ JEABBOA Boogs )
%R )

(1)

(ii)

AR ER ()

T RWIEE ARG IR 2 A R
F0TA R 1 0 O S R A4 35 A T
R T A R A T R R A 4
%A

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

@@

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

“E-N\E
2018
AR T T
RMB’000
FIATRE I AA A E f#ERRIs: © Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:
HEYE Sale of properties 21,449,886
Y28 RS WA Property management service income 2,487
21,452,373

JE# AL
AEEEA Y EHE K
Y L/E S gl sl il R ES
HEGHNE - AEMRETT R
HY A RS C R LY 08 T
A HERRE 1 Wi 2 D AR T B M &
o YRS IR S WS o T
AR BRI S B A L RS
RBUETA R I (B B 2 s
A B 4 7 R TR AR S IR
MR BENSH - REHYEE
PR B A #9305 7 HIFR - AR
EL J8R 45 7 0 B O L 2 40 1 R B 40
FAERAIATREE T i -

(if)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Performance obligations

The Group’s performance obligations are related to property sales
contracts and property management service contracts. For property
sales contracts, the Group recognises revenue equal to the contract
amount when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the
legal title of the completed property. For property management
service contracts, the Group recognises revenue equal to the
right to invoice amount when it corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group's performance to date, on a
monthly basis. The majority of the property management service
contracts do not have a fixed term. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclosure the remaining performance

obligations for both types of contracts.
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5.

BoA > oA WBON B et ) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)
—2-0\E  CELF
2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HAte A Other income
F B A Interest income 272,424 138,182
HoAt Others 11,486 3,636
283,910 141,818
L& Gains
e NP R AR AR BB R E Y Net fair value gain from financial assets
OB AR T at fair value through profit or loss 80,452 —
EE 5 M it Exchange gain 11,052 —
B & Forfeiture of deposits 16,313 10,257
B i A Rl 1 i i (BT 39) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) 11,641 1,708
PR bR Gain on bargain purchase 3,734 —
B ~ BE B A E i Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 463 438
123,655 12,403
407,565 154,221
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6. BRBLHIHRA

A B R BRI R 5 B LR & IER

(FEA) RS

CEfFEEA
FHEH BT R TYER
o L AR A B (W)

P 8 b ) SERERE O (B 1R

W - B RS A AT

G LA T B

HEYE - B M fiHE

i tE, (Was) ¥
B O 2~ ] A i g
KA
3 GEnl
< (e L T

1 B4R I B 2 (f 3 2 I
T EATBON B FM (HaEs)) :

HERTE

Rt R AL g E A

Notes to Financial Statements

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Cost of inventories sold

Impairment losses written off for completed
properties held for sale (Note)

Impairment losses recognised for properties
under development

Depreciation of items of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property plant
and equipment, net

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Rental expenses

Auditors’ remuneration

Impairment losses on financial assets, net

Employee benefit expense (including directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration (note 8)):

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions and social welfare

s 51

Notes

23

23

22

13

16

39

25

ZF N\

2018
ARHTF T
RMB’000

20,274,343

(186,508)

282,783

29,235
4,437

46
(11,641)
49,980
9,816
4,141

452,908
59,606

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

e
2017
ARHETE
RMB’000

15,753,173

(72,330)

74,030

21,708
2,702

(351)
(1,708)
32,119

7,290

385,005
49,665

WGk« RZIHH R ASE R R R B AT -

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Note: It is included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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KRS BEREEUREE
SCHE 2R B S AL

WS i 4 A BB 52

7.  FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

N
2018 2017
ARWFTE  ARMTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

Interest on bank loans and other borrowings,
corporate bonds,senior notes
and proceeds from asset-backed securities 3,771,616 2,948,345

Interest expense arising from revenue contracts 860,149 —

W EAEALE

4,631,765 2,948,345
Less: Interest capitalised (4,250,283)  (2,396,8006)

381,482 551,539

8. HHINHi

AR ETTRLR ~ Fis A R 383(1) @)

(b) > (© B O LA B /A 7] (4 7% 2 = A 45
RE) B BIER 2 B R 1 AR A BE TR R K = AT
B EHMa T

8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:
“F2—-)\E E L
2018 2017
ANREFL AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
I Fees 900 —
oA 45 - Other emoluments:
T ~ s X E A Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 14,259 6,905
FILH A (AT * Performance-related bonuses* 2,752 2,215
EE LR Pension scheme contributions
JoAt e 4g F| and social welfare 511 396
17,522 9,516
. AN T T 847 3 35 G HEE S B A £ 3 [k & Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which

045 i 1A B ) FE ALK

are associated with the profit after tax of the Group.

4E #t Annual Repore 2018 215



216

F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements

“Z—-N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

8. EHIHM =

(@ BWrIATES
Beif e ~ VEBIHE SR S A F
SR E—LE AT A
AR A AT B BATHES -

i

— Rl bR s
— VLB HE A
—EfF A

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Loke Yu, Mr. Shen Guoquan and Mr. Wang Chuanxu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 15 December 2017.

=F-N\E —FLF
2018 2017

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Fees

— Mr. Loke Yu 300 —
— Mt. Shen Guoquan 300 —
— Mr. Wang Chuanxu 300 —

900 —

RN S R S JE AT
HNHM (T ) -

There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-

executive directors during the year (2017: Nil).

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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8. EIHIHM a0 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) ITESF - ERLTEELE (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
RITBAR chief executive
BLEE
A& H L R
TE - et A A RCEETl
REDRER 3 IR G Pension
Salaries, (LA Bquity-settled scheme
allowances Performance-  share-based contributions B st
#%  and benefits related payment  and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare remuneration

ABHTFE  ARKTE  ARKFZ  ARKTZ  AEKFZ  ARWTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ZE-N\E 2018

HiES ! Executive directors:

-l — Mr. Huang Xianzhi — 3,177 771 = 107 4,055

it — M. Lin Zhaoyang = 1315 629 — 71 2,015

— iR — Mr. Chan Wai Kin = 2,783 369 = 12 3,164

- EARREE — Mr. Wang Benlong - 2,281 363 - 107 2,751
— 9,556 2,132 = 297 11,985

FafTESR: Non-executive directors:

— BB e ~ Mr. Ou Guogiang - 2,046 310 - 107 2,463

—BRRfEL — Mr. Ou Guowei = 2,045 310 = 107 2462
= 4,091 620 = 214 4925

13,647 2,752 = 511 16,910

i St 2017

HiTES Executive directors:

— B — Mr. Huang Xianzhi — 2,861 827 — 99 3,787

— MR S - M. Lin Zhaoyang = 1,824 684 = 99 2,607
= 4,685 1,511 = 198 6,394

FafrES Non-executive ditectors:

—RRE R — Mr. Ou Guogiang — 1,110 366 - 99 1,575

BB &L — Mr. Ou Guowei = 1,110 338 = 99 1,547
= 2,220 704 = 198 3,122
= 6,905 2,215 — 396 9,516
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8. EHIHM =

(b) BTEF BT EF LR
RATBA B (41)
FAlALSEE A A A F I R R 3
TTH o MEAREEA LT HE S
WZFE—NEZHZ+/NHHET—
BEBEAXAGTHAR CH-F
—/\AEZ A =4\ BT A A
STV AT AR o SR =B —
FEANAZ T L HBHERATES o B
fRef 5 A (AR 7 ) ) 40 2 e B 7 4
B CEEAAARNTES - A
SR )NENH ZBRAER - TA
A -E - NE_HA-+/N\H
BT B A Al AT ARG o 47
N > RS S a R = TN B
b=y ZEREEA RS

9. T d v H R H

ER DARBHMERQF-4#ESE
(ZF— L MAESE) > HBHMFE
HOR b SRS o S R A R B
RITHABRER T (CF L4 =
) BRI R B A BRI I

T& - B LA
KB HTEAL
B e E AL g

8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive (Continued)
Mr. Huang Xianzhi is the chairman and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Lin Zhaoyang (an executive director),who had been
serving as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company prior to 28
February 2018, has been re-designated as a joint Chief Executive
Ofticer of the Company from 28 February 2018. He resigned as an
executive director on 27 August 2018. Mr. Chan Wai Kin, vice
president and the chief financial officer of the Company, has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from
3 September 2018. Mr. Wang Benlong has been promoted to a
joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 28 February
2018. There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2017: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2017: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:
—F)\E CE L
2018 2017
AT  AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,559 3,748
Performance-related bonuses 598 986
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 170 297

7,327 5,031

218 IE 2 4 & 4 A PR A 5] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

10.

A s W R B )
A DL 9 9 .08 6 B i
BO\ B B H I BB -

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:
=P
Number of employees
—E)\HE  —F L
2018 2017
Z % 500,000 70 Nil to HK$500,000 = =
500,001 # G 2 1,000,000 ¥ I HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 = =
1,000,001 % JC % 1,500,000 #5 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — —
1,500,001 # TG & 2,000,000 ¥ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 = 2
2,000,001 ¥ JCZE 2,500,000 ¥ G HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 1
2,500,001 #5JC £ 5,000,000 #5 70 HK$2,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 2 =
2 3

Pi 8L

A5 T E 0 A 4 BB D I R A
P AE T 5 ) T M D 2 S I i
TR R YA P A BL o AR PH 2 B
e % i e R B WO B Bk A > AR SR
A B 5 T 5 T S L e s R M S Y
W B 2 ) B RS AE T BT AL A SR T
A A vl M A8 I Ja 2 ) B JR A
BB ARZEAFARBE —F— /\4F
A=A Bk A B R A
TEE A PR A T B R i 1

7% 4 [ 7 o B T A R DR 4
PIZELHE 25 % BB BUAR B A SE PR BL

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any assessable
profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
PRC CIT at a rate of 25% for the year.
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10. Wif3Bt )

M BB T3 B 30% F 609% I SR HERL
e 3 o b (BRI > R (AR A i
B gy S T A5 TSR AT B S (R A
A B OB B A b B 2% S
) o AR AR R A B P B A B
B B 8 B T (B A B MR
Towt B B TE B M o - 0 (B 4B 7
o B TS B AT B R A A B

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures. The Group has estimated, made and
included in taxation a provision for LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant Mainland China tax laws and regulations. The
LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval by the local tax

bureau.

e
2018 2017
ARBFL  ABHTT
RMB 000 RMB 000

R A Current tax:
Hh B A ZE T 15 i PRC CIT 1,279,020 848,245
Fh B8] - b (o PRC LAT 1,047,904 610,225
R FERLIE (B aE 19) Deferred tax (note 19) (431,982) (230,285)
A A TE 52 AR Total tax charge for the year 1,894,942 1,228,185

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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A8 7 B 8 R D I 2 7
e I 4 A R i
FI 4 715 S B I A 3
B 155 B S L B 3 (B
TR SRR R R T -

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the
effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,

the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate ate as follows:

ZFNFE ZFuF
2018 2017
ARBTE  ARETL
RMB’000  RMB 000

I B i s A Profit before tax 4,127,479 2,749,579
ek g Bl T At the statutory income tax rate 1,031,870 687,395
B A2 B T B A U6 R B e 4R Profits and losses attributable to
joint ventures and associates 39,488 19,457
NGIEiEN Expenses not deductible for tax 22,480 13,490
RAEAE R BB B R 1R Tax losses and deductible temporary differences
T T B utilised from previous years (185,337) (104,709)
A BE R 4 T 411 By 25 L Deductible temporary differences not recognised 75,961 60,263
R HERR A BLS fe 1E Tax losses not recognised 124,552 94,620
o (Y S8 Provision for LAT 1,047,904 610,225
+ (B B 2 Tax effect on LAT (261,976) (152,556)
T A S B R B SR L B A Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 1,894,942 1,228,185
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10. Wif3Bt )

1.

N B A 3 R 2 R E A Y B
O B N R 620,547,000 0 (- — &
4 N 321,667,000 70) o A4 E A
B A 3 T B A B A 1 B LS R A R
#567,895,000 0 (= F— L4 AR
295,724,000 70 ) & %5 45 48 £ R W AUAE &
B2 R w REAG U A Bolda |

AR BEBS IR UL R 1A 9 BB R A

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB620,547,000 for the year (2017: RMB321,667,000).
The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounting to RMB 567,895,000 for the year (2017: RMB295,724,000)

is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates”

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

ZE)E F L
2018 2017
ANR¥TL ARETFL
RMB’000  RMB’000
JRE AT v s SE AR B PRC CIT payable 1,228,218 798,535
JRE AR} ] - o 8 {5 PRC LAT payable 1,069,454 631,022
JRE 53 758 VL A Total tax payable 2,297,672 1,429,557
B A, 11. DIVIDENDS

R )E DR
2018 2017
ANRETL ARETL
RMB’000  RMB’000

BER AW S — B @ A 0.15 W T Proposed final — HK$0.15 (2017: HK$0.10)
(ZF—+4 0.10%0) per ordinary share 527,662 329,918

A A BE AR IR R 0 M B 2R B A AR 2 ] JBOR
AT i e RO A7 K 2 A o

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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12.

B vl A A 1A N A
(o3 2l

3 T Rk A 8 ) T AR R £ ) 8 o E 2 R
AN A A 4F B 3 L DL A R B B AT
T B T 24 $04,069,435,616 (&
—4F 1 2,999,974,584 ) 74 o

AAERE _F - NFER-F-LF T
H =+ —H k4 B IR R AR 8 A 4 %8
FH B A A8 e o HE - 24 B B DL %
HEtE: ARAR _F—tHE—H—
H1 B - AARAREE-F—t
Ft A =4 H R E 1T 10 49,999
Je B Ay S A s Al AR 98 I — % — N4 —
H 475 H 8 A 0 & A b 35 47 1M 35 47 1
2,999,950,000 & 5 7 K - A 4N 5% S AR 4R
BAAL BT AT BN R B R R E
TR ER T E—BEF A S
HiEFEERET W B &4 ET
1,000,000,000 i 47 & 28 i o i = F— N\
WA ZH o BRI AT
ELA N A e %8 J 847 123,000,000 A & 4
[ty

MAAEBREE —F — E L %
—tE+ZA=+ A ILEFEI D %
TV S E L > Wl AR E =%
—NERZF—tHEF+ZA=Z+—HI
A B3] 2 A P AR B R AR S R o

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,069,435,616
(2017: 2,999,974,584) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate the
basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 was based on 1 share of the Company as at 1 January 2017,
49,999 shares of the Company issued in the year ended 31 December
2017, and 2,999,950,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued under
the capitalisation issue occurred on 16 January 2018, as if these additional
shares issued under the capitalisation issue had been in issue throughout
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. On the same day, the
Company issued 1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares. On 2 February
2018, the over-allotment option has been partially exercised and the
Company allotted and issued 123,000,000 additional shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of a
dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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12. BAFMEEERF A AMELS 12, EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBTABLE TO

BB A ) ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(Continued)

B B A % 1 B R 4 AR SRR DA R B The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are

H3tg based on:

“FMNE ZFLF
2018 2017
ARWTE  ARKTT
RMB'000 RMB’000

A Earnings
B ) i R AR A i Profit attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent 2,120,734 1,408,876
[ty Shares
SF N E AT AR Y IR B Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year 4,069,435,616  2,999,974,584
BREF Barnings per share ARMo0s5278  AR¥o0477C
A T Basic and diluted RMBO.52 RMB0.47
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13. ¥ ~ B Bkt 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ot

YERE]

Office

TRt KE) equipment  FEHRTHE
Land and Motor  and electronic Leasehold st
buildings vehicles devices improvements Total
ARWFE  ARWFT  ARWFT  ARFFT  ARWFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ZF—)\E+ZH 31 December 2018
3+~
AF—LETTA At 31 December 2017

“F—HRZFE—\%E  and 1 January 2018:

—H—=R:

AR Cost — 86,731 41317 61,108 195,156

ZitirE Accumulated depreciation = (59,531) (34,701) (26,222) (120,454)
R Net carrying amount — 27,200 12,616 34,886 74,702
R=F—/NF—H—H> Acl January 2018,

i 25trE net of accumulated depreciation - 27,200 12,616 34,886 74,702
HE Additions 69,384 8,362 7,265 41,212 126,223
HE Disposals = (284) (848) = (1,132)
g YN Acquisition of subsidiaries — 365 434 289 1,088
HEMBEAT Disposal of subsidiaries — (866) — — (866)
R B AEWE (W5 14) Transferred from investment

properties (note 14) 600,700 - - - 600,700
BREFELE Transferred from completed properties
ERTHE(ME23)  held for sale (note 23) 105,402 — — — 105,402
TR Depreciation provided during the year — (8,621) (5,587) (15,027) (29,235)
AF—NETZH  At31 December 2018,

=t—H: net of accumulated depreciation

MR RFHTE 775,486 26,156 13,880 61,360 876,882
n=ZF—/\%F+_H At 31 December 2018:
=t—h:

A Cost 775,486 95,458 55,016 102,609 1,028,569

it Accumulated depreciation = (69,302) (41,136) (41,49) (151,687)
AR Net carrying amount 775,486 26,156 13,880 61,360 876,882
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13. W3 ~ BB Rt o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

LN
T
Office
THREF Tk equipment  fHEHRLHE
Land and Motor  and electronic Leasehold At
buildings vehicles devices  improvements Total
AREFE  ARBFE  ARBFE  ARFFE  AREFT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e o vt 31 December 2017
+ZA=+—H
WZZ—7~E+ZH At 31 December 2016
“F—HARZF—L%E  and 1 January 2017:
—H—H:
A Cost — 79,928 41,535 2477 148,940
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation = (50,776) (28,159) (19,811) (98,746)
FRE (A Net carrying amount — 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
REF—LF—H—H> AclJanuary 2017,
bk 25t net of accumulated depreciation — 29,152 13,376 7,666 50,194
RE Additions = 8,051 5,834 33,631 47,516
e Disposals — (1,248) (52) — (1,300)
FETERE Depreciation provided during the year — (8755) (6,542) (6411) (21,708)
WoFE—tFE+TA At 31 December 2017,
=t—H net of accumulated depreciation
G Z5H4re — 27,00 12,616 34,886 74,702
n=Z—t4F+-H At 31 December 2017
=R
A Cost 86,731 41317 61,108 195,156
it Accumulated depreciation — (59,531) (34,701) (26,222) (120,454)
JRm A Net carrying amount — 27,00 12,616 34,886 74,702

AN_FE-NEF A= —H AEH
AR TR (E A1 A\ R % 515,699,000 76 (— %
— L4 )N E - RELXHDE

i By A SR B REAR 1Y R AT B L At i S £F the Group (note 30).

AP (BHE 30) o

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB515,699,000
(2017: Nil) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements

“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

14. tEWE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

pid
Under [ AN At
construction Completed Total
ARBTL  ARMFT  AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZF—t4E— A — HINARE{ Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 3,016,624 4,405,236 7,421,860
KE Additions 449,888 — 449,888
WA R Transferred from properties under
(Fit7E 22) development (note 22) 317,154 — 317,154
o Transfer (1,753,756) 1,753,756 —
ONFE R AR 0 R AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment 59,890 293,908 353,798
REF—HEFZA=+—H Carrying amount at 31 December 2017
R=F—N\¥—H—H and 1 January 2018
H) A 1 (L 2,089,800 6,452,900 8,542,700
NE Additions 293,738 — 293,738
BB (M7 22)  Transferred from properties under
development (note 22) 81,601 — 81,601
L ELE R i Transferred to property,
(PftzE13) plant and equipment (note 13) — (600,700) (600,700)
e Transfer (69,492) 69,492 —
N B R A5 i 1 AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment 94,653 49,908 144,561
ANE—)EFZH=1T—H Carrying amount at 31 December 2018
HY B i 2,490,300 5,971,600 8,461,900

AR T () £ S P R o AR
T FF) 5% 5 ) 2 T R i 0 S BEE A AR A
{8 i 52 W 17 A 2E A B A PR A
[ A7 1) RPN R =& — N4+ 2
A=+—HEE 5 N R%8,461,900,000
T(ZFE—LF AR 8,542,700,000
TC) o 7% A 1B ) 55 A A 5 48 L I A A
BN ) 2 A AR E R AT MR A
(L R B2 55 A 4 [ ) 2E 0 MR A - R
PRME IS T S ok~ BB B R
B IR ETEE o AR = AR B AC
T J% A 5 A O B (M A A AT B T R
A (L1 A (AR S A (B 5 R A T o

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2018 based
on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at RMB8,461,900,000 (2017: RMB8,542,700,000). The Group’s senior
finance manager and the chief financial officer decide, after approval from
the board of directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group's senior
finance manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the

valuation is performed for financial reporting.
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14. BeEW*E ) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
WNoE—NE+_H=+—H > &~&EH As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment properties with an
MBS E 4 N R 4,005,124,000 70 (=& aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB4,005,124,000 (2017:
—bE : NR¥s5 742,689,000 70) MY & RMB5,742,689,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
YISECVE o B AR B R SR AT R granted to the Group (note 30).

At fE KA (B 3E 30)

AN FAE e Fair value hierarchy
TR A E BB EY R A PER & The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
JE#% - the Group's investment properties:

REZZ-NE+ZA=1—H
£ DU AR B AP 5t i
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
WS EAWEE EAFTEE
ZHfE LN ¢ LN ‘¢
GE—#) (B8 =)

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANBETFE  AR¥TFE  AR¥TT  ARKTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

UL N B &R Recurring fair value
A THER 2 measurement for:
EAZANHE2L/ES Completed commercial properties — — 5,971,600 5,971,600
e SE Y Commercial properties
under construction — — 2,490,300 2,490,300

— — 8,461,900 8,461,900

228 IE 2 4 & 4 A PR A 5] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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14. BLEYE ) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
NP T B ) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

REF—-tE+ZA=F—H

(R AT BRI 2 F-(E 7T

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using

TS EATEE BRATEE
b { | LIUN G LN G
(5E—%) (€ ot 4 (=)
Quoted prices ~ Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRBBTE  ARBTLZ  ARETT  ARETTL
RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
UL NI B T Recurring fair value
REHEN TR measurement for:
SR ENHERY/ES Completed commercial properties — — 6,452,900 6,452,900
TERE T 2EW) Commercial properties
under construction — — 2,089,800 2,089,800
- — 8,542,700 8,542,700
R > A — 4 B — 4k il 4N T During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
El B R R S ok R g between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017:

R FE L4 ) o Nil).
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14. BEWE )

AVAE R % (4)
DL 4% 0 3 1 61 T 1 000 08 (607 0 J%
FE AR -

i B

Valuation techniques

S ENGESYES

Completed commercial

properties method
iR A ES7ES AN
Commercial properties Comparison

under construction method

B3R TR NN FETVEREAE
AL E > TR E R A B
R B LA A B S BAT L R
AT REIAS 9 E 4B O T CRUREL 4 B Y 7E
AW T ) > REMUE
AL > DA B AL L3 8 i A
{H - MEEBEEFEN T 2HEMETE L
AT AT LS S o

(RN F IR € g <87 E TN
FERWEEM - RAIZ=EBEREEARLL
R R R B (D) i B B
{922 P ER IR D () -

KA EARE

Income capitalisation

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs

to the valuation of investment properties:

BN AT i A\ Bk i S RT3
Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
“E—)\E F L
2018 2017
it (AR
BYHALEH) 31-256 30-248
Estimated rental value
(RMB per sq.m. and per month)
EAfLibE 3.5%-5% 3.5%-5%
Capitalisation rate
A
Expected profit margin 15% 15%

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by
the income capitalisation method by taking into account the net rental
income of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference has also been made to the comparable sales transactions as

available in the relevant market.

A significant increase in the estimated rental value would result in a
significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties. A
significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease

(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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14. BEWE w0

I5.

NFAERE R (48)

TEH T ) 00 A T H R
o BB EMBT S LA TR
558 5 8 230 (4 ) 46 3n I b4 F I8 B
BELENATHE (BERE®RT)

o TGS HE ST RN E A il R
RERAREEE 5 K

o TGS EE NG MEMEER T
FORFFA AL R AIRE 2 o

Ml AR - e ERE R E
/E YNSRIV i

T L3R kR

14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is determined
by using the comparison method, with reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of
the property assuming it was completed and, where appropriate, after

deducting the following items:

. Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be expensed
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market

participant; and

o Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to

hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated construction costs, the lower the fair value of

the investment properties under construction would result.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

“FN\E ZFLE

2018 2017

ANBBTL  AR¥TIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

it —H — H R (E Carrying amount at 1 January 3,052,356 7,328,831
AN Additions during the year 12,636,296 8,308,259
138 2 B B P ) 2 (BT 22) Transferred to properties under development (note 22)  (14,720,794)  (12,584,734)
A = — H R Carrying amount at 31 December 967,858 3,052,356
B R4 Less: Current portion 754,184 2,926,996
I R 2 Non-current portion 213,674 125,360

90 3t i PR S AN B TR - M A B AROR
TomAR s IR AR A o ELA B S0 7
A o

AR NEFZA=Z+—H > AEE
W TR] 1 40 N B W 344,034,000 0 (. F
—L4F - AR 2,350,418,000 78) 19 At
TR R IEE R A S AR E R
SRAT B AMAE FRAEHEH (B 5F 30) o

The prepaid land lease payments for land use rights are held under
medium term leases and the parcels of land are situated in Mainland
China.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's prepaid land lease payments with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB344,034,000 (2017:
RMB2,350,418,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 30).
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ZE—NEFZHA=T—H
31 December 2018

16. CALAEH ¥ A

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

“EF-)\E SR
2018 2017
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Ligts Software
R—H—H At 1 January
A Cost 13,261 8,667
CEE Accumulated amortisation (6,131) (3,429)
R T 13 (L Net carrying amount 7,130 5,238
R—H—HZ A Cost at 1 January,
bk 2R net of accumulated amortisation 7,130 5,238
NE Additions 7,336 4,594
B B A A (BT 39) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) 89 —
GRONTRR T e Amortisation provided during the year (4,437) (2,702)
wrZH=+—H At 31 December 9,940 7,130
RTZA=+—H: At 31 December:
A Cost 20,508 13,261
ZnH Accumulated amortisation (10,568) (6,131)
MR T H(E Net carrying amount 9,940 7,130

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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17.

REBEENSH

oM E

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

“F-0\E CZLF

2018 2017
ARH T ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

Share of net assets 1,931,702 1,404,370

A SR I B 7 A S ) 5 ) M WK I
IR RS B 5 R Y RE 43 8%

(a)

(b)

ARHEE 2B DR ¢

Gk

Name of company

REERESERARAH
Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate

Co., Ltd.

REIERET B AR RAF (2
“E LR FE—)\E+ A
Et—HER AR ERNEESE
A2 ) B A B 7R b Y LAt A 7 8
SR BB — YR EEE - BRA
HERRIEAE o

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are

disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.

(a)  Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as follows:

S B AV i 7 B
[Ep g
BHEA Percentage of
ERUEE Y Paid-in capital ownership interest ~ FEEE)
Place and year of ARKT attributable  Principal
registration RMB’ 000 to the Group  activities
PR 100,000 50% MR
TR -NE Property
Wuhan, PRC development

2016

(b)  Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd., which is considered a
material joint venture of the Group for 31 December 2017 and
2018, develops a property development project with the other joint
venture partner in Mainland China and is accounted for using the

equity method.
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234

17. REBEENRE @) 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
by (#) (b)  (Continued)
TRINERREELETTEER The following table illustrates the summarised financial
PR 7] B RS E R > B AT information in respect of Wuhan Zhengsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.
Bt BOR 2 R R AR A B adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to
5 3 T 1 B T (BB the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
SR )\ Bt
+ZA=Z+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ANR#F ARBTFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Ha LB G5 EY Cash and cash equivalents 505,205 56,053
HAh 3 ) Other current assets 5,824,461 5,963,287
) B Current assets 6,329,666 6,019,340
I & Non-current assets 10,200 781
EMAR > AMFEES Financial liabilities, excluding trade
T H At A5F R 0A and other payables (840,956) (125,982)
HoAb i B £ i Other current liabilities (1,151,018) (19,092)
B A H Current liabilities (1,991,974) (145,074)
R AR Non-current liabilities (2,800,000) (4,300,000)
HEE Net assets 1,547,892 1,575,047
HAEBRGEREN Reconciliation to the Group's interest
MR ER - in the joint venture:
7% B 8 i A L Proportion of the Group's ownership 50% 50%
ASE B REAG £ R Group's share of net assets
of the joint venture 773,371 787,524
BT )y 28 5 i R A B Adjustment for unrealised profits and
R losses from related party transactions — (288)
I S Carrying amount of the investment 773,371 787,236
it Revenue = —
i3 Expenses (36,973) (20,048)
BiIE Tax 9,243 -
GRN) W&k Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year (27,730) (20,048)

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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17. REBEENEE @)

© TR A I L I A K
AR RIME TS

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

() The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

—F-N\FE ZE b
2018 2017
ANRETFL ARFTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R MG 8 b R Share of the joint ventures’ loss and total
PER T E Rk comprehensive income for the year (45,617) (55,533)
BN 0 2 2 i R A LR AR Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
1E R from related party transactions (3,218) (632)
AL EIN G B ERERN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
M T (B 48 %A investments in the joint ventures 1,158,331 617,134

ARNFEERR > BRREES
I BCE WA R T 2B (2%
—LF ) MR ZF-A D
A =4 — B eHR B A - &
BEXCIRMER LR ZF MR
N X

R-Z—A+ZA=+—H &%
V5 48 B T B 4 A R 54,592,000 76
(ZF—L4F: AR #¥38,617,000
6 A B A ENRECEH
Py 7R B B 0 R AT A SR A
FEH (KL 30)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2018 as the
investments in joint ventures are considered fully recoverable (2017:
Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity

method in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investments in joint
ventures with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB54,592,000 (2017: RMB38,617,000) were pledged to secure
bank other borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).
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18. TG A vl B

oM

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—F N\

2018
AR
RMB’000

Share of net assets 1,796,827

—FT—tEF
2017
ARW T
RMB’000

207,587

A S5 1 BRI 5 5 M WSRO I
SR B S 5 A MR R 43 8%

DT RS - R ONE -

The Group'’s trade receivable and payable balances with associates are

disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

2 A REEE IS R - Group’s associates that are not individually material:
“R)\E CE L
2018 2017
AR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
S A ) s 1R I 4 THT A g A AR Share of the associates” loss and
total comprehensive income (98,471) (12,269)
SR TR 77 22 7 119 oA 58 O L i A A WA 8 Adjustment for unrealised profits and
losses from related party transactions (11,367) (557)
AR T W O IR I MR T (B AR AR Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's investments in the associates 1,796,827 207,587

ARTVERGER - R A L R B
B AT R > R = F —
A=t B AR B ER M (%
—LF ) o BHEAE C S IR
FMBEWENE -

The directors of the Company ate of the opinion that no provision for

impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2018 as the investments in

associates are considered fully recoverable (2017: Nil). The associates have

been accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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19. BB

IR A M A RE R B I

19. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax assets

Bt KRk
FRERE  ERBRAN K5 SHgE
SHlEE L] it Hillhas WiliER
Lossesavalable ~~ Advertising fee L5 Rk Unrealised it Impaimment
for offsetting for offsetting THREN Accrued evenue HHSHfER losses on
againstfuture — against furure Payroll and construction received Accrued financial it
txable profits  taxable profits  welfare accrual cost inadvance LAT asets Total
WV V- V. Y V- V- YV Y U A U
RMB 00 RMB'00 RMB000 RMB00 RMBID RMB00 RUBID RMB'00
REZ=REFZA=1=H  Ac31 December 2016a0d 1 January 2017
RoE-tE-f-H 04l 2B 5312 19370 73493 114,566 - 898858
SERHA/ (IR B VRER  Delered caxcredited(charged) to proficor
EiHE los during he year 26,129 (2189) 1979 16,52 2949 36803 - 318,34
REE-LETZR=T—H A3 December 2017 4859 84 791 589 974416 151,369 - 1217592
IRRRRRT R SRR ot ofadopion of RS 15
FaV74 = = = = 1,150 = = 12,150
REF=RNE=A=BIET)  Ac Janay 2018 restated) 185 8 191 359 986,566 151369 = 129742
HERRBAT (Hik30) Disposal of subsidiaies (note 39) 697) - (557) = - - = (1254)
FRTARENELRE  Delered caxcredited o proficorlos
duringthe yar 14205 23% 265 5.9 356312 67354 1035 469,48
REF-NEFZAZT=H eI December 2018 62,067 47 9361 61,189 1342478 2873 1035 1,697,736
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19. EHEBEE 41)
B JE G B R P 0 2

19. DEFERRED TAX (Conatinued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as

238

(#) : follows (continued):
IEAERLE A Deferred tax liabilities
BATFEA
VER G Ba e
B BEELN
BENEEL NYVERE  EHLEEE REL
A TR Fairvalue B4 FHEAE Fai value
Fair value adjustment Fair value adjustment
adjustment arising from adjustment arising from
arising from propetty, arising from ~ financial assets at
investment plant and business ~ fair value through st
properties equipment combination profit or loss Total
ARBTF ANRW T ANRHTT ARH T ARFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEZFE—-AEFZA=1—H At31 December 2016 and
R=Z—t4—H—H 1 January 2017 637,092 — — — 037,092
ERABEMRIELRE  Deferred tax charged to
profit or loss during the year 88,449 - - - 88,449
WEE—tF+=H=+—H Ac31 December 2017 and
R=F—-N\F—A—H 1 January 2018 725,541 — — — 725,541
EREREMROEEHE  Deferred tax charged to
profit or loss during the year 36,141 - 13,275 - 49,416
Yo A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — — — 158,371 158,371
e Transfer (64,947) 04,947 — — —
B=F—=N\FEF+ZH=1—H At31 December 2018 696,735 64,947 13,275 158,371 933,328

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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19. EHEBLIE ) 19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

HESE B H 7 ()

BB BT B > T IR B IR A L A
B A& BB R B IS8 © AT ok
P W O AE BLIFAS BR AT

TARR G BB IR LR M A B A
ST BLIR B TTHE

TR 5 BB IR LR P e s Y
HTERE B A fR 1 (E

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:
SR )\4E B L
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR #FF AR BT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Net deferred tax assets recognised in

the consolidated statement of

financial position 1,463,999 1,059,807
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in

the consolidated statement of

financial position (699,591) (567,756)

764,408 492,051

i AGE YN R RS A D
FE F I (A 3B ST A A0 T B A 2 1 i A
& # B UK B Rl 109 1) TE 40
B e H - FRNE—H—HilLE
Bt EAR —EELFE+F A= +—H
R 0 A o it R I At B A I 4
G T E IR R AR AE B 2 > TR
A T B 2R o A 4 [ ) 28 2R 1
109% o R > 7% 58 [ 28 sk % 45 76 h B A
R ST BB S Rt B NAE—H —
H A 7 A 1) 28 A1 BT 20 Uik 119 Jst S8 460 Ak 7
ﬁﬁo

WoFE— )+ H=+—H > I
A 5 ] A o B A b AR Y A JE 4 D 2B
AP TR B 1 R RE L 280 R B 45T 1 T B e
FRATATEAERLIH o RARIEEGR A > A
£ B 1) 4 ok 4 e AN 4 (B 1Y 88 4 T
o A R R IR S A SR S A R TR
TR 0] e 43 VR AT B 28 R o B Sl
il R A0 H0E 30 T R A v A O A
MR BAEA LGB A
R#5,280,614,000 G (= &F—L4F : AR
3 275,407,000 C) ©

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of
the Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB5,280,614,000 (2017: RMB3,275,407,000).
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20. A PRI ABENALBE  20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

T PROFIT OR LOSS
ZFMNFE ZFEE
2018 2017
ANBWTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A TAEFIRE I b R & Listed equity investments, at fair value 862,161 —
B RS Less: Current portion 862,161 —
B> Non-current portion — —
W NF+ A=+ — ki The above equity investments at 31 December 2018 were classified as
WHRE T HEE S HE > BLES 8 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for
BAFEFIA RGN EMEE trading.
WoE— ) EF-A=1+—H > &AEH At 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets at fair value through
4B T (E 40 A\ R §5743,135,000 70 (% profit or loss with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
— LA M) AR A TEE R AR R 4 RMB743,135,000 (2017: Nil) were pledged to secure bank and other
BEDEW B A E R ST R H borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).

iR (B 3E 30)
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21.

22.

uAk i B

BAPEFIE AR SR E
W B Y

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Trust fund investments, at fair value

Less: Current portion

—F N\

2018
AR
RMB’000

—E—tLF
2017
ARM T
RMB’000

5,000
5,000

FE B RSy

Non-current portion

LR BB REEREERE  HERT

B R ETE » AEHeA TR -

The above investments consist of trust fund investments which were

designated as available-for-sale financial assets and measured at fair value.

Bﬁﬁ FP% % 22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
“F-M\E T
2018 2017
ANRHFL ARETFE
RMB’000 RMB 000
A —H—H iR E Carrying amount at 1 January 40,802,768 37,524,366
N Additions 22,125,860 13,342,162
LA AT M A R (R 1) Transferred from prepaid land lease
payments (note 15) 14,720,794 12,584,734
T 22 A B B R LA (MR 23) Transferred to completed properties held for
sale (note 23) (15,896,101) (22,338,959)
R 2 B (M55 14) Transferred to investment properties (note 14) (81,601) (317,154)
W S 2 ) (3T 38) Acquisition of subsidiaries(note 38) 2,908,885 —
2 D (FF 3 39) Disposal of subsidiaries(note 39) (1,082,358) —
LR (B 1 (BT 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) (282,783) (74,030)
R FEE TR LY Impairment losses transferred to completed
Y B (E A 4 (BT 23) properties held for sale (note 23) 372,539 81,649
A = — H R Carrying amount at 31 December 63,588,003 40,802,768
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22. BHEEPHIE @)

7% S T B B 2% v 0 6 I 9
Bl o

REFB—NEFZHA=1T—H AE£H
B T (E A0 N B ¥ 48,508,913,000 T (=
T—L4F 0 ANRM26,640,857,000 7C) [
BRI SE OB > A 45 A4 1 41
A7 B FEAbAE KA AL (Bi3E 30)

B SRR A B W T

22.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s properties under development are situated on leasehold lands
in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB48,508,913,000
(2017: RMB26,640,857,000) were pledged to secure bank and other

borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under

development are as follows:

“F-NE CF L

2018 2017
ANRHEFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

it—H— B MR E Carrying amount at 1 January 89,756 97,375
O FERR B 18 (Bt 5 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 282,783 74,030
A ERENECR TYER Impairment losses transferred to completed

WEREE (5 23) properties held for sale (note 23) (372,539) (81,649)
R+ H =+ — B iR E Carrying amount at 31 December — 89,756

B % e ) S 1 1B (A i AT AY < ik
S TR (07 7 T o e < 9 B B P (L
HERANEEE) > WRACHE - 2
TRt A e R RUE AT 5
H B AR 7 1 6 2 5 1 T A B AT
LT {5 E O R

The value of properties under development is assessed at the end of the
reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental

costs for disposing of the asset.
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23. FfEi BT TR

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

—2-0\E  CELF
2018 2017

ARETFE  ARKTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

R—H—H W Carrying amount at 1 January 16,103,145 9,526,678
T ) BHEE P 2E (5T 22) Transferred from properties under

development (note 22) 15,896,101 22,338,959
g 28 g AR (BT 6) Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) (20,274,343)  (15,753,173)
TR - WU Rakdf (5 23) Transferred to property, plant and

equipment (note 23) (105,402) —
AE TR S (BT 6) Impairment losses written off (note 6) 186,508 72,330
R BB PSR R (P 5k 22) Impairment losses transferred from

properties under development (note 22) (372,539) (81,649)
T H = — A AR Carrying amount at 31 December 11,433,470 16,103,145

AZE—NEFZH=1—H > AEHE
MR EA AR 1,503,533,000 6 (=%
—-b4E © NRW2,414,963,000 7C) I FF1E
HED R TYECHEM > HAREMER
1 6R4T Jo FAth FE AR (B 5E 30) o

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB1,503,533,000
(2017: RMB2,414,963,000) were pledged to secure bank and other

borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).
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23. FEBCRTWE @) 23.

8 5 530 40 35 0 5 A 5 B
T

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties held

for sale are as follows:

e
2018 2017
ARMFL  ABHTT
RMB 000 RMB 000

it —H — H B iR (E Carrying amount at 1 January 78,957 69,638
ol (L PR B ([ 5E 6) Impairment losses written off (note 6) (186,508) (72,330)
LIRS ) B P SN BB R 4R (T 22) Impairment losses transferred from

properties under development (note 22) 372,539 81,649
R+ A =+—Hi AR (A Carrying amount at 31 December 264,988 78,957

FRAE 1 C 0% T 3600 8 (B 2% it 1
AT A o v i T 0 L T i ] < 25 B
HAFEBU S AR B EE) » 875
T ME o PB4 AR % A R R
FE A28 By v B A R B 8 4 2 5 9
15 iR o T BB T R A S E R R
AT

The value of completed properties held for sale is assessed at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental

costs for disposing of the asset.

24. B B HEW K JE 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
R )E DR
2018 2017
ANRHFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B 5y RE N R IE Trade receivables 34,151 15,605
WE Impairment — —

34,151 15,605
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24. B S REWGKIE ) 24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES(Continued)

B0 BWGR E R iR R F 4 - &
A 8 2 SR 3B JFL A i T PR o T A £ A
FEf - B ELE & M B M A o B
JA DA i i e A< 52 1 ) 5 5 JE WS OR i
BRESMEFHER > W EEKRE M
JEU B S R UL -

25 W R I B ARHE » B 5 I
W T B B TR (LA T AR © A
R AR A % 2 G B ) M MK IR
HRES AT AN T

Trade receivables mainly represent rentals receivable from tenants. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant

concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values. An ageing
analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

“E)N\E ZE B

2018 2017

ANRBEFL  ARETE

RMB’000 RMB’000

—ER Less than 1 year 33,432 11,693
—4EPL |k Over 1 year 719 3,912
34,151 15,605

G 2R 28 300 I 2R B8 (L ) MR 9 K B
T EA RSN Z TR -

74 5 T R 9 I O 5 S o 9 S5 0 R Y
HEE T 50 35 1 BUMS Bl 4R SR 3
> FZIE R SR I A B ) M WOER R
MR 77 I B R - BEtEE
MiERER B BIGEUED RS
fis B he R S 3 H B 0 - 5
SR TR B TS0 M 1 3 A % 0.19% o IR AR
S T 391 e L S A SR AR O A 0 A
AEHEDL > ARZESRNEE S
B C I N NI S L
TR B 48 -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected
credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. Based on evaluation on the expected
loss rate and gross carrying amount, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the ECL in respect of these balances is considered

immaterial and therefore there has not been a loss allowance provision.
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25. TATEKHE - b EBGKE R 25

JLfb ¥

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

= S
2018 2017
ARBFL  ARKFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt 3 7 R oA 1 £ Prepayments related to land use rights 5,033,898 4,919,534
i/ Deposits 1,321,197 2,653,754
W B L b AR £ T A5 Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights — 2,252,435
At T i [E A Other tax recoverable 2,105,124 1,336,866
JRE WS T 2 ) T 42 i J TR T Due from non-controlling shareholders of

the subsidiaries 3,964,789 479,138
FR S AT BOE Prepayments for construction cost 158,239 85,362
HAREYGHR Other receivables 176,610 88,469

12,759,857 11,815,558

WifH Impairment (4,141) —

12,755,716 11,815,558

TR I ~ At R M R IR A
AR~ RFH B L R SRR o

JRE Wiz B R 2 R I P M R OROGROTE R
5 = 7 K TR I At 4 4 HE AT AR
PR e AEBC M ERERRIEZ
fe BB B 470 1R 8 58 DA 2R I 4 K i 1
o % 55 M S K T B T ) TS 18 2R T A
F01% o AEBLCFHMEMERER
HRETE AR A - W TE A A 2 R
B REE > W REER = — \4
ToAZ T HENGEEERA AR
4,141,000 70 ( — & —H4F © ) o

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due from third parties and other
deposits was performing. The Group has assessed that the credit risk of
these receivables has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
The expected loss rate of these receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. The
Group has evaluated the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount,
measured the impairment based on the 12-month expected credit losses,
and assessed that the expected credit losses were RMB4,141,000 as at 31
December 2018(2017: Nil).
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26. BAERBL%EY > WM 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BE B O MR CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

“F-N\E ZFLF

2018 2017
ABHTE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Bl R ARAT A R Cash and bank balances 28,368,549 19,666,268
R Az R B4 Less: Restricted cash 4,866,036 3,931,480
BEjR{IF Pledged deposits 963,560 1,195,303
Be RBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22,538,953 14,539,485
RIEABETHEER > ZREBENETREH# Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
JE PR S N A ZE % 2 T B 4 KB AR BN S development companies of the Group are required to place certain
ERFIEPESE G - B F— )4 amounts of cash in the designated bank accounts for a specified use. As at
o AZ+—H ZZREES A A 31 December 2018, the restricted cash amounted to RMB3,513,556,000
R #3513,556,000 0 (=% — L 4E: A (2017: RMB2,506,480,000). As at 31 December 2018, the restricted
R #2 506,480,000 TG ) © i =& — \4E cash included time deposits amounting to RMB2,117,480,000 (2017:
+-A=+—H > ZRHRECIEEY RMB1,425,000,000), which would mature in more than three months
FEARNERM2,117,480,000 (= F—LE4F ¢ when acquired by the Group and earn interest at the time deposit rates.

1,425,000,000 JG) > T i A 42 [ HE A5 WRp 1

=R A AR 2 8 S $ R AT SOM) 3 B SR
M o

I
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26. B RBIEFHY - ZRB

Bla kg% @
R-Z—NE+ZA=+—H BEA
R 963,560,000 76 (& — L4 AR
#1,195,303,000 JC) f 4R 17172k R4 >
5 F B 5 448 B8 5K - TH H R 10
dh o U T SRAT IR B B AT AR AT AR L
PRI

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of RMB963,560,000 (2017:
RMB1,195,303,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage

loans, construction of projects, or pledged to banks as collateral for

issuance of bank acceptance notes.

—F-)0\FE ZEF L
2018 2017
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B R EEY) Cash and cash equivalents
MU R EHE Denominated in RMB 19,137,290 14,509,399
PASEIEEHE Denominated in US$ 3,381,741 30,022
DI GEHE Denominated in HK$ 19,834 64
AR e HE Denominated in SGD 88 =
22,538,953 14,539,485

ARBAE A b K& HR
458 v B 1R A A A6 191 ) B 6 T~
5 B e AT MR B ) » AR 4 I
FREAEAT 1 HE 5 10 SRAT o A\ R S e
R R

HATB S MR B MRATAE R R A% B
FIZFHE o SRATAE BR A7 1 AT 1 40T
BRI EAT IR - Bl KBS HE
0 B e 0 SR P (EL AR

AZE—NETZB=T—H RKEH
E¥ 7 R4 B B E K
B 55 Y HEAT N AE I FEAR - A4
B ZREHE - EREMFER LI E
Jo B4 % 18 2 A5 R 1 40 4R TE R A
2SI AR g B > W R A 2
R EBEG EWE > AE R EENEE
TR AT -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2018, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents was performing. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of the restricted cash, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and measured the impairment based on
12-month expected credit losses, and has assessed that the expected credit

losses are immaterial.
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27. SUSHMEAT mk B HEA L0

AR AR o H S BEEE H M AR R
5 REASHSKIE S A SRR BRI AT AN TS

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

R —)\E ZE L

2018 2017

ANR#EFLE ARETL

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

—4ER Within 1 year 8,115,173 5,461,411
—4FPE Over 1 year 97,370 78,441
8,212,543 5,539,852

B 5 MEAT 2 e oy M L e S > — iR The trade payables are unsecured and are normally settled based on the
A TR &S o progress of construction.
28. oAb BEAT 3% T8 B ME i 8 28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
e A
2018 2017
ANRBEFFL  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
B s A B Y 1 & Deposits related to land use rights 1,992,577 2,737,349
WEFJE 2 ) I 2 M M SRR Advances from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 2,181,899 851,470
FREEATEA B B Retention deposits related to construction 377,638 351,086
JRE AR R Interest payable 119,067 161,731
e A L 5 4 Payroll and welfare payable 248,924 112,288
ESGEYl ke Deposits related to sales of properties 161,958 78,950
= Al Business tax and surcharges 185,937 69,405
A4 Maintenance fund 119,607 61,970
G SRR o T A A (M E) Proceeds from asset-backed securities (Note) 3,285,661 —
HAly Others 62,362 46,995
8,735,630 4,471,244
W BN A Less: current portion 5,449,969 4,471,244
RIS 3 Non-current portion 3,285,661 —
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28.

29.

0 Al HE A 9k 5 B M it ¢

(#)

bR ¢ SR e 5 BT A5 SRS 2 MY

2 7 T A PR SRR Ao O B R

AR - Awt B R ZOR R - Bt

AT RSB 45 4 5 S A RO 24P (L BLEL AR

OB FO e T B A

BAHGE  ARS o B e R A 059 L 1
BT HE9R F O TER ) BRSEAT R S 2
IR A5 SO o T A O 2
AR 5 TR AR RO A -
LA S5 6 08 0 5 T
2B 1 5 B T 1 SO > A%
P e PR 9 B SRR E £
B -

FRAL %R

AR AR R M RE 2.2 BT - 1 $R A1
W 705 7 B S 1S R R o AR SR P
DE-9aBiN X/ESOPEEE O VAENEESY)
SR U AR EL 4 B R0 4 2 5 AR e
AR I S 5 o M SR 15 % > A
BB BHALE

BEZE—/EFZA=ZF—HEZF
—/E—A— AR ARRFINT

28.

29.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Except for proceeds from asset-backed securities, other payables and
advances from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. The fair values of other
payables at the end of each of the reporting periods approximated to their

corresponding carrying amounts.

Note: The balance represented proceeds received from a special purpose entity (“SPE”) set

up by a financial institution in the PRC for issuance of asset-backed securities, to
which the Group has collateralised certain future trade receivables for the remaining
receipts from sales of properties. Under an assignment arrangement between
the Group and the SPE, as and when the Group receives the sale proceeds from

customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the SPE.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES/ADVANCES FROM
CUSTOMERS

As explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements, before
the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised proceeds from customers
of pre-sold properties and the rental received from lessees of commercial
properties as advances from customers. Under IFRS 15, the amounts are

classified as contract liabilities.

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018

are as follows:

RN\ “E -\
+ZH=1—H —H—H
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
ANR¥TFI ANR¥FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARIBR KT R Contract liabilities/advances from customers
— S — Sales of properties 47,117,959 40,000,676
—H& — Rental 22,143 21,427
— — Property management 9,384 2,487
47,149,486 40,024,590

AR S T AR AR ) 3 8 1 SR B 40 BT Y
BB PR ORE A o A Fod % 7E
BHEAT ZHOOR > EEAR B 5 HE B
o B LT -

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules
as established in the property sales or rental contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts which

are mainly from property development and sales and rental.
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30. Wl B AT B AL AT % 30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
“F\E E-Lh
2018 2017
BFHR ) HIRFIE (%)
Effective interest 5 A ARHFTL  Effective interest 54 H AT
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’ 000
W
Current
RiTEK-HIEN 6 “EFE 80,000 SBE60 “F-AR 250,000
Bank loans — secured 6 2019 80,000 5.23-6.00 2018 250,000
RITER— AL - - - S90EIS0  “E-NE 230,000
Bank loans — unsecured — - — 5.90-9.50 2018 230,000
s - H 1A 458108 ZFhE 5,292,063 458890  ZE-AE 4,106,572
Other loans — secured 45-10.8 2019 5,292,063 4.75-8.90 2018 4,106,572
HAsk - A 95 ZENE 15,900 840%890  “F-AE 688,416
Other loans — unsecured 9.5 2019 15,900 8.40-8.90 2018 688,416
RERTEFOIARD - HES 428%1035 “ENE 8,379,839 428700  ZFAR 7,032,732
Current portion of long term bank loans — secured 4.28-10.35 2019 8,379,839 4.28-7.00 2018 7,032,732
MG S DA — R 4155840 ZERE 832,643 49 ZE-0E 33,400
Current portion of long term bank loans ~ unsecured 4.75-840 2019 832,643 4.99 2018 33,400
RO AR - AR 5.50£15.05 “F0E 5,185,600 550%15.05 v SYIUs 7,660,637
Current portion of long term other loans - secured 5.50-15.05 2019 5,185,600 5.50-15.09 2018 7,660,637
RIS S A — A 740%8.00 “FNE 1,843,165 6.50%8.50 e SUINs 980,000
Current portion of long term other loans — unsecured 7.40-8.00 2019 1,843,165 6.50-8.50 2018 980,000
21,629,210 20,981,757
R
Non-current
RITERX-HIEN 400£1035 %22 11,655,746 428%7.12 “Z- 7,722,609
Bank loans — secured 4.00-10.35 2033 11,655,746 4.28-7.12 2021 7,722,609
BRITHH - BN 498 %8.88 B 583,896 499%830 " S 2 1,705,859
Bank loans — unsecured 4.98-8.88 2022 583,896 4.99-8.30 2022 1,705,859
FllE sk - A A 7001050  “FTF 4,066,849 5.50%9.00 e S 9,531,953
Other loans — secured 7.00-10.50 2021 4,006,849 5.50-9.00 2021 9,531,953
St 5 — R 030  ZFCFE 234,888 900  ZEF-NE 119,000
Other loans — unsecured 10.30 2020 234,888 9.00 2019 119,000
16,541,379 19,079,421
38,170,589 40,061,178
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30. BT B A% ) 30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

“FN\E —FLF
2018 2017
ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

ik Analysed into:
SRR — AN Repayable within one year 21,629,210 20,981,757
TR AR Repayable in the second year 11,635,570 13,585,642
B =R L AEER Repayable in the third to fifth years 4,905,809 5,493,779
hit Subtotal 16,541,379 19,079,421
38,170,589 40,061,178
2 [ 1l 2 AN R o The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.
7 45 B 9 2 T 4R AT B At £ 2k iy /L DA Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
AR A A R BE T (B AN T B MR pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the
reporting period as follows:
R\ TR
+ZH=1+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥T 7T ABHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB (5 14) Investment properties (note 14) 4,005,124 5,742,689
ﬁﬁif@ffﬂg T (i 15) Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) 344,034 2,350,418
%{L‘%E’Jﬁg 5E17) Investments in joint ventures (note 17) 54,592 38,617
ﬁfﬁ%?*#@% Mi5E22) Properties under development (note 22) 48,508,913 26,640,857
AN FEFT AR 22 1 S RlE 2 (35 20) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 20) 743,135 —
WIZE ~ B PE Bt (B ek 13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 515,699 —
FrfE BB T (F5E 23) Completed properties held for sale (note 23) 1,503,533 2,414,963
2 PR B 4 Restricted cash 298,000 425,000
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30.

wl BHAT B IAbAR X )

Mo ) E+H=Z4—H > BEE
Jo A~ B R G A R R R O R (B
[ 472 I JsE 1) DA IE 2% 42 B A R A =) (T 1E
BEBAFADNERCE—LF:
270,252,000 /B ) B {02 #7 AR 4 B & TR
HEAREZ (L4 AR
745,902,000 76 ) [ At fE K -

WoE-NE+A=1+—H > E4%
BAFEMAER S TABEARKEE
T FE—E5F : NR#11,473,132,000
J6) I §RAT B H A A A 4 -

Ao F—NEFH=Z+—H R
HEME TABEAREZ(—E &
40 N 4,822,895,000 7C) A 4RAT & H:
bt 2R AE AR o

RoF—NFE+_H=1+—H > E&%
T ) e P R B G [ A s T
AEEAREET(ZF—LE: AR
9,855,542,000 JC) A ERAT EEARME th A 14 -

AE—NEFTH=F—H AEH
M A B R 1,044,310,000 T (&
—h4  NR¥2502,080,00070) A B
B BN R AT 0E - fER S A
N5 1,894,900,000 78 ( & —-E4E ¢
N HE2.326,080,000 76 ) A SRAT K HoAth 12
EIGHE RN
MoE—)E+"H=Z4—H,> F=%)
G AR T A0 R A ) ([ 4 4 1 R Ay
ARAHE D EMAERETAEAAR
#1 058,876,000 70 ( —FE—H4F : AR
499,945,000 7T ) FISRAT BEFRAE AR -

BRoFE—NE+_H=+—H,> F=H}
o R S A R ([ S
ARAA D ERALELETABRAR
256,953,000 0 ( = F— L4 AR
ZI0) WSRAT BERAE AR -
AR+ A= F—HE =K
PR A 55 b 7 48 [ A% 0 A BR 2 w1 ([ £~ Al
7 E R A RN A ) BBt A 4E
#HTABEARANR# 117,000,000 70 (— %
—t4F 0 NRWZI0) RT3 AE 18
i o

A FE L AT AL > R RAT R
K o (B IR T (E AR > ERK
R BE bR R % 5 A8 B R BLAT T
R 258 A A T B S 565 = Ty < ol R
(3

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Ou Zongrong, Mr. Ou Guogiang and Mr.
Ou Guowei (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”),
have pledged nil shares (2017: 270,252,000) of IE 4% £ [& 4 [ /A ]
(“Zhenro Group Company”) for certain of the Group's other borrowings
up to nil (2017: RMB745,902,000).

As at 31 December 2018, Zhenro Group Company has guaranteed
certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings up to nil (2017:
RMB11,473,132,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Controlling Shareholders have
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings up to nil (2017:
RMB4,822,895,000).

As at 31 December 2018, Zhenro Group Company and the Controlling
Shareholders have jointly guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans up
to nil (2017: RMB9,855,542,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged future proceeds in
respect of properties sold amounting to RMB1,044,310,000 (2017:
RMB2,502,080,000) as collateral to secure bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB1,894,900,000 (2017: RMB2,326,080,000).

As at 31 December 2018, a third party M5 B B A BR2 7] (“Jinhui
Group Co., Ltd.”) has guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans up to
RMB1,058,876,000 (2017: RMB499,945,000).

As at 31 December 2018, a third party & % B 3£ 4 B £ R A A

(“Zhuoyue Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.”) has guaranteed certain of the
Group’s bank loans up to RMB256,953,000 (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, a third party PR 5 1l 2 48 18 I 45 A PR A
] (“Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.”) has guaranteed certain of the

Group’s bank loans up to RMB117,000,000 (2017: Nil).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were made between
the Group and independent third party financial institutions based on
prevailing market interest rates.
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ZE—NEFZHA=T—H
31 December 2018

31. BRTENE

31. SENIOR NOTES

B0 o S
2018 017
FfAg [ 233
Principal Principal
atoriginal ) at original FofE()
curtency Contractual curtency Contractual
T interest #n AR T intetet 94R AR
USS'000 e (%) Maturity RMB'000 US§ 000 ate (%) Maturity RMB'000
SR EHMZBREE  Seniornotesdue 20192019 Notes)
([2Z-1ERg) 160000 85% 019 1094198 = = = =
SRCTEHMZERTE  Seniornotesdue 2020 (2020 Notes)
(22254 250000 105% 0 1474411 = = = =
SR BERRRL  Seniornotesdue 202112021 Notes )
(IZF-F2g)) 280,000 125% 021 1921453 - - - -
SR 7RI  Seniornotesdue 2021 12021 Notes )
(=255 7000 125% 0 480763 - - - -
5,170825 -
B iR Less: current portion 1,094,198 -
FHRs Non-curtent portion 4076627 -
ZE )\ “EF—tf
+ZASH—H  toA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥T 7T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000

AL BRI E SRR

The Group's senior notes were repayable

as follows:
A — R ER Repayable within one year 1,094,198 —
RN AR Repayable in the second year 1,674,411 —
TGS = 50 hAR (R Repayable in the third to fifth years 2,402,216 —
Mt Total 5,170,825 —
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31. BAEE @ 31.

ZENETE

WREFE—NFHA+T—H » RN AT
A 4 B 5 160,000,000 35 T0HY U
EEE RHEAFRLS% o Wik = F
—VE R EH o AR B E AR B 15 O I
153,715,000 3% 70 (48 41 Bk 62 85 97 41 &
{4 DA B AmBA 5)

R F—AER A+ 2 F TR
RN ) T A A A A T [ =% — LR
SRR G HE 100% M EME - ik 2
[l HH O 646 3% H ) 19988 6 8 DL X B
S H M ORERZ E ) 1R R
ALE (I ) FE [m] 42 8 9 30 7 — % — L
R o

AT ERA B ZEE R

AR\ B AR A A AR R TR R AR
119 7 15 B 4 K TR B R A SR = F
— JLAE Z B AR £ %108.509 A I 8] fE >
75 N E 2 R O a5 B ) [ ]
R AT A B (U A5 ) B [0 e 359 — &
—JLEEE -

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
2019 Notes

On 11 May 2018, the Company issued 2019 Notes at a coupon rate
of 8.5% due within 2019 with an aggregate principal amount of US$
160,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of US$§153,715,000
(after deduction of underwriting discounts and commissions and other

expenses).

At any time prior to 10 May 2019, the Company may at its option
redeem the 2019 Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 Notes redeemed plus
the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up

to (but not including) the redemption date.

At any time prior to 10 May 2019, the Company may at its option
redeem up to 35% of the 2019 Notes, at a redemption price equal to
108.50% of the principal amount of the 2019 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, up to (but not including) the redemption date in
each case, using the net cash proceeds from sales of certain kinds of capital

stock of the Company.
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31.

BT ()
SRR

W E— ) AENH T NE > A %
TT A% 4 488 1 250,000,000 2 0 — % —
TAEZRE > HEAIRS105% 0 WkZF
ZRAERENE o AN F ER IR ST
#H 242,757,000 3 JC (48 411 Bk A2 85 4 41 &
{4 DA B Am B 52)

W TN = H 2T
f] AR/ ) T IR 198 40 T 5 A [ —
TR TEAR SR 100% M EEME > 5
TR ) H ) OR @5 H ) 1% i
ELL K EEERE AR A ) R
Fh &R AT ALE (A ) i e 2 3 JE 55 4>
TR TG o

A EAENA AN H Z BT
] > A/ ) ] B I DA A 45 v — kB
25 WKt B AR 0 ) M Y 4 B 4 EOE
TAE > TR R R A B YRR A4
110.5% FA i [0 48 2 n B &5 0 [0 EHH O
G H ) B RERT R LR (nf) -
W =F R EEREASRERE 35%
He it & A B 4% > R T H R E
BAM_Z_RFEREBASREAED
A 65% B ATAEAN > ELATAA A B JE [0 7
A BB AS B4 58 1A% 60 B R3ETT

31.

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
2020 Notes

On 28 June 2018, the Company issued 2020 Notes at a coupon rate of
10.5% due within 2020 with an aggregate principal amount of US$
250,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of US$242,757,000
(after deduction of underwriting discounts and commissions and other

expenses).

At any time and from time to time prior to 28 June 2020, the Company
may at its option redeem the 2020 Notes, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2020
Notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and

unpaid interest, if any, up to (but not including) the redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 28 June 2020, the Company
may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2020
Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of
the Company in an equity offering at a redemption price of 110.5% of the
principal amount of the 2020 Notes redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, up to (but not including) the redemption date; provided
that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding after each
such redemption and any such redemption takes place within 60 days

after the closing of the related equity offering.
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31.

B 8 )
CE AR & 1T

WoFE—/F+HHH AAFEBTA
4 4% 1 280,000,000 LY & — —
EEE REAFES125% 0 W ZF
Z AR o AN ) S A BT A SRR I A
270,301,000 35 7T (4% 471 Bk B2 85 47 00 S {4
Ph B HAMBE ) o

REF—NFEFAZTHH AAH
BEAT AR 4 MR 15 70,000,000 3 T 1 =&
CEEBN BEARE125% 0 G
b Stk :1i W N/NEIE - 2L YR T @
58 68,314,000 9 70 (A8 411 B A2 85 7 10 &
{4 DA B ELABE 52) o

A E T —FE—H B 2 B R
A ) AT B IR R A A H A R T IR %
TR & A S EH100% 1 |
& B AR B8 CREREZH) M
8 e E A K E VE OO LS %
H ) B BT B oA A5 AR, (A ) i Tl 2 8
o F T AEEET & I ¢

WA T H 2 HAE TR
AR B AT B DR AR B — R B E IR
B 7 N m] % 0 B A B 4 KO T
B MR TR & ARG
112.5% FA 12048 5 o B &5 [0 H M O
G H ) R RN AR () -
B =% = AEERE] & IASHERS
35% 5 M £ B 4% - R R AT B
)RR i e St 3 (0 |
MBEHEEDH 65% T BEATES > BAEM
6 TR Tl 1 7 IR A 38 5 52 AR 60 HE A
HEAT o
“E-NFERE CE CRFERER
T AEEYRT & I AE A T HAM
JB A AL -

B - JUFERE - o RFER

TR T AEERRT & T (]
AT AR R > B A 4 B R O 8
HEHBME-F - NF+ZA=+—HHE
RS A TE -

31.

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2021 Notes I & IT

On 2 October 2018, the Company issued 2021 Notes I at a coupon rate
of 12.5% due within 2021 with an aggregate principal amount of US$
280,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of US$270,301,000
(after deduction of underwriting discounts and commissions and other

expenses).

On 25 October 2018, the Company issued 2021 Notes II at coupon
rate of 12.5% due within 2021 with aggregate principal amount of
US$70,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of US$68,314,000
(after deduction of underwriting discounts and commissions and other

expenses).

At any time and from time to time prior to 2 January 2021, the Company
may at its option redeem the 2021 Notes I & II, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2021
Notes I & II redeemed plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, up to (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 2 January 2021, the Company
may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2021
Notes I & II with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of common
stock of the Company in an equity offering at a redemption price of
112.5% of the principal amount of the 2021 Notes I & II redeemed,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to (but not including) the
redemption date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2021 Notes I & II originally issued on the original issue
date remains outstanding after each such redemption and any such
redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the related

equity offering.

The 2019 Notes, the 2020 Notes and the 2021 Notes I & II are

guaranteed by certain of the Group's existing subsidiaries.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the 2019 Notes, the
2020 Notes and the 2021 Notes I & II were not significant and therefore
were not recognised by the Group on inception and at 31 December
2018.
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32. AnlfE% 32. CORPORATE BONDS
ZEF-0\E ZEF-0\E
—J—H +ZAZ+—H
itk MR Btk
1 January 31 December
2018 MR 2018
5% 40 Opening Bl Interest ik Closing
Name of bonds balance Issued expense Payment balance

ARWTE  AEWTZ  ARKTFZ  ARNETE  ARETZ
RMB'009  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000

IES R T Zhenro Bond I 2,002,359 - 133,874 1,020,445 1,115,788
E4EHRI Zhenro Bond 11 — 1,994,500 39,899 — 2,034,399
2,002,359 1,994,500 173,773 1,020,445 3,150,187

“E—th e Sn2

—~A—H +ZA=Z+—H

1 January 31 December

2017 R 2017

oA Opening C#fT Interest fi3k Closing

Name of bonds balance Issued expense Payment balance

ARETE  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFL
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

R Zhento Bond I 1,988,777 - 141,582 128,000 2,002,359

REEER » REBEEREMARGESNT - As at the end of each of the years, the Group's corporate bonds were
repayable as follows:

“F-N\E e S w3

+ZHA=1+—H +ZHA=Z+—H

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

AR T AR#T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AN —AENER Repayable within one year 1,115,788 2,002,359

A B HAR N Repayable within two to five years 2,034,399 —

3,150,187 2,002,359
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32. WS 32. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

REF—ANETHTH AEENEE
A J 25 ) TG b AT AR A AR A AN R
#2,000,000,000 JC 19 = 4F {1 /A ] fi 5
(MEZES1]) > EHN HgHSEL S
bl e EAMEFIL AR M GHE I 1% 4
MEe4%5HE  BAZF—LE+HT
A EEl+ A+ B simsEa+ A+
H 08 26 H 4 30T o BT IR AT LA
15 7 4E 8 R BT OB 18 Ak IR A A
R #1,957,790,000 7C ° it =& — )\ 4+
Ho> FIZRA%E720  BE_F—LE
LkZZ—)\F+ZA=+—HILEERN
B RRAERRI N B 7.22% K 7.36% °

RoF— ENH HANE > AEEM
2 A I T S b AT AR A
A R #2,000,000,000 JG [ = 4F 1 2 7 &
F(TEEMEHN]) > FHHBNEIEHER
Sy B B o IE AR 5 10 DL R B RHE
BAERM R 5058 A ZF—JULE
AAZ+AHEREGFENILAZ+HE
T SLA N B E AR
o REHNEREEAT AR - A G2 B (K B AT
W BT 5 VR A N B 1,994,500,000
o WE_E—-NEFA=+—HIE
R BB AE RIS 7.51% ©

MRARIE SR A7 1 S IE R AT TRk > VL
7Y 5 0 T AT O — 4R AR R A A R (R
BRI A E € ) > BRI
0 FERIEME R E A EH100% 5
o480 5 S RE AT R T B R A AL
FR R R 27 4 R AR 045 B P VL G
WiE - BlR —F—-NFE+_A=+—
A BRI —F R EE -

On 10 October 2016, Jiangxi Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group issued a three-year corporate bond with a principal amount
of RMB2,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond I"”), which was listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Zhenro Bond I is denominated in RMB and
bears interest at a rate of 6.4% per annum, payable annually in arrears on
or on the business day nearest to 10 October of each year, beginning 10
October 2017. After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received net
proceeds of RMB1,957,790,000 from the issuance. In October 2018, the
interest rate was adjusted to 7.2%. The effective interest rate was 7.22%
and 7.36% on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018, respectively.

On 26 September 2018, Jiangxi Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group issued three-year corporate bond with a principal amount
of RMB2,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond II”), which was listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Zhenro Bond II is denominated in RMB and
bear interest at a rate of 7.5% per annum, payable annually in arrears on
or on the business day nearest to 26 September of each year, beginning
26 September 2019. After deducting the issuance costs, the Group
received net proceeds of RMB1,994,500,000 from the issuance. The
effective interest rate was 7.51% on an annum basis for the year ended 31
December 2018.

According to the terms of Zhenro Bond I and Zhenro Bond II, Jiangxi
Real Estate may at its option adjust the interest rate at the end of
the second year which will be fixed in the remaining period, and the
bondholders may at their option sell the bonds back to Jiangxi Real
Estate at the end of the second year, in whole or in part, at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the bonds plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the option exercise date. Hence, Zhenro Bond I was repayable

within one year as at 31 December 2018.
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32.

R

Al S )
PR BB o 24 G B0 SR BT
s B R AT B 3 RO
A 11 BE A2 51 0 B B R MR
B AR -

90 1A R A A o R B 0 0 AR
AT o A R e AL B 2 B
B IAE I BULA o R AR M8 A
i 19l A A o

RoE = NFHZH=1+—H0 AdE
AT A AR 3,102,152,000 76 (=
T—L4 : NR¥2,002,078,00070) ° A
AR i 2 R w4 % B A T E R < 3L
Pl 7 Hh e AT I IE 2R R 1 RIEA BT
AT EFHE S A ATEB RN —
oo SRR RS 5 22 5 B RO
[ L A

Jhe A
ey

EBT BB BB
4,123,000,000 i (=& —L4F
50,000 ) 5 B 11 (B 0.00001 3£ 7T
(ZF—L4F - FMEE0.01 £T)
113 7

O

CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

After initial recognition, the corporate bonds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised

as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the corporate bonds was
RMB3,102,152,000 (2017: RMB2,002,078,000). The fair value is
calculated using the market price of the bonds on those dates. The fair
value measurement of Zhenro Bond I and Zhenro Bond II issued by
Jiangxi Real Estate is categorised within level 1 of fair value hierarchy

as it is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.
33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
“FN\E “E b
+ZHA=+—H +ZHA=Z+—H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
b #7T
Us$ US$
Issued and fully paid:
4,123,000,000 (2017: 50,000)
ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each
(2017: US$0.01 each)
41,230 500
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33, JBA )

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

ety (4) Shares (Continued)
AN A ARSI R A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:
DETRMHEE &N
Number of Share
share in issue capital
AR T
RMB’ 000
RoE—tiE—H—H At 1 January 2017 1 -
BT R Issue of ordinary shares 49,999 B
R_E—tHE+=H=+—H At 31 December 2017 and
k=F—N\4%E—H—H 1 January 2018 50,000 3
BT 4 Issue of ordinary shares 1,000,000,000 64
BEARAL N BT 2 A Issue of ordinary shares on capitalisation 2,999,950,000 190
TR R P M S AT 2 i Issue of ordinary shares on
an over-allotment option 123,000,000 8
RE-F—NFE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 4,123,000,000 265

RAFR - E—NELAZ+—HEH
BRI AR ST 5k AR £ 50,000
TG > 4 455,000,000 B B T (B 0.01 3
TEHRBEGY o A HLEE ML B > ARA R
B 1% 1 1% 0.01 25 70 ¥ 3 78 A% i 2 T AR
A o WA ] H T Warm Shine Limited
(H KB e A A D) -

R-F—tELA+=H ARFAU
Bl 4 [ Warm Shine Limited * RoYue
Limited * RoSheng Limited X RoJing
Limited 7 Jil AiC 3,618 /8 ~ 37,876 K *
3,630 % % 2,375 M 0.01 3£ oT 2 & 48
Warm Shine Limited * RoYue Limited *
RoSheng Limited X RoJing Limited F {4 i
FE R

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2014
with authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided in 5,000,000 shares

of US$0.01 par value each. On its date of incorporation, 1 ordinary

share of US$ 0.01 was allotted by the Company to a subscriber, and was

transferred to Warm Shine Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Ou

Guowei, on the same date.

On 13 July 2017, 3,618, 37,876, 3,630 and 2,375 ordinary shares of

US$0.01 were allotted by the Company for cash to Warm Shine Limited,

RoYue Limited, RoSheng Limited and RoJing Limited, respectively.
Warm Shine Limited, RoYue Limited, RoSheng Limited and RoJing
Limited are controlled by the Controlling Shareholders.
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33. A )

[y (4)

e S NG = e ol 1 R N/ N
PA B 45 19 Sky Bridge Limited A %5 2,500
fRoo1 XLz HE@Kk BE_F—L
A _H=Z+—H> &A A FWarm
Shine Limited * RoYue Limited * RoSheng
Limited * RoJing Limited & Sky Bridge
Limited 7 Al BT %%3,619 % ~ 37,876 /)%
3,630 % ~ 2,375 | J 2,500 B 5 i 0.01 %
T -

REFE—NF—HATAH BARAES
WEHE RS b 4% o 4R TR 3.99 Wk T B AT
1,000,000,000 5 B THI {H 0.00001 35 TG Y
W o AR B UE 5 3,990,000,000
W oo (b % R A AN R 3,282,573,000
T6) o HH B R AS 4 B 40 25 N R B 64,000
TG BEAT AR RO A B AR
3,200,124,000 76 (11 BR B 3 3547 BLAS ) o
AR AR P A B A7 IR T A 48 M £
AR 4 > AT R e SR A
Jo bR B R A LR AT O M B 4%
JOE A 8 3 A o LA B AN R
82,385,000 7G » FEE4T7 BT 2 A ) BB A7 Uik 2
IR o

A - NE - A+ AN A
2,999,950,000 i 5 1 i { 0.00001 35 TG
3 To e EAAL Iy KB4 - MBIRA &8
#5 NR 190,000 JC

RoF—/NEZHZH EFEBEL
B BT A% o R A DR B B 4 AT
fifi > 7 ] 4 A 399 % TG Bl 8 K 8
7 123,000,000 i %8 S0 B iy > 48 B 4 R
[ %% 490,770,000 #5 70 (FA 55 1A 40 A R
394,643,000 7G) ° MBI BEAR S REL A AR
8,000 70 > BEAT TR R O3 (A0 A5 A R
1 388,054,000 76 (11 BR B A B 4T A AR ) o
AT B A5 IR A 9 47 B AR T A, 48 M A7
TR 42 B AR B AR > H R AT R
e T A S 8 AR o % LR BN
R 6,581,000 7C > AT BT AE 1) i £
i 8 R o

33.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

On 24 August 2017, 2,500 ordinary shares of US$0.01 were allotted by
the Company for cash to Sky Bridge Limited. As at 31 December 2017,
3,619, 37,876, 3,630, 2,375 and 2,500 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
were allotted by the Company to Warm Shine Limited, RoYue Limited,
RoSheng Limited, RoJing Limited and Sky Bridge Limited, respectively.

On 16 January 2018, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the Company issued 1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares with par value
US$0.00001 each at HK$3.99 per share for a total cash consideration of
HK$3,990,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB 3,282,573,000).
The respective share capital amount was approximately RMBG64,000
and share premium arising from the issuance was approximately
RMB3,200,124,000, net of the share issuance costs. The share issuance
costs paid and payable mainly include share underwriting commissions,
lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other related costs, which are
incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new shares.
These costs amounting to RMB 82,385,000 were treated as a deduction

against the share premium arising from the issuance.

On 16 January 2018, 2,999,950,000 shares were issued by way of
capitalisation with par value US$0.00001 each, the respective share

capital amount was approximately RMB190,000.

On 2 February 2018, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the over-allotment option has been partially exercised and the Company
allotted and issued 123,000,000 additional shares at HK$3.99 per
share for a total cash consideration of HK$490,770,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB394,643,000). The respective share capital amount
was approximately RMB8,000 and share premium arising from the
issuance was approximately RMB 388,054,000, net of the share issuance
costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable mainly include share
underwriting commissions and other related costs, which are incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new shares. These costs
amounting to RMBG6,581,000 were treated as a deduction against the

share premium arising from the issuance.
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34. it
WE -Z—-NE+HA=+—HI4
JE > A% 45 [ ) (o At 4 B N LA ) 2 4
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

A 1 2 R 800
A ORI B 5 69 9 RS
A 24 (8.2 T £ T2 -
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M i (AT IR AR 7 (R
W ARG 2 3 o
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i > HEREREED Mg
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34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for

the year ended 31 December 2018 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in capital reserve

are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value

of the shares issued and the consideration received.

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group
is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
Group, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group and the capital contributions from the equity holders
of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the

completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the Reorganisation.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of group entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 2.4.
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35. RABEARHS 35. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES
K4 A8 it
Principal Distribution Total

ARWTFL  ARWTT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

R F L4 Balance as at 1 January 2017
—HA—H 2 &k — — —
ALK A EARHS  Issuance of perpetual capital securities
by the Group 2,974,443 — 2,974,443
HoF LA Balance as at 31 December 2017
TA=T—H 2% 2,974,443 — 2,974,443
R\ Balance as at 1 January 2018
—HA—HZ &R 2,974,443 — 2,974,443
KANERTE AN Profit attributable to holders of
B A i perpetual capital securities — 258,781 258,781
(RE: Payment — (225,000) (225,000)
=\ Balance as at 31 December 2018

T A=+ —HZHk

2,974,443 33,781 3,008,224

WoE—tE+A=ZF—HE_F—&
E+—HE A A% KB AR E
B AT A BB A N R
300,000,000 & A R % 2,700,000,000
TEH IR AN BEAE S (KA EA
Fr 1) o ATEREEAT BOA AR 1Y B 15 5 H AR
O B N R W2,974,443,0000C © IE 4
7 2 B BT B AT I K B AR T S
o 5% LR T H A 143 Uk 4 B
T F I 2 4 S 2 PR 9 1 AR AE VR A - EL oy
UK A H 1 O BT A BR ) o %K A B A L
FLUT p 3 AT NI [ o AT A G088 4 1o %
I B HCE R B, o 2B R I W e P
JE MR B ) K A B A THRRA AME WL
SR o B KA EARRE S B HER
TH > WiAess & sk R NS EfE i o

On 31 October 2017 and 7 November 2017, Zhenro Property Holdings,
a subsidiary of the Group, issued subordinated perpetual capital securities
(the “Perpetual Capital Securities”) with the principal amounts of
RMB300,000,000 and RMB2,700,000,000, respectively. Net proceeds
after deducting the issuance cost amounted to RMB2,974,443,000 in
total. The perpetual capital instruments issued by Zhenro Property
Holding are unsecured. There is no maturity of the instruments and
the payments of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of Zhenro
Property Holding and there is no limit as to the number of times of
deferral of distribution. The perpetual capital instruments are callable by
the issuer. When the issuer elects to declare dividends to their ordinary
shareholders, the issuer shall make distribution to the holders of perpetual
capital instruments at the distribution rate as defined in the subscription
agreement. Therefore, the Perpetual Capital Securities are classified as
equity instruments and recorded in equity in the consolidated statement

of financial position.
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36. &R BATE R 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
AP 0 R Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

it BRI R RABERS

Kt ff 2

Interest- B e et Total

bearing i Eff AFHE  liabilities

bank A% Asset- JHHE Due to from

and other BEEE  Corporate backed Due to relsted  financing
borrowings  Senior notes bonds  securities shareholders  companies activities
NEWTFE  ARHTE  ARBTE ARETx  ARETZ  ARNTT  ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMBO00  RMB 000

REZE—tFE—H—H At 1 January 2017 35,034,061 — 1988777 — 79,856 7,648 37,110,342
HERBF R ENE Cash flows from financing acivities 3,027,117 - — (79856) 781404 5,728,665
FRERRE L= Cash flows from

non-financing activities - - 13,582 - - 12,228 25,810

RZF—LEFZH=F~H At31 December 2017and

}=F—~NE—H—H 1 January 2018 40,061,178 — 2002359 — - 801280 42,864,817
HEEB RN E Cash flows from financing activicies ~ (2,099,609) 4,767,196 1,102,055 3,285,661 — 4156452 11211755
FRERHNERERE  Cashflows from

non-financing activities 209,020 403,629 45,173 - —  (1,624,749) (966,327)
RoF~NE+ZAZ1—H At31 December 2018 38,170589 5,170,825 3,150,187 3,285,661 — 3330983 93,1104
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37. AR AR NIESE 37 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

¥E it 4 il NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

7 4E B A TR K I 4 I £ 1) B I /A Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
HEE MR interests were set out below:

“F-)\EF+ZA=Z+—H 31 December 2018

BRI AR
WS FRARY  JEDEBORESS
JRRET 4L AR A
Percentage (EtH)  Jereienss
of equity  Profit/(loss) Bt &g
interest  for the year Accumulated
held by allocated to  balances of
non- non- non-
controlling  controlling  controlling
interests interests interests
% ARWTT ARKETT
% RMB’000 RMB’000

TR B Suzhou Property 48.09 (78,649) 187,857
N EH Zhangzhou Zhengyu 49.00 (2,297) 781,703
R WL Zhenghong Chengxin 74.00 (401) 1,627,599
LR 2 Zhengzhou Xinronggui 42.10 (8,258) 1,254,742
—Z—tE+—H=+—H 31 December 2017

DHE

BRI R
ML FEA R A REF

FBCHE T 73 L (itH)
Percentage Profit/  FEHEMRHE SR
of equity (loss) for ZEtai iR
interest the year  Accumulated

held by  allocated to balances of

non- non- non-
controlling controlling controlling
interests interests interests

% ARWTT ARWTL
%  RMB’000  RMB000

THEE Pingtan Real Estate 49.00 109,535 164,660
[l 3 Suzhou Real Estate 37.29 (11,024) 188,367
B M 75 3t 2 Suzhou Property 48.09 38,510 266,506
A& Hefei Yongtuo 75.00 (15,877) 284,123
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37. A EAERIRE R EE 37,

BB A )

TR W L 2 7R
Ko T 45 598 10 & BUR R AR 7 22 = 4

oF

e S = ES

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

company eliminations:

31 December 2018

BRI e

Suzhou

M M

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

ERWD MR AR

Zhangzhou Zhenghong Zhengzhou

Property Zhengyu  Chengxin Xinronggui
ARIEFE  AREFZ  ARETFLZ  ARKETFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 1,139,263 — — —
b Sz 4R Total expenses (1,285,198) (4,689) (542) (25,752)
P98 B 52 Income tax expense (17,649) — — 6,135
ERER (EE) K& Profit/(loss) and total
AT i i KRR comprehensive income
for the year (163,584) (4,689) (542) (19,617)
B Current assets 1,110,810 1,674,683 2,200,008 3,461,589
A i B Non-current assets 213 125 — 203,422
B A Current liabilities (720,424) (79,496) (550)  (234,627)
R E H R Non-current liabilities — — —  (450,000)
BEEEE, () Net cash flows from/(used in)
4 Uit 1 AR operating activities 233,140  (1,640,581) 8  (1,030,986)
BEE BT (BT Net cash flows from/(used in)
B4 Uit 12 VAR investing activities 295 (130) — (55)
&S B RS (BT ) Net cash flows from/(used in)
T4 Ui AR financing activities (329,644) 1,641,100 10 1,093,177
H& KRB &S EYHm/ Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(WD) and cash equivalents (96,209) 389 18 62,136
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37. AR AR NIESE 37 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

BB A W ) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Concinued)
—“E—tE+-H=1+—H 31 December 2017
PR B BMEE BMNEE &K
Pingtan Suzhou Suzhou Hefei
Real Estate  Real Estate Property Yongtuo

ANRFTFE  ARETT  ARWTT ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000

W g Revenue 1,561,428 671,375 1,490,955 458
B S 4R Total expenses (1,177,681) (639,177) (1,379,356) (28,557)
Fr 150 B 32 Income tax expense (160,2006) (61,762) (31,521) 6,930
EREA (R K Profit/(loss) and total
Xk kT comprehensive income for
the year 223,541 (29,564) 80,078 (21,169)
REEE Current assets 628,960 1,543,157 2,617,110 2,514,811
TR E) & Non-current assets 29,257 18,025 18,171 13,334
VN =K Current liabilities (322,176)  (1,056,042) (2,081,098) (1,678,433)
Fe i) A MR Non-current liabilities — — — (470,882)
238 7 1 B8 P ) B 4 0 2 AR Net cash flows used in
operating activities (89,038) (16,007) (364,768) (355,845)
BEEE R () Net cash flows from/(used in)
BeRaFa investing activities — 330 15 (714)
A& E B T (BT ) Net cash flows from/(used in)
i 4 it 1 AR financing activities (2,617) 189,436 381,632 538,343
Bla KB &S EY Net increase/(decrease) in cash
B/ () 4 and cash equivalents (91,655) 173,759 16,879 181,784
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38. RHHH

) WoE— A s A ENFIMNE
T
W AEEASTA - A%EE
WO — IR A Bt (L B
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B - ARSI RS 7 2

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(@) Acquisition of additional equity interest in a joint
venture
On 30 May 2018, the Group acquired additional 34% equity
interest in a predecessor joint venture, which is engaged in
property development. After the acquisition, the Group held 70%

of total equity interest in the acquired company.

1H170% -
i EAR Purchase consideration
ANRBTT
RMB 000
OB Cash paid 126,020
EBEHZHFAREEREN Fair value of investment in the joint venture
BB A TE held before business combination 137,386
263,406

FIT B 2 LS W i T T
E R B AFEIT

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquired company as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

ANRHTIT
RMB’000
B4 BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents 23,327
EBN & Property, plant and equipment 114
B g% 2 Properties under development 844,485
TEAT TR ~ A R S R T A 5 Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 667,372
JRE A B i ) I Due to related companies (685,653)
Fh BERAT B HAb A K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (360,000)
HRAEBLIE A T Deferred tax liabilities (108,016)
He N T B R 2 AT abk Al 5 e KR Total identifiable net assets at fair value 381,629
I 7 A i Non-controlling interests (114,489)
JA R A E A B i i A R Gain on bargain purchase recognised in other income
i i A and gains in the profit or loss (3,734)
263,406
A B B 2 AT AT An analysis of the cash flows in respect of
the acquisition is as follows:
B Cash consideration (126,020)
OB 4 S R S B Cash and cash equivalents acquired 23,327
ARER B4 KBS EW R Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition (102,693)
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38. EBABE 38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) O — [ i 2 S8 Y 7 (b)
HE
7 45 T Y M 24 D (3
KB 2R S0% o %
—MNEFAZT—H - AEWIA
BT 7 0 2 W RS LA
S D B P T M A 7

Acquisition of control over a predecessor joint venture

The Group held 50% of total equity interest in the acquired
company, which is engaged in property development. On 31
October 2018, the Group held 100% of total voting rights and

hence the Group can control the acquired company.

IR Purchase consideration
ARYTFT
RMB’ 000
e E % Cash paid —
EB AR ARG EREN Fair value of investment in the joint venture
B E A TE held before business combination 371,788
371,788
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38. EBA Pk

(b)  WCHE— ] 7 A 36 R £ )

BE (41)

T S 2 D WS ) Tl

B R AR AFEIT

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of control over a predecessor joint venture

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquired company as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

AR T
RMB’ 000
Ble KB & % EY Cash and cash equivalents 469,992
Wi - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 974
B 8% Properties under development 2,064,400
AT I ~ A R S R T A Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 151,706
JRE i BT 2 ) 3k JE Due from related companies 1,392,184
A [o] Wi TE Tax recoverable 34,884
IR AR 2 Deferred tax assets 105,607
B T e AT SRR B A 0 Trade and bills payables (149,508)
it BERAT B HA A K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (653,000)
At A R I R T 2 Other payables and accruals (11,910)
JRE A5 B I Tax payable (43,638)
HHARE Contract liabilities (2,552,437)
TR ALl I B fE Deferred tax liabilities (65,678)
TN TE B IR 2 7 ol 5 s A4 Total identifiable net assets at fair value 743,576
I P IR Non-controlling interests (371,788)
371,788
A RO B = 2 B An analysis of the cash flows in respect of
the acquisition is as follows:
HaRE Cash consideration —
OB 4 S S B Cash and cash equivalents acquired 469,992
A BN B E R &5 EY IR AR Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition 469,992
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39. AR AW

BEZF-)\E+ZA=+—H
IRAR

(a)

AR (M) BEEBRARA A
(THEMEEZR])

R B AR P S — & — )\ —
H=1T—HEBTZH8=7EH
A 4% 0 4 25 09 51 & A i A
R 10,000,000 7C 3 fin & A B
60,006,000 7 = A F ¥ 40,006,000
I K A B #10,000,000 TG 3 & HI
JRE H 57 AN T 48 BB L 5 = 0 e AR 4E ]
ARREA o A4 B AR N 5% 2
M 1009% P £ 33.33% > HALE
T UM A% 2 2% 3B A 2 2 Y 2 o
o ZHE R LEZHEA
CIPN

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2018

@ R (EN)EEERA AT (“Fuzhou Rongtai”)

Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments to

the articles of association dated 31 January 2018, the registered
capital of Fuzhou Rongtai increased from RMB10,000,000 to
RMB60,006,000. The additional capital of RMB40,006,000 and
RMB10,000,000 was injected by another five independent third
parties and the Group, respectively. The Group's equity interest in
Fuzhou Rongtai decreased from 100% to 33.33% and the Group

lost control over Fuzhou Rongtai thereafter. This transaction is

accounted for as partial disposal of a subsidiary.

AR T
RMB’000
& G Net assets disposed of:
Be RBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 13
T EE ~ HoAt BECHIE B H A Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 128,784
JREASS TR W/ W) 2K IR Due to related companies (119,000)
B GIRER <Yz Net assets before capital injection 9,797
B=HE Capital injection by third parties 40,006
ALETEE Capital injection by the Group 10,000
59,803
RN S AR TRIER 33.33% RRERI A F(H The fair value of remaining 33.33% equity interest
in Fuzhou Rongtai 19,932
o B A O SR I i g Gain on disposal of Fuzhou Rongtai 135
B4 I B A S E Y Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (13)
A BRI ST Y Bl Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
B4 S B L A the capital increase of Fuzhou Rongtai (13)
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39. B IR A o )

BE_F—-N\E+_HA=1+—H
IS (4

(b)

BRONIEfE B EBRA WA A
([ #RMIESF D)

MR R Bt = F— N A
ZHERT Z AR E AR o BEMIE
15 W R A iy AR5 17,000,000
JLHEE N R 103,722,000 76 © A
R 186,722,000 7T Y 38 & 1 5 4
NZBLE = EA o AL EH
5 I 1E A5 B9 1% HE B 100% kD 2
16.39% » HLASE B A Mo A% K % 3
R IEAR A HE IHE o 5228 5 1R i
vidih-rd () VNCIUN

PEE RS BRMIERFZEERA
AR (E AT

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(b)  BRMNIER EEBRA A H (“Suzhou Zhengxin”)

Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments
to the articles of association dated 2 May 2018, the registered
capital of Suzhou Zhengxin increased from RMB17,000,000 to
RMB103,722,000. The additional capital of RMB86,722,000
was injected by another eight independent third parties. The
Group's equity interest in Suzhou Zhengxin decreased from 100%
to 16.39% and the Group lost control over Suzhou Zhengxin
thereafter. This transaction is accounted for as partial disposal of a

subsidiary.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Suzhou Zhengxin

on the date of capital injection were as follows:

AR T T
RMB’000
W& G Net assets disposed of:
B KB B R Cash and cash equivalents 6,812
T EE ~ HoA BECKIE B AD Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 245,931
R AE R IH Deferred tax assets 276
At R A T B B 2 Other payables and accruals (7,765)
JREA5F R B/ ) 2K IR Due to related companies (230,686)
T B i Net assets before capital injection 14,568
BEHEE Capital injection by third parties 86,722
101,290
BRI IEAS FI6% 16.399 HERERY A T-H The fair value of remaining 16.39% equity interest
in Suzhou Zhengxin 16,601
ik MR e Gain on disposal of Suzhou Zhengxin 2,033
A BRI A5 18 5 1 B8 Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
B4 5 B L A the capital increase of Suzhou Zhengxin (6,812)
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39. HEHIE A o] ) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Concinued)
BE_FZ—)\FT+-H=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
IR 42)
0 BRMIEYHEERREAMRAE (© FRMIEREEBRRAMAF (“Suzhou Zhengfeng”)
(T#RMIESE )
WEAMA-Z - /NE=H+2H Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 12 March
IR 3 e ik > AR DAB 2R 2018, the Group disposed of its 83% equity interest in Suzhou
R # 83,300,000 JC Y A AE ) 1.2 1 Zhengfeng to five independent third parties for a consideration of
37 = 7 H A MR E Y 839 RMB83,300,000 in total. The consideration was determined by
JCHE - AR 2% B TR RE A A reference to the corresponding value of the equity interest disposed
JEAEE 8 E - of.
AR T
RMB’000
& G E Net assets disposed of:
B4 KB &5 EY) Cash and cash equivalents 50,892
TS EE ~ HoAt BECHIE B A Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 107,050
AR ST IH S e Deferred tax assets 978
JRE i T 2 ) I Due from related companies 5,262
bR Properties under development 138,997
HAREAT R - C ke K ERH 2 Other payables, deposits received and accruals (35,969)
F1EERAT B At £ 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (170,980)
96,230
TR BRI IE 52 83 9% FCHE I M T The carrying value of 83% equity interest
in Suzhou Zhengfeng 80,198
H B A I S i Gain on disposal of Suzhou Zhengfeng 3,102
PAB A B AT Satisfied by cash 83,300
A B RN IF A B 4 B 4 An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
B ORI T respect of the disposal of Suzhou Zhengfeng is as follows:
AR
RMB’000
HefE Cash consideration 83,300
R B & R & EY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (50,892)
A A LB R 0 I S Y B Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
RS EY R A G of the disposal of Suzhou Zhengfeng 32,408
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39. HBHE 4w )
HEZF—/)\E+ZA=1+—H

14 BE (4)
@ FHEEFPEBEARAR(HHE

RE])

RERBA T \ELALAK
P 7 S B K o A A T 1) 2
S =T A R R 83%
FBEHE -

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

d) FHEFFEEHMRAF (Jiaxing Rongyu”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 7 September 2018,

the Group disposed of its 83% equity interest in Jiaxing Ronyu to

four independent third parties.

AR T T
RMB’000
HEZEREEME Net assets disposed of:

& R B EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 1,548
FAATFIE ~ JHAth JRE 5 T R A Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 9,107
bH S ) Properties under development 943,361
W ~ R Bt Property, plant and equipment 866
g E Intangible assets 89
HCA A 0 I T2 Other payables and accruals (329,647)
i ELERAT B A 3 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (633,000)
(7,676)

7 LA 839 JROHE Y MR T B The carrying value of 83% equity interest
in Jiaxing Rongyu (6,371)
8 57 LSS B Ui £ Gain on disposal of Jiaxing Rongyu 6,371
PAS A B AT Satisfied by cash —

AR ERARFNHE LB EF
B R AT A F

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of Jiaxing Rongyu is as follows:

ARHT T

RMB’000

BRaefE Cash consideration —

HERBE LB EFEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,548)
A B 8 A AR B Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

Bl S5 Y i il A in respect of the disposal of Jiaxing Rongyu (1,548)
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39. WEHHE A ) @)
RE-Z—-bE+ A=+
IRAF B
(1)  BRNIERIE LB RA R A A (6 1)

MIEA])

WEAA —Z—LFNASEH
B0 S i ok > AR SE I DL R W
64,000,000 JG F) X B 1] i I 42 8
SEA MR T K b R s Hh e B
A5 [ 75 R ] o R e R ALY
4% JEHE o BT 2% & I HE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

fiR M IE A SE B R A R A F] (Suzhou Zhengchuang)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 6 September
2017, the Group disposed of its 64% equity interest in Suzhou
Zhengchuang to #f M & E A R 7l and b1 @AY 5 M
b %% 42 [ A7 A ] for a consideration of RMBG64,000,000. The
consideration was determined by reference to the corresponding

value of the equity interest disposed of.

HIAAREE (L E -
N BRI IEAZ EE KA The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Suzhou
ER IR E W Zhengchuang on the date of disposal were as follows:
ARHT T
RMB’000
ReRBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,107
PS4 Properties under development 935,337
FABFEATFE - Eliok s K ER Other payables, deposits received and accruals (601,661)
JREAST R/ W 3K R Due to related companies (235,707)
99,076
649 JBEHE Y MR T (1 The carrying value of 64% equity interest 63,409
H B R B i g5 Gain on disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang 591
DABL g AT Satisfied by cash 64,000

AR ERMN ERAIN B & LB E%
EYRAFEO T

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang is as follows:

HerE Cash consideration 64,000
HER S LB EFEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,107)
A B RN A Y BB K Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

B E B A in respect of the disposal of Suzhou Zhengchuang 62,893

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
—FE—)\F+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

39. WEHIEA A @)
REZF-LHETZA=1+—H

14 BE (4)
2 HEEMBEEAMRAFR
(FEIEH)

MBI R St —F— B AH
T HERT 2 AR R AR > B
S [T B W b B AR A R A
]~ VTP A e B B A PR
Jo i T B B R A R
(=AW =) A AANR KK
30,000,000 7G LA Ui i r B 1E T 75%
B o A5 B e B IE i 2 i 4
B % 259 > AL 2R B IEH
M FEHIRE o 5228 5 WA B0 40 ik B
ZMBAH -

REERY > MEEHZEERA
R (E AT

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

2 FBIEMEEARAT (Nanchang Zhengrun)

Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments to
the articles of association of dated 11 August 2017, %% £E B R
EVH R s BB A IR A A o LTS MR A 5 7 BH 8 A TR
2wl and B T8 B 5 b EE B35 R ], chree independent
third parties, invested RMB30,000,000 in total to acquire 75%
shares in Nanchang Zhengrun. The Group’s interest in Nanchang
Zhengrun was diluted to 25% and the Group thus lost control
over Nanchang Zhengrun. The transaction is treated as a partial

disposal of a subsidiary.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Nanchang

Zhengrun on the date of capital injection were as follows:

ANB¥TFT
RMB’000
B4 K& ED Cash and cash equivalents 22,168
B EE 2 Properties under development 603,198
FOqth AR - it ST 2 Other payables, deposits received and accruals (465,550)
JREAST TR W/ ) 3K R Due to related companies (151,305)
TG i Net assets before capital injection 8,511
<y Capital injection 30,000
38,511
BT 25% BHERI AT EFIA G ERZER  Pair value of the remaining 25% equity interest included
e in interests in joint ventures 9,628
8 R B E A Gain on disposal of Nanchang Zhengrun 1,117
F B B IE SR B S K Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
B2 A the capital increase of Nanchang Zhengrun (22,168)
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40. BARAB 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RSB > SR B TS i 3 TR 4 A 1 B At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
REBUT - in the financial statements were as follows:

“FME CFb
2018 2017
ARBTT  ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

) SRATIE th 1 A B T A R Guarantees given to banks in connection with

EIC LIS GO facilities granted to purchasers of
the Group’s properties (1) 32,844,414 21,961,434
1) SR A7 B FC At B A 1 1Y Guarantees given to banks and other
6 BT BB ) U A 468 £ institutions in connection with
facilities granted to related companies 2) 5,631 —

32,850,045 21,961,434
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40. BAEM )

1)

(2)

SR B T 8RAT 16 A S R A
HER TR FIZ R AT g
RACYER o RIEE R PR
WRRE R AR AERAK
I %% AT R R R IR A & K
SEH B T R RS R

Ed
B\ ©

i Awusee il b ESE-El
W2 ST IR B A B ST i
il 55 B R AT 3K > W% SR AR
TR RERRE A B S WA
KRR R -

24 S B B 318 PR S0 ol 452 A L S 4
B H I = B R P A R
Besg s - A BEE — eg it
HRBEE YR — AR
Hdg -

AR AR B R A 4 B AR
HE B 3% TSR K A Al
BRI R E M ERBL - &
NEERZHINEBEL MR M
By S ] 5 B (A DA R 1
R AR O ] A o R S D
B Bl M R R

7S BT B 2 ) B A
I SRAT S AR R (LA R o AR
7SR A IR S A TR AR A8
i o E—PREIE A 43 -

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

@

@)

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group's
completed properties held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantee arrangements, in case of default on mortgage payments
by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest

and penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged
to the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled
to take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged properties

through open auction.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and
registration of property ownership certificates to the purchasers,
which will generally be available within one to two years after the

purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in
respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale.
The directors of the Company considered that in case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties would
be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no provision

has been made in connection with the guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions
in connection with financial facilities granted to the related
companies. The directors of the Company consider that no
provision is needed in respect of the guarantees. Further details are

included in note 43.
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41. BEMBEH

s A A

AEBREEERELHHEHEEY
*(Wat14) - HEHEHMANF1218
A o AHE MRk — B SRR SO A R 8
& WHUE RS E R T OLE A 4 -

AE-NEFZA=ZF—H > REH
AR B A BT 32 B9 A ] Jh A AL B
JREASC A B J R A AL B R A T

41.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
18 years. The terms of leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

due as follows:

“E—)\E F L

2018 2017

ANRIETIE ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—4EN Within one year 291,132 117,408
52N A (B E EmE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 918,934 339,528
AR After five years 260,794 318,365
1,470,860 775,301

fER AR

A S TR A L O 2 DR AL T
W WERIA T 12 94 - R
RARARAA) - AT W EAT R -

Ao FE—NEFH=+—H  A%EH
RS AT Jh G 408 4 AL 5 1 3] 300 o 2l e {1
T E BRI T

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease
arrangements, negotiated for terms of 1 to 9 years with an option for
renewal after the end of lease terms, at which time all terms will be

renegotiated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

=t SN

2018 2017

ANREFLE ARETFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

—4ER Within one year 48,735 45,070
FRERE (B E RS In the second to fifth years, inclusive 62,494 41,161
AR E Over five years 2,672 3,340
113,901 89,571
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42.

R

B b SCRE GE 40 BT R AL 1Y AR AH B K I
G AR NS RS U T AR
I

42. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 41

above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

—2-)ME CFbE
2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEENEEE R Contracted, but no provided for:

— Ufg i = b — Acquisition of land use rights — 1,118,250
— BB — Properties under development 13,228,125 7,948,776

— JRE 1) DL 28 R T A KOH — Capital contributions payable to
BEE Joint ventures 17,500 11,600
eyl Associates 150,428 90,000
13,396,053 9,168,626
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43. WD 25

(a)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

A gk 5 4% e B A 4 0 1 R
(3

Wi i 7 44

Name of related party
BoR R uE

Mzr. Ou Zongrong

BB 5B

Mr. Ou Guogiang

IEREE AR
Zhenro Group Company

N IE G568 BT PR A) (TR SR 3 1)

AN IE S 58 BAT R A )

(“Fuzhou Property Management”)

TSP EMB A R AR (IR EEE )
TESRMISE R A PR A ]

(“Jiangxi Property Management”)
REEREFEXRARAF (TREES])
REIERESERARAF

(“Wuhan Zhengsheng”)

R RO A R ] (T R R )
FR N R B A PR
(“Suzhou Ronghui”)

MEEXFEHMEARAFA(HE®EE])
MEEERMERRAF

(“Nanchang Jianmei”)

GEEREEARAR ([ EAEEE])
AR A R A T
(“Hefei Birong”)

AR A BRA 7 ([ AL AR 1)
BNEFNEE RS o A IR A A
(“Hefei Hegui”)

MBEMEXARAR(THEIEM])
F B IEE ESARAF
(“Nanchang Zhengrun”)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name of related party and relationship with the Group

SEACHE [ 1 1%

Relationship with the Group

PERRBR
Controlling Shareholder
PEIRBR
Controlling Shareholder
P 5 A PSR B 24 )

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

5 AR PSR i B 24 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

P 5 MR PSR i e 24 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

AL

Joint venture

BEAE

Joint venture

BEMEE

Joint venture

BEMEE

Joint venture

CE-gied

Joint venture

AL

Joint venture



B 25 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
“Z—N\F+ZH=+—H
31 December 2018

43. BAWRTS 25 a0

(a)

R Wy 44 7 M B 4 ] ¥y
% 4)

i i 7 44

Name of related party
ok S A PR v ([ R S8 )
BRN B B AR A

(“Suzhou Lingrui”)
BRI 2 B B A PR A A ([ BN AR 5 )
RN B AR A

(“Suzhou Chengrui”)

JiR BRI i E PR 8A FR ) (TR B3 )

R N B2 I b BB A PR 7
(“Suzhou Aoyuan”)

R VAL i o A R ) (R g )

R MRS e B B A TR A )
(“Taicang Huisheng”)

EigEAE A RA R (T EigEA)
LiEBBREEARAF
(“Shanghai Juexu”)

FRJNIE S B LB A R B (T RRMNIER ])
FRINIE B SR A R F]

(“Suzhou Zhengfeng”)
K ep e B A R AR (TR ])
R it 1 S PR ]

(“Tianjin Zhongchu”)
RN IEAS BB RA R F (TRRMN IEAS |)
BRMN LR BB RA R A A

(“Suzhou Zhengxin”)
JEINIER BB RARAF ([JEILIER])

JEIIER B RARA A
(“Meishan Zhengcai”)

(a)

43, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Name of related party and relationship with the Group

(Continued)

SEACH [ 1 I 4%

Relationship with the Group
BER3
Joint Venture

T

Joint venture

TS

Joint venture

ABL

Joint venture

g s

Joint venture

AEEE

Joint venture

CE gied

Joint venture

BEERE

Joint venture

CR-E(ES

Joint venture
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43. WWRIT R By a) 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continucd)
(a) B 7 4 A8 B LA 48 [ 4 (a) Name of related party and relationship with the Group

B (Continued)

B £ A S M

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

M T 254 e B A PR A B (T AR 2R 4% ) AR

RN T 25 5t E B 8 PR A ) Joint venture
(“Fuzhou Birong”)

WL E % EAEEABRA A (THItE &) HEARS

AL BRI B A PR A Joint venture
(“Hubei Fangtou”)

R M 38 3 5 i B 2 A R ) (T M a3 1) HEARS

M B 3 5 ot I A R ) Joint venture
(“Suzhou Guangkun”)

RN PR E A R A (THEM TR ) HEARS

BN EREEARAR Joint venture
(“Fuzhou Zhonglongtai”)

MEEXEEERAR ([FEEX]) AEAE

MEEXEEARAT Joint venture
(“Nanchang Zhengmao”)

iR L B A BRA R ([P rg5aa ) AEhE

WL E EEARA A Joint venture
(“Jinan Hongbi”)

TR EEARAA ([ FEER]) AEAE

EHAREEARAF Joint venture
(“Jinan Bimin”)

KA TEEH B E A RA R (KA &EHT ) AEmE

KA T EEHT 7 B3 A PR A A Joint venture
(“Taicang Xinheng”)

NEFE R EARAR ([ ANLREE]) HERE

INE T 7 i B A PR ) Joint venture
(“Liu’an Jiayu”)

IE#K(E) 5 BB A IR A A ([ BB IERK]) AEAE

TE#K (i) 5 b BB AT BRA R Joint venture

(“Shanghai Zhengxin”)
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43. Bk IR By ar) 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) B 7 4 A8 M SRR 48 [ 1 (a) Name of related party and relationship with the Group
%) (Continued)
GlER SRS 1 1 I 1
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
T LG A AT PR w) ([ B )) AR

FL R AR

(“Jiaxing Jinqi”)

R P B8 ot S e A R ) (R 8 ])
R S o E B B A IR )

(“Suzhou Haoyi”)
R E A R AR (TR )
REF R E A RATR

(“Wuhan Qingneng”)

P G s o E PR 3 A PR ] (T B MM G )
BN R T b BB A PR

(“Zhengzhou Shengqing”)

FRN IE A B 28R A R A (T RRMIERD D)
BRMNIERI BB RA RN F

(“Suzhou Zhengchuang”)

i 2% s DR [ R R I 3t 2 B B8 A RS (TR 2OV MR )
SR A% s ORBE I MR AR 5 7 P A FR A

(“Zhangjiagang Yaohui”)
KBNESE B A R m] (TR EENELE 1)
KBNS B2 A R F

(“Tianjin Shunji”)
AR S B R A R A ([ R AR L))

MR B ESERRA A
(“Nanjing Taiqgi”)

L LTt E PR A PR 7D ([ Ll 55 )
B L) 5 5 b E B B BR A
(“Kunshan Zhuomi”)

T U S O E B A R ) (TR A 26 D)

P TR 4R 7 i B A PR )
(“Nanjing Zhaorong”)

Joint venture

B e

Associate

YN

Associate

e 2wl

Associate

B AT

Associate

A

Associate

BEAT

Associate

g e

Associate

YN

Associate

e 2wl

Associate
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43. BRI R 5 1) 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) [ 7 4 A8 M SR 48 [ 1 (a) Name of related party and relationship with the Group

&) (Continued)

GLER SRS 1 1 I

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

T I 8 % 5t E B A R ) ([ R Bt s ) /N

T 5 LA R b E BR A BR /A 7] Associate
(“Nanjing Zhuohongsheng”)

T8 R ZE A S b B A PR A B ([ 9 e 4 ) k= /NI

T ZEAH 28 B b s B R A R A Associate
(“Jinan Bishi”)

BT% (FR N ) E R R A PRA A ([FEME2 ) G- g/N|

B (BN BEBRARAF Associate
(“Fuzhou Rongtai”)

AR T S 1845 A AT BR A 7 ([ A4 54 ) =g/

AR T SR 45 A PR ) Associate
(“Tongxiang Haoli”)

REREBEARAT([FEEBE]) /N

FEREBERRAH Associate
(“Jiashan Sheng’an”)

ok TIT L2 55 3t 2 B A PR A ) ([ R M2 ]) k- g/

TR ) T 70 72 o 2 o A B ) Associate
(“Suzhou Guanda”)

FrE SR B EA RA R (TFFEEE]) k- /N

B & e B A A R A R Associate
(“Xuchang Jinyao”)

TN 7 A S o B A R A WD ([ AR ) /N

R HE 5 B PR ) Associate
(“Xuzhou Yafeng”)

TR IH 5L 15 55 b BE A BRA A ([N 54K 1) =g/

RN 5485 5 1 BH 25 A PR 7 Associate
(“Chuzhou Hongyang”)

Foe LA 0 SR SR PR A R ([ 3% LB R ) =g/

T LA B R B RA ] Associate

(“Jiaxing Xinlinghang”)
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43. BAWRTS 25 a0

(a)

43, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B 7 44 e B 4 ] Y A (a) Name of related party and relationship with the Group

) (Continued)

GlER SRS 1 1 I 1

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

FHAREEARAA ([FHEEE]) ik /NI

LA E S TR\ Associate
(“Jiaxing Rongyu”)

R IE R e B EE A IR A R ([ REIER ) T A El

KL R 5 b s B s A BRZA A Associate
(“Tianjin Zhengsheng”)

PR B EEARAR ([P ]) B A

R B E EARAF Associate
(“Jinan Birong”)

5 2 0 P 25 [ s b B A PR A D ([ SR KU Ik P S22 AL 1 1) =g/

0 % s P 2 [ S b s B B PR ) Associate
(“Zhangjiagang Chengxi Biguiyuan”)

B B R 1E 3% 5 b B s A PR A ([ H 2L 1) /N

B ENEL B E B b B AR A R Associate
(“Changshu Hongyang”)

fok M 1E B 5 i B A R A ([ RN 1EEE ) Wi )

ff M 1E T 55 b 7 B 5 A PR ) Associate
(“Suzhou Zhengxi”)

RESERE S e BB A R A ) ([ K |) ik /NI

KSR 5 b e B B R A H Associate
(“Tianjin Haoda”)

B E A RAR ((FE a8 ) = /N

B 4 i e B AR FR A A Associate
(“Nanchang Jinhan”)

I T T o L 2 I B PR ) ([ 3N R e ) /N

FE ) TH T R (R 2 ] 5t s B A PR Associate

(“Ganzhou Nankang”)
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43. BAWRTS 25 a0

(a)

R Wy 44 7 M B 4 ] ¥y
&)
W64 5 44 4R

Name of related party

TRMIETHE R B RA R A ([HRMNIET])
TRMIET BRI RARA R
(“Xuzhou Zhengsheng”)

HEERMBEEARAF ([HERE )
R B AR

(“Chongqing Yangding”)
2RI M B A PR A (3 A9 ))
BT A M E A B A PR A

(“Ji'an Rongcheng”)

FARBENARAR ((HAEE))
HAEMERARAR
(“Changshu Jianhan”)

(“Zhenro Foundation”)

(a)

IE % b 2 4 B A5 fR A ®] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Name of related party and relationship with the Group

(Continued)

SHLAC S 1 0 A £
Relationship with the Group
e 2

Associate

B AT

Associate

i 2

Associate

it 2

Associate

BEBBOR I R R B B AR R HE R
A close family member of
the Controlling Shareholders is

the director of the charity
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43. BAWRTS 25 a0

(b)

BRaZ 5 MBS R A S H Pt il 2
ZHS - AGE R B T AR
TR

R e VT L UNE TN
1B I8 PR SR B
fRIR & 8 438 BB A R IR B

A5 T IR B Bk
R i - YNGR T

RS T BRI Bk

=

P B 2 R AR SR T
2wl SR ) S RS

BB R AR AL S

BT A B RS R E A R R

43, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

Advances from joint ventures and associates

Repayment of advances from shareholders

Repayment of advances from joint
ventures and associations

Advances to a shareholder

Advances to joint ventures and associates

Repayment of advances to a shareholder

Repayment of advances to joint ventures
and associates

Property management services from
companies controlled by

the ultimate controlling shareholders

Management consulting setvices to joint

ventures and associates

Interest income from joint ventures and

associates

“F-)M\E  “Z-tE

2018 2017
AR ARWTL
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
4,365,197 1,441,067
— 79,856

208,745 659,663
— 6,763
38,384,020 7,973,843
— 14,973
31,546,359 7,150,013
130,308 110,027
21,387 21,876
28,397 -

MR+ %528 5 Ty MR 4 2 B4 T 3L ] i
TE WK B AT

Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and

conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

4E )t Annual Report 2018

289



290

F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

43. BAWRTS 25 a0
ﬁi%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁf&ﬁ%

(c)

()

(i)

(1i1)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

AT —NEFZH=+—
Ho KK RDLIE & 4
A AR (=

—tFE+A=+—H:
270,252,000 Bt & 4 ) 1F 4K
o DAREUCA S B T A
WMARBEL(CF—LE
+TZHA=+—H: AR¥
745,902,000 7G) 9 HAbAE K o

R-F—-NE+ZA=+—
H > E4EEARCHMAE
BT A EE AN R%E G
SR -LFEF A=
H: AR %¥11,473,132,000
TG ) H SR AT B H A i 3R
i o

5 ol

REF—)E+ZA=+—
H o> BERBORE s T A
MARKZTL(ZE—LF
TZA=1t—H: AR¥
4,822,895,000 70 ) [ 4R 17 K
o 8 AR AR o

NE—NFEF A=t
H > IE4E4E A Al R i
WO S [ A 4 [ A
MmARBEZG(ZE— L
TA=+—H: AR¥
9,855,542,000 JC ) 9 81 17 &
PAE LR

REFE-NFETZH=1—
H - A 4E [ 3 ) 254 B
EH I T AR AR
81,000,000 JG [ $R 17 B H Ath
B HAELR -

R-F—NE+ZA=+—
Ho> AEELD R ELAR
%AﬁﬁﬁgikE%
5,716,000 76 (= % — L 4F ¢
J\E%ﬁ¥14,858,000)ﬁ)°

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()
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Other transactions with related parties

@

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

As at 31 December 2018, the Controlling Shareholders
have pledged nil shares (31 December 2017: 270,252,000
shares) of Zhenro Group Company for certain of the
Group's other borrowings up to nil (31 December 2017:
RMB745,902,000).

As at 31 December 2018, Zhenro Group Company has
guaranteed certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings
up to nil (31 December 2017: RMB11,473,132,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Controlling Shareholders have
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings up to
nil (31 December 2017: RMB4,822,895,000).

As at 31 December 2018, Zhenro Group Company and the
Controlling Shareholders have jointly guaranteed certain
of the Group’s bank loans up to nil (31 December 2017:
RMBY,855,542,000).

The Group guaranteed certain bank and other loans made
to Changshu Hongyang up to RMB81,000,000 as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has donated up
to RMB5,716,000 (2017: RMB14,858,000) to Zhenro

Foundation.
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43. BRI RS )
(d) B B 7 R A A i

Gy s N Ak v
B A Py 5 A R SR A A R 3OR

HE AR5 B 4R 5 B 7 BE
B o d AR PP B SR i 0 2+ R R

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties

e Syt

+ZA=+—H

31 December

2018

AR T

RMB’000

Due from joint ventures and associates 7,672,239
Due from companies controlled by

the ultimate controlling shareholders 14,127

Due to joint ventures and associates 3,313,097

Due to companies controlled by
the ultimate controlling shareholders 19,886

“E LA
+ZH=+—H
31 December
2017
ARHFI
RMB’000

2,604,753

13,222
783,726

17,554

(e) A EEATHA B H MW

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

—“F—-N\E S FtF
2018 2017
ANREFL ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
58 (8 B 45 R Short term employee benefits 30,170 18,560

FHE LT R AL S 45 F Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 870 1,209

AT EEAE A B AR Total compensation paid to key

management personnel 31,040 19,769

5 (03 — A0 R R B S R
FaES

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8§ to

the financial statements.

4E )t Annual Report 2018

291



F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

44. TRIUN B 23 iy 4 il AL 44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
TR BAR &  4 CEAYEE (L F The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—F—-N\E+ZH=+—H 31 December 2018
S hE Financial assets
il
JRAF iz ¥y YN
EREE HFABRER
Financial LSREE
assets Financial
at amortised assets FE
cost at FVPL Total
AT AR¥FFT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR R AR £ 1Y Financial assets at fair value through
S REEE (ff sk 20) profit or loss (note 20) — 862,161 862,161
FEATEAT IR ~ HfbfElk  Financial assets included in prepayments,
A J E A 1Y other receivables and other assets (note 25)
AR (MEE25) 4,141,399 — 4,141,399
B 5 MEWCHOE (Ht3E 24)  Trade receivables (note 24) 34,151 — 34,151
JRE i A e ) T Due from related companies 7,686,366 — 7,686,366
2 PRI B 4 (T 26) Restricted cash (note 26) 4,866,036 — 4,866,036
B%&%ﬁﬂﬁ*” Ff 5E 26) Pledged deposits (note 26) 963,560 — 963,560
& S B4 % (B (i 3F 26) Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) 22,538,953 — 22,538,953

40,230,465 862,161 41,092,626
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44.

S5 J500 5 23 09 ik TR )

“F-)\E+ZAZT—H#)
SRR

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
31 December 2018 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

FeR g AR
HRHY
SR
Financial
liabilities

at amortised

cost

ARHFIT

RMB’ 000

& 5 A5} T A 220 (bt 27) Trade and bills payables (note 27) 8,212,543
F A JE A BB A T B R D 4 2 R Financial liabilities included in other

(Pft3E 28) payables and accruals (note 28) 5,706,235

FEE R AT B H oA 15 2k (5 30) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 30) 38,170,589

A EMES (H5E32) Corporate bonds (note 32) 3,150,187

B2 ( Wui 31 Senior Notes (note 31) 5,170,825

JREASF I B Due to related companies 3,332,983

63,743,362
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44. BB A0 m TR ) 44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
—2—tE+A=Z+—H 31 December 2017
S RhE Financial assets
ATt
BREE
=00/ Available
JE W3R A for-sale
Loans and financial F
receivables assets Total
ANREEFE  ARETFLT AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AL B (Ff T 21) Available-for-sale investments (note 21) — 5,000 5,000
FEATEA A - HAbfElk  Financial assets included in prepayments

FH R H A E R other receivables and other assets (note 25)

SMEE (& 2s) 567,607 — 567,607
Z 5 e Nk IE (Ft 5 24) Trade receivables (note 24) 15,605 — 15,605
JRE LGz B g A ) kI Due from related companies 2,677,975 — 2,677,975
32 B B 4 (B 3T 26) Restricted cash (note 26) 3,931,480 — 3,931,480
2RI (FiFRE 26) Pledged deposits (note 26) 1,195,303 — 1,195,303
34 T B BB (FifE 26) Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) 14,539,485 — 14,539,485

22,927,455 5,000 22,932,455
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44.

S5 J500 5 23 09 ik TR )

“F—-tE+ZAZ—H#)
SRR

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
31 December 2017 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

o
WA AR
Sl £
Financial
liabilities

at amortised

cost

ANREF T

RMB’ 000

& 5 A5} ST A 220 (Bt 27) Trade and bills payables (note 27) 5,539,852
i A JEC At JRE A I e e it PR 11 < Financial liabilities included in other

(Pft5E 28) payables and accruals (note 28) 1,075,316

B ERAT B A 3R (i E 30) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 30) 40,061,178

N FEES (K5 32) Corporate bonds (note 32) 2,002,359

JRE AT R B ) T Due to related companies 801,280

49,479,985
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45.

Sk T 21 B AP
e
B R T A B4 - JLA % 9 T
O » AR B L T SR (6 B A (8
o :

45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,

other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to

fair values, are as follows:

W AT
Carrying amounts Fair values
“F-N\E R ZB0\E ZEF
2018 2017 2018 2017
AREETFE  ARETLE  ARETFE  ARETL
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
T fle i A Available-for-sale investments — 5,000 — 5,000
BATEF ARG EMEE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 862,161 - 862,161 —
862,161 5,000 862,161 5,000
SHALR Financial liabilities
it AT KA Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 38,170,589 40,061,178 38,326,087 40,027,553
AT Corporate bonds 3,150,187 2,002,359 3,102,152 2,002,078
BT Senior notes 5,170,825 — 5,199,257 -
46491601 42,063,537 46,627,496 42,029,631

BHECAEHERHEEHY - B
AN IR B~ H 5 UK
JH - B 5 e FOE R SRR - FEA
TARIE - HoAbREGHRE K H A
G RE R - F A AR SOE K
w2 L A R DA B MR R AT
g6 2 )RR A 8 - LR R T B AR
# o FERBREE TRIEIHR
B o

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
and amounts due from/to related companies approximate to their carrying

amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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45.

koL MR DA ) A D
J& B a)

A S [ B Tl D T o S AR A - A
H O E & TR NP E AR W BUR KR
JF o B 75 A8 T 1o A AR R o R
KAk B R R AT & TR E
EL FA 528 3 0 R B RS A L A 5 B A
BOR o il (B BB B R - 5
ERR KRR EEGZ R
B4 B A FEAT MR o

EMEEKARZAFEUZTARA
BRI #) %5 7 BT 2 28 5 (A BUE 3
HEBRIN) P2 BB o

AT B BRAT B H At £ B B - (BTG 288 2
TH R A B 4 0 B8 % BUIG AT BB
ek~ 5 B S Bk R SR 2 TR
A ZRETHB AR - FEER -F
—NE+ZA=+—HAAFERT R
HAAE 3K A B A B w7 I A B
* o

UTAR-ZF—tE+-HA=+—H&
Al T BAG (BT 1 AR B RO ] B A
MR ] 7 AU BE T

45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim

and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was

assessed to be insignificant.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2017:

HRAH AR ESL N

(GHEWRS B A\ i B

Significant Sensitivity of fair

Valuation technique  unobservable input Range value to the input

AT A BB R ETBiES 0.72%  MHREBLE ETH(TRE) 1%
&= e Discounted Discount rate 0.72% AR —F—LF
Available-for-sale cash flow method TZA=T—HRATE
trust and fund W (1) AR 360 7T

investments 1% increase (decrease)
in discount rate would result
in the decrease (increase)
in fair value of RMB360

as at 31 December 2017
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45. LW T HMAFHE AT 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

Je 8% ) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
AVAE Fair value hierarchy
THRINRAEB 2 T ERAFEFTE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
JE the Group's financial instruments:
N THEFI BN G R Assets measured at fair value:
m_F—N\E+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2018
DL N S st 2 P fE

Fair value measurement using

WHEWY EAWBE EAATEE
ZHM WA WA
GE—#)  CGB=#8) (B=8)

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ARWTL  ARKTTZ  ARETT  ARETFX
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

TATHEF ARG NS MG RE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 862,161 — — 862,161
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45. LW T HMAFHE ATV 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

Jo& B (41) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
NVERE R (4) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
R_Z—tE+_H=1+—H As at 31 December 2017

CIEIIR ¢ S A/ El

Fair value measurement using

Y EAWBE ERATEE
ZHE O WARE WA
(=% B E=ER)

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ARHTE  ABEFT  AR¥TT  ARKTT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000

T fle i A Available-for-sale investments — — 5,000 5,000
AREEK - E—NE+HA=Z+—H The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
AR AT AT RSB (— December 2018 (2017: N,

—LEF ) .

TR AR BE R A — 4R LA A% R During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
INTAEE R 2 S T4 E E B4 between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
BRI = A S (B both financial assets and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).

B IE) -
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45. WM T HB AP BE A 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
J& B 40) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
NVAE G 8 (45) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
WRATFENAE : Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
m_F—N\E+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2018
A FH DL R e st 2 A A
Fair value measurement using
WY EAWEE ERAEE
ZHE O WANE  WANE
G-/  GE=H) (=)
Quoted prices Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARIEFE  ARETFLZ  ARETFL  ARETFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000
it SERAT KA Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings — 38,326,087 — 38,326,087
Al Corporate bonds 3,102,152 — — 3,102,152
B Senior notes 5,199,257 — — 5,199,257
8,301,409 38,326,087 — 46,627,496
noZ—tE+-H=Z+—H As at 31 December 2017
R Sigat &2 ATE
Fair value measurement using
BT TATEE EARTHE
SR WARE  WAR
(=) (%) (HB=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETE  ANBETT AEETLT ARETL
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
At ST KA K Interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings — 40,027,553 — 40,027,553
ATfES Corporate bonds 2,002,078 — 2,002,078
2,002,078 40,027,553 — 42,029,631
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46. S5 B A B H B R BUOR 46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AEBEMTESBM TR T EARHI SR
WATHIBR > ZIRHI B & H 5 Bk
W~ B R MR O > AT
BRHAET B #EL - AEHEAH
i 4 B 0 AR IR RAT R A
ek BERE - CEFR - HATHE
A AR IR A TR - BRI  FBOR K
HAOREHRIE - %M T RN ERHR
RITER R AR SR B AR -

A% S I < T L A Y o B A A
JEL B~ ShBE B > 5 R B R B
JEUB o — A & > AR B I S H e B
PRI ST HEms o AR SRR F5 4 B8 AT 7T
MEHWFESHTH - BRI
e 58 2% S JEL B o BRLBOR > HBEAEINE -

(@) AR
74 55 I T I A T 5 0 5 A o e
2B R 30 BT A9 A 42 AR AT K
HoA AR B o ARG S 6 1D
M TR A R - AR
7 B SRAT £ 3 R B
Ao

RoE—NE+_HA=+—H il

FHEROF R LT TH1% > J
7% S B 7 A A B 1 R B T i 4 B
b/ HEINE R 8,402,000 TG (=
Z—LF : ARH5,353,00070)

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, corporate notes, financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise

finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings
set out in note 30. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its

interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group would
have decreased/increased by approximately RMB8,402,000 (2017:
RMB5,353,000).
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46. S 5 o B 4 BEH B R BOR

(%)

(b)  AMHE R
4 S P T B 52 55 B R, © 2%
Wi 7 DR 56 D B8 (22 9 il
BLSh 2 BEWEHEAT RS T 2 o

WAL > A T e A L
RS B

TRFUR A AR A B M ft 5
BHERF AR - FETRA
IR BB 4 1) 25 L T 58 B T 3 A 4
P 5 i e 1 11 2 8 (o 7 B
R RN FEES) kAL
AR R 2 (i BB T &
FEEES)) 2 BURE DT -

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from transactions by operating units in currencies other than

the units’ functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposutes from its financial

assets and senior notes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the US$
and RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to

changes in the fair value of forward currency contracts).

RIGHER B A
LIt/ (FEk) i,/ (i)

ZER—N\E
(VNG e T &
(NGBS i
e S e
(CINEG B S T
(VNP ST 14

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in USD rate before tax
% ARWETT
% RMB’ 000
2018
If the RMB weakens against the US$ -5% (92,445)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ +5% 92,445
2017
If the RMB weakens against the US$ -5% 1,509
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ +5% (1,509)
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46. S B5 o B 4 BUH B R BOR

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(%) AND POLICIES (Continued)
(© & R (© Credit risk
7B {2 SR R AT S A T 5E 2 B The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
EHHETEE o AEEZBORR T parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
FHBRUGERETEEZRFHA trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
BXGEEFEURRT « Wb - BlGK In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
THAE R ER A 2 WA > T AR B R 3% basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
SRR > AL Bl AN R o BELA IR transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of
B IR B EHE Z 2 5 T the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
= R AR (E A TR R A without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.
e REMAERTRHEEY -
W_ZE—NE+_H=+—H Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
F4 25 LIt S A 4 o D s B 2018
T REIIH ZE— NE A The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
=t R RA LB RBOR#H exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
oW fE B E R K w5 R 5 is mainly based on past due information unless other information
B A R (R JF S At is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
R JEURN Wb B A 555 ) ) classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are
JE ) BAE ST R TS B B - T 25 gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
SR A E BRI o
12 A #H
REER
12-month 2 SR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
fe
H—ThB BB BB Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
ABWTE  ARMTFZ  ARMTFZ  ARWTT  ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
$57 s + Trade receivables* — - - 34,151 34,151
FEAFNEIE » AR Financial assets included in
B R E R prepayments,
SRR other receivables
and other assets
—Ef — Normal#* 4,141,399 = = = 4,141,399
%RHBLE Restricted cash 4,866,036 - - - 4,866,036
Bk Pledged deposits 963,560 - - - 963,560
e kB &S EY Cash and cash equivalents 22,538,953 — — — 22,538,953
32,509,948 - - 34,151 32,544,099
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46. S 5 o B 4 BEH B R BOR

(%)

(c)

5 FJa\B (40)

e e e .

1 F5e KR B M 4F 4 BT iR B B

(47)

o RSB (6
Y0 6 5 35 259 MBS
S AT R M G 24 4 7R o MEAE TR
K A5 P4 H R

ok it ATEAT ZH ~ A i E
T HoAt 8 1Y 4 il 7 I R
L 4 R B R S S
15 B R B 0 16 ke 8 DA B A T 43
o MZESRMERE 2 fFEER
WARAIIER | -

R-F—tE+ZA=+—H
e R B e

15 B 9 18152 5 3 F O SR R
FEEAT FL A& 9 B AL T R B 48 2%
B o 5 LB £ 2R A 1) % P 4R A
A R S o

ENAEEBEARBOES » A%
A iy 5 PR JEL B 4 o o AR IS
F— LA A SR AT A FORIBRAR
52 o

AL H AL M EE (ERAHFE
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2018 (Continued)

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment information based on the expected credit losses is disclosed
in note 24 to the financial statements. There is no significant concentration

of credit risk.

ok The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. Exposure
to credit risk arises primarily from its financing activities to

customers.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk in view of its large
number of customers. The Group did not record any significant
bad debt losses during the year 2017.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and pledged deposits, other receivables, and amounts
due from related companies, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.
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46. MM B S PLH BE R BOK 46

(%)

(d) B SR
ARSI BB B A ESRAT
B AR AR -
R 5 1 R
REFFAIE R HEE IE 2 BT -
ES Y BB SR -

252 B RS R R S A R T LA
FRRT AL 45 R A 1 28 L 40
T

ZF=)MEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2018

at BAAT AR Incerest-bearing bank and

other borrowings

gilea Corporate bonds
B Senior notes

BHMEMSEREMNESE  Trade and bills payables
At ASCAE AT Financial liability included

SHA R in other payables
T B A ) 50K Due to related companies

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds, senior notes and

proceeds from asset-backed securities. Cash flows are being closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

HEK WANA 3E0MA ERLL
Less than 3to12 Over 1 st
On demand 3 months months year Total
ANEWTFL  ARMTFE  ARETT  ARKTT  ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

- 5,101,175 18,575,372 17,670,442 41,346,989
- - 1,337,299 2,300,000 3,037,299
- - 1,621,702 4,583,331 6,205,033

8,212,543 - - 8,212,543
2,420,574 18,522 181,491 3,054,938 6,275,525
3,332,983 - - - 3,332,983

13,966,100 5,119,697 21,715,864 28,208,711 69,010,372
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46. MBS H B R BOK 46

(#)
d) WEE SRR

ZZ—tE+ZH=1—H 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

HER 3EAMR 3ERMEA 1FUE
Less than 3t012 Over 1 At
On demand 3 months months year Total
AEHTFL  AEBTFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

at BAAT RE AR Incerest-bearing bank and
other borrowings — 2,158,489 20,441,910 20,132,452 42,732,851
NGk Corporate bonds — - 2,128,000 - 2,128,000
B HER FOEREMESE  Trade and bills payables 5,539,852 = = — 5,539,852
HABRET30R Other payables 4,471,244 — — — 4,471,244
B A B A 7l 0B Due to related companies 801,280 — — — 801,280
10,812,376, 2,158,489 22,569,910 20,132,452 59,673,227

) BEAREH (e) Capital management

AL EAE A L% B AR
AL E R AL AR AR I A
PARMIRE ST > DA H 36 2
WIEERKAL -

AR TR 01 5
T LYY © B S
VRS » A S5 B B R A7 1
SRS TR P LR B 757
M % o

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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46. S B5 o B 4 BUH B R BOR

(#)

(e)

B T (49)

AR B B AR (R A i
B DL E A SR BB RS R A 2 M)
HREEYEEA o ANSE A E B AT
A GEESRAT R Hofth 5 3 - B
% - AalfE - BO A RIEKIE
AF B4R > A A TR I T
FR A B A 7 20 B 4 B R
GEMEY) o EALEEN AR AE
WEHERR o IRV E E A RR
fF

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net

debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes,

within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior

notes,, corporate bonds, trade and bills payables, other payables

and accruals, amount due to related companies, less cash and cash

equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of

the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

e L

+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARWTF ARHT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B0 M 5 SR B AT S8 Trade and bills payables 8,212,543 5,539,852
FEAREAT S X et 2 Other payables and accruals 8,735,630 4,471,244
At BB AT R HcA i 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 38,170,589 40,061,178
NEES Corporate bonds 3,150,187 2,002,359
BERR Senior notes 5,170,825 —
A7 R A ) 0 Due to related companies 3,332,983 801,280
B B kB eFEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (22,538,953) (14,539,485)
B FH Net debt 44,233,804 38,336,428
BYNEE 2PN/ D Equity attributable to owners of the parent 13,528,968 8,178,784
B R AT T Capital and net debt 57,762,772 46,515,212
AR Gearing ratio 77% 82%
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47.
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5B o BE H T R > A
T 7 A T L R 60
A o I A 2 0 5
i

AER—JUE—HA =+ =H » ARNF#
AR &% 5 150,000,000 E L i = F =%

FER M EERE - ZFEEFERIRE
FlZ10.5% 58 > B 4F BB SAL

ZEEEERNEM A A T ZRER
A AN o RE A AL AT RS > A
xR AT A A 298 R A R SR e M 0 [ %
HESE R o B O R 1 AR B B A
BN -

AZFE—NEZH A H o AREELT
K 42 B 1 230,000,000 3 6 i —F
IR o S E B R
F29.8%wH B » B 4F 2 I 304 © 7%
SEEENEME A - FE A
A H o B H A AT R > AR
T AT R A T I I R
SRR o B[] I A A A A T R A
% o

BoFE—NFEZANE AR A
4 % 5 200,000,000 % JC Y —F AR
B S AR o RS B AR AR A
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47.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 15 January 2019, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$ 200,000,000 due in 2020. The senior notes bear interest
at 8.6% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
maturity date of the senior notes is 13 January 2020. At any time prior
to maturity, the Company may at its option redeem the senior notes, at a
predetermined redemption price. The details of the redemption price are

disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 23 January 2019, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$ 150,000,000 due in 2020. The senior notes bear interest
at 10.5% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
maturity date of the senior notes is 28 June 2020. At any time priot to
maturity, the Company may at its option redeem the senior notes, at a
predetermined redemption price. The details of the redemption price are

disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 20 February 2019, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$ 230,000,000 due in 2021. The senior notes bear interest
at 9.8% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
maturity date of the senior notes is 20 August 2021. At any time prior
to maturity, the Company may at its option redeem the senior notes, at a
predetermined redemption price. The details of the redemption price are

disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 8 March 2019, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$ 200,000,000 due in 2022. The senior notes bear interest
at 9.15% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
maturity date of the senior notes is 8 March 2022. At any time and
from time to time before the maturity date, the Company may at its
option redeem the senior notes, at a predetermined redemption price.
The details of the redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering

memorandum.

On 25 February 2019, the Company repurchased full all outstanding the
2019 Notes of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. For further details, please refer to the related announcement of
the Company dated 26 February 2019.

IE % Hb 7 4 B F R A §] Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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48. A4y wl BB B 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
HCEIR > A BA S R IR R Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
RN ¢ the end of the reporting period is as follows:

“F-0\E —FLF
2018 2017
ARETE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

T ol e NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YIZE - W7 Bttt Property, plant and equipment 2,640 —
B B A Total non-current assets 2,640 —
B & E CURRENT ASSETS
Ba KB EEEY Cash and cash equivalents 480,560 31,004
FAAT IR ~ At JRE i T B A Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 14,104 14,612
JRE Wiz PR W/ ) 2K R Due from related companies 7,902,300 330,176
it B AR Total current assets 8,396,964 375,792
HE AR CURRENT LIABILITIES
F A JREASF T S E T Other payables and accruals 1,974 —
JRE A B g A ) kI Due to related companies 106,681 415,140
B Senior notes 1,094,198 —
LB B AR Total current liabilities 1,202,853 415,140
B NET CURRENT ASSETS 7,194,111 (39,348)
A W B L TOTAL ASSETS LESS

CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,196,751 (39,348)

4 #t Annual Report 2018 309



F 785 it o B ik

Notes to Financial Statements
—“FE—)N\FF+_H=+—H
31 December 2018

48. RSy ] BB LR ) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIA POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
HCGEIR > A BN A IR R Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
SR () the end of the reporting period is as follows: (Continued)
“2-N\E CF L
2018 2017

AR TE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

FE B £ NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BILEE Senior notes 4,076,627 —
JEUiE B A Total non-current liabilities 4,076,627 =
FEE Net assets 3,120,124 (39,348)
s EQUITY

[I&S Share capital 265 3

A Reserves 3,119,859 (39,351)
i AR Total equity 3,120,124 (39,348)

310 IE 2 Hh e 2 A R A A Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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48. AR/ MHBRBLE ) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIA POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
B &k Note:
AN TR RERE BRSNS - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
[iZN JBe A i 0 PREGUF) T SEBE T kA At
Exchange
Share Share Retained fluctuation
capital premium profits reserve Total
AR ARFEFL ARETFT ARFFL AREFFI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REZF—LFE—H—HI4#  Balance at 1 January 2017 - - - - -

A P 2 THT K i AR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (39,351) - (39,351)
BATHIR Issuance of new shares 3 - - - 3
h=F—N\F—H—HR Balance at 1 January 2018
“F—tFEFZA=1—H and 31 December 2017
A5 B 3 — (39,351) - (39,348)
A N A TR i SRR Total comprehensive income
for the year — — (318,571) - (318,571)
BATHR Issuance of new shares 262 — — — 262
B 3t Share premium — 3,588,067 — — 3,588,067
e S 358 8 ff Exchange fluctuation reserve — — — 203,417 203,417
B B oy ik Dividends and distributions — — (329,918) — (329,918)

AR \F+_H=1—H  Balance at 31 December 2018

AR 265 3,588,067 (687,840) 203,417 3,103,909
49. MEEM B 49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBEHRERCR - F - LE=A"+NH The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
WA e e S PR HET B o board of directors on 24 March 2019.
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Year ended 31 December
“B\E —ELE SEAF  SE-HF  ZZ-NEF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
AR  AREFT AREFT AREFL AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

W Revenue 26,453,106 19,995,061 14,603,520 4,310,180 3,039,559
AF 1A i ) Profit for the year 2,232,537 1,521,394 1,243,222 418,939 80,101
BARBEA A Profit for the year
JRE Ao 4 1A 34 ) attributable to
owners of the parent 2,120,734 1,408,876 1,183,256 418,737 53,359
mt+=HA=+—H

As at 31 December
“&2—)\E SE - D -RFE SRR ZFNE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

ANRWTT ARBETT ARWFTT ARBWTT ARKETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

s EE Non-current assets 14,754,924 11,421,656 8,732,711 6,417,900 4,397,400
T & Current assets 126,643,583 95,000,014 78,025,956 53,103,800 39,130,493
jagrg ot Total assets 141,398,507 106,421,670 86,758,667 59,521,700 43,527,893
I i & & Non-current liabilities 26,637,657 19,647,177 27,263,007 16,419,481 16,640,138
e AR Current liabilities 90,281,849 74,550,192 50,505,729 36,791,657 25,215,307
A g4 Total liabilities 116,919,506 94,197,369 77,768,736 53,211,138 41,855,445
T 45 A4 % Total equity 24,479,001 12,224,301 8,989,931 6,310,562 1,672,448
(EYNEIE/ ZSUN Total equity attributable to

JREA HE £ A0 AR owners of the parent 13,528,968 8,178,784 7,974,754 6,149,013 1,560,796

312 IE 2 Hh e 2 A R A A Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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